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ISSION STATEMENT

To provide a fair, efficient, ethical
and transparent medium for the conduct
of a viable securities market
that facilitates the mobilization of
capital to finance the growth and
development of the nation.
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OUR CORPORATE OBJECTIVES

The Jamaica Stock Exchange was incorporated as a
private limited company in August 1968, with the
stock market commencing operations in February

1969.

Its principal objectives are:

To promote the orderly and transparent development
of the stock market and the stock exchange in Jamaica.

To ensure that the stock market and its broker members
operate at the highest standards practicable.

To develop, apply and enforce the rules designed to
ensure public confidence in the stock market and
its broker-members.

To provide facilities for the transaction of stock
market business.

To conduct research, disseminate relevant
information and maintain local and international
relationships which can enhance the development
of the Jamaica stock market.




- é‘.l\. yé‘& CA “Providing A Fair, Efficient and
EXCHANGE Transparent Stock Market”

NOTICE OF 33rd ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Thirty Third (33") Annual General Meeting of the Jamaica Stock Exchange will be held
at the Jamaica Stock Exchange, 40 Harbour Street, Kingston on Thursday, June 24, 2010, commencing at 1:00 p.m. for the
following purposes:
. To Elect Directors

The Directors retiring from office by rotation pursuant to Article 103 of the Company'sArticles of Incorporation are: Mr.

Christopher Berry, Mr. Mark Croskery, Mrs. Rita-Humphries-Lewin, MissAnya Schnoorand Mrs. Jane George. Allthe
Directors, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

To consider and (ifthought fit) pass the following resolution:

“That the Directors retiring by rotation and offering themselves for re-election be re-elected en bloc.”
2. To Fix the Remuneration of the Auditors

To fix the remuneration of the Auditors or to determine the manner in which such remuneration is to be fixed.

To consider and (ifthought fit) pass the following Resolution:

“That the Directors be and are hereby authorized to fix the remuneration of the Auditors at a figure to be agreed with them.”
3. ToAdopt the Audited Financial Statements

To receive, the Audited Group Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2009, together with the Directors'
and Auditors'Reports.

To consider and (ifthought fit) pass the following Resolution:

“That the Audited Group Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2009, and the Reports of the Directors and
Auditors be adopted.”

4, To Fix the Fees of the Directors
To fix the fees of the Directors or to determine the manner in which such fees are to be fixed.
To consider and (ifthought fit) pass the following Resolution:
“That the Directors be and are hereby authorized to fix their fees for the fiscal period 2010/2011.”

51 To transact any other ordinary business of the company.

BY ORDER OF THE BOARD

Marlene J. Street-Forrest
Secretary
Dated: April 15, 2010

IMPORTANT NOTE FOR MEMBERS WHOARE NOT ABLE TO ATTEND:

A member entitled to attend and vote at the meeting can appoint a Proxy to vote on his behalf. The person so authorized shall be entitled
to exercise the same powers as the member whom he represents.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

The Directors' submit herewith the Statement of Consolidated Revenue Expenses, Profit, Assets and Liabilities of the Jamaica
Stock Exchange and its wholly owned subsidiary, the Jamaica Central Securities Depository for the year ended December 31,
2009.

Operating Revenue for the year was $158,971 compared to the revenue of $470,270 for 2008, a decrease of 66%. Investment
Income was $104,416m compared to $91,027m, an increase of 13.389% over 2008.

Total expenses for the year decreased by 6.3% to $283.2min 2009. There was a deficit from operation of $84,742m compared
toasurplus of $173,977min 2008.

Total assets of the company and its subsidiary as at December 31, 2009 were $1,209,643m compared to $1,332,628m for
2008. These figures include Compensation Fund Asset of $510,134m and $544,281m for 2008 and 2009 respectively.
Shareholders equity increase by $39,910m from $914,217mto $954,127m.

The auditors, Deloitte and Touche have signified their willingness to continue in office.

Mr. Curtis Martin
Chairman
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
PROFILES OF DIRECTORS

Mr. Curtis Martin - Chairman

Mr. Curtis Martin is Deputy Group President of the Capital &
Credit Financial Group, as well as President & CEO of Capital
& Credit Merchant Bank (CCMB) and Capital & Credit
Securities Ltd. (CCSL). He is an Investment Banker with over
29 years experience in the financial services sector. As Bank
President, Mr. Martin has responsibility for CCMB's strategic
and Operational development, and its day-to-day
management. Since 2006 he has been appointed Chairman
of the Jamaica Stock Exchange.

Curtis holds a B.Sc. (Hons.) in Management Studies from the
University of the West Indies and an MBA in Finance from
Columbia University.

He is married with two (2) children and is very keen on
spending time with his family. His interest includes Bee
Keeping and International Finance.

Mr. Edwin McKie

Mr. McKie is the Chairman and Managing
Director of M/VL Stockbrokers Limited. Mr.
McKie, who was awarded the Order of
Distinction  Commander Class for his
services to Jamaica in the field of banking, is
a former trade administrator and former
Chairman of the Trade Board and the
Agriculture Credit Bank. He also served as a
Board Member of the National Investment
Bank of Jamaica and the Bank of Jamaica.
He currently serves on the Board of the
Development Bank of Jamaica. Mr. McKie is
the Chairman of the Corporate Governance
Committee of the JSE.

Mrs. Rita Humpries-Lewin

Mrs. Humphries-Lewin is a past
Chairman of the JSE and is the Founder
and Chairman of the Barita Group of
Companies which includes Barita
Investments Limited, Barita Unit Trusts
Management Company Limited and
Barita Portfolio Management Company
Limited. She is one of the pioneers of
the stockbroking industry having been
in the business for approximately thirty-
five (35) years.
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Mr. Donovan Perkins

Mr. Donovan Perkins is the President
& CEO of Pan Caribbean Financial
Services Limited (PCFS). In addition
to serving on the Boards within Pan
Caribbean, Mr. Perkins serves on the
Boards of Pan-Jamaican Investment
Trust Ltd., First Jamaica Investments
Ltd., Jamaica Producers Group Ltd.,
National Insurance Fund and the
National Water Commission. Heis an
active executive of the financial
services community, having served as
Vice President of the Jamaica Bankers
Association and the Private Sector
Organization of Jamaica.

Mr. Allan Lewis

m Mr. Mark Croskery
¢ v & Mr. Mark Croskery is the President & CEO of Stocks

& Securities Ltd (SSL) and serves as a Company
Specific Director. Mr. Croskery is responsible for the
Company's growth, profitability and strategic vision
to make SSL the leading provider of Global Wealth
Management solutions to Jamaicans.

Mr. Croskery previously interned at Prudential
Financial, Inc. (now Wachovia Securities) in Miami,
Florida on the fixed income desk before going on to
being the leading Wealth Manager at National
Commercial Bank Capital Markets Ltd. (NCB CM) as
wellas an Equity Trader.

Mr. Croskery serves as a Director on the Sugar
Company of Jamaica (SCJ) where he serves on the
Finance and Audit Sub-Committee, as a
Commissioner on the Jamaica Racing Commission
(JRC) where he serves on the Finance and Audit
Sub-Committee and on the Island Ice & Beverage
Company (Jamaica).

Mr. Christopher Williams

Mr. Allan Lewis is the Senior Vice President, Group
Strategy, of the Victoria Mutual Group Limited
where he has served for the past 3 years. Prior to
this, Mr. Lewis served as Managing Director of
Prime Asset Management Limited, where he is
currently a Director. Mr. Lewis has had a
distinguished career in life insurance and pension
fund risk management, asset management, and
strategic planning. He achieved the designation
Associate of the Society of Actuaries in 1986, and a
Masters in Business Administrationin 1987.

Mr. Christopher Williams is the Managing
Director of NCB Capital Markets Limited
He currently serves as Chairman of the
Jamaica Association for the Deaf, Director
of the Jamaica College Old Boys
Association, Director of the Jamaica
College Foundation, and Council Member
of the Jamaica Securities Dealers
Association.

Notwithstanding his professional
accomplishments, he is committed to supporting
the wider community. His passion for primary and
secondary education motivated him to obtain a
Masters in Education in 2002. Allan is a member of
the Kiwanis Club of North St. Andrew; a mentor for
students at the University of the West Indies and as
a member of the Board of Directors of the Mona
Preparatory School and Foundation

Mr. Williams is also a Director of several
NCB subsidiaries, these are
NCB (Cayman) Limited, NCB Investments
Limited, NCB Capital Markets (Cayman)
Limited and NCB Insurance Company
Limited.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
PROFILES OF DIRECTORS

Mr. Christopher Berry

Mr. Christopher Berry has been ths
Chairman of Mayberry Investmenis
Limited since 1993. A former Demuty
Chairman of the JSE, he sits on several
boards, including the Jamaica Central
Securities Depository, the Foresiry
Conservancy, Apex Health Carg
Associates Limited, Apex Pharmacy
Limited, Air Jamaica Limited, Jamaica
Public service Company and Planning
Institute of Jamaica.

He has over twenty years experience in
the securities industry, having joned
Mayberry Investments Limited in 1567
when he was responsible for corporat
planning and information technoloay
He subsequently led the compary's
listing on the Jamaica Stock exchange in

Mr. Robert Drummond

Mr. Robert Drummond is President of First Global
Financial Services Limited (FGFS), the securities
trading and asset management subsidiary of
GraceKennedy Limited since November 2008. As a
former Principal of GK Investments,
GraceKennedy's portfolio of financial and retail
businesses. Mr. Drummond executed acquisitions
and the launch of new businesses.

Mr. Drummond's career has included appointments
in general management, strategic planning for
Fortune 500 companies such as American Express
Company, ITT Sheraton Corp and Nike Inc.
Additionally, Mr. Drummond has spent several years
as a management consultant assisting Caribbean
and U.S. companies with strategy implementation
and business process improvement. He began his
career in public accounting with
PricewaterhouseCoopersin New York City.

He also serves as a member of the Board for First

2005. Global Financial Services Limited and the Jamaica

Stock Exchange and is currently the Vice President
of the Rotary Club of St. Andrew.

Mr. Julian Mair

Mr. Julian Mair is the Chief Investment
Strategist at Jamaica Money Market
Brokers and has over 16 years of
experience in the Jamaican financial
sector. Mr. Mair has held positions at
leading Jamaican financial institutions
including Head of Treasury and
Investment services at Dehring, Bunting
and Golding and Senior Trader and
Cambio Manager at JMMB. In addition,
Mr. Mair was formerly the Managing
Director of Lets Investment Ltd. He is a
founding member of the Jamaica
Securities Dealers Association. He
serves as a Director of JMMB Securities
Limited, JMMB International and JMMB
BDIAmerica.

Miss AnyaSchnoor

Miss Anya Schnoor is the Chief Executive
Officer of Scotia DBG Investments Limited
and the Senior Vice President of the
Scotiabank Group's Wealth Management
Division. She is also the President of the
Jamaica Securities Dealers Association and
has served as the President of the Primary
Dealers Association. She is a Director of
Scotia DBG Merchant Bank, Scotia DBG
Fund Managers and Prime Asset
Management Limited. She is also a member
of the HEART NTAFinance Committee and
sits on Scotiabank Jamaica's ALCO
Committee.
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INDEPENDENT MEMBERS OF THE JSE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Miss Dian Black

Miss Dian Black is the Director,
Securities Management (Debt
Management Unit) in the Ministry of
Finance & the Public Service. In this
capacity she has responsibility for all
aclivities related to the registrar and
payments functions for government
securities and provides the necessary
interface between the JSE and the
overnment.

She is the Chairman of the Audit and
Finance Committee of the Board of the
JSE.

Mrs. Jane George

Mrs. Jane George assumed the role of
Corporate Attorney-at-Law and Head of
the Legal Department and Corporate
Secretariat of the Lascelles, deMercado
Group of Companies in 2001. She is a
member of the Law Society of England &
Wales and the Jamaican Bar Association.

Mrs. George, who has approximately 20
years experience and expertise in the
legal profession in Jamaica and the
United Kingdom, joined the Board of the
Jamaica Stock Exchange in 2008. She
sits on the Regulatory and Market
Oversight Committee and the Conduct
Review Committee of the Board.

Mr. Garth Kiddoe

Mr. Kiddoe is the former Dean of lh&
Faculty of Business and Management
at the University of Technolagy,
Jamaica and previously the Chief
Financial Officer at the Jamaica Puliic
Service Company Limited. He is the
immediate past President of the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of
the Caribbean as well as its
representative on the Board of Trustzes
of the Caribbean Court of Justice Trust
Fund. He is a Past President of ihs
Institute of Chartered Accountants of
Jamaica and of the Jamaica Instituticn
of Engineers. Mr. Kiddoe is the former
Chairman of the Audit and Finance
Committee of the Board of the JSE.

Mr. Livingstone Morrison

Mr. Livingstone Morrison is the
Deputy Governor of the Bank of
Jamaica with responsibility for
Finance and Technology, Payment
Systems, Investment and Risk
Management.

Mr. Morrison joined the staff of the
Bank of Jamaica in 1982 and worked
for several years in the Financial
Institutions Supervisory Division.

Between 1998 and 2002, Mr. Morrison
served as the Division Chief of the
Finance and Technology Division,
with core responsibilities for strategic
management of the accounting,
finance, and information and
communication technology functions
of the Bank. Mr. Morrison is also a
Director of the Jamaica Central
Securities Depository.
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INDEPENDENT MEMBERS OF THE JSE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

(Cont’d)

Miss Nicole Lambert

Ms. Lambert is a consummate professional with
nineteen years experience in various aspects of
the practice of law including commercial and
conveyancing transactions, litigation and
arbitration proceedings and the administration of
pension funds, trusts and estates. Her
experience of practice in the Private and Public
Sectors, has yielded exceptional technical skills
and a unique value-added perspective supported by influential contacts.

Ms. Lambert is the holder of a Bachelor of Laws (Upper Second Class
Honours) from the University of the West Indies; a Certificate of Legal
Education from the Norman Manley Law School; a Diploma in Business
Administration from the Institute of Management and Production,
Jamaica; and a Master of Laws (Commercial and Corporate Law) from
the London School of Economics and Palitical Science.

Ms. Lambert's professional experience is as varied as itis accomplished.

At present, she is a Consultant Attorney-at-Law in the Commercial
Department of Samuda & Johnson, Attorneys-at-Law where she acts as
Counselin a variety of commercial and corporate transactions including,
corporate acquisitions, loan and corporate financing, commercial real
estate and construction development, and the administration of estates
and pension funds.

Mrs. Marlene Street Forrest

Mrs. Marlene Street-Forrest is the
General Manager of the Jamaica Stock
Exchange. Mrs. Street-Forrest has a
B.Sc. in Management Studies and an
MBA. She has over twenty five years of
combined experience in financial and
general management. Her mandate as
General Manager of the JSE, is to
continue the process of developing the
Exchange, ensuring that cutting edge
technology is used to assist in providing
the greatest level of efficiencies in the
market. Mrs. Street-Forrest, who is a
Justice of the Peace, serves as
Secretary of the Board of the JSE and a
Director of the Jamaica Central
Securities Depository Ltd.

JSE BOARD COMMITTEES 2009/2010

LISTING & STANDARDS COMMITTEE
Chairman:Mr. Curtis Martin
Mrs. Rita Humphries-Lewin
Mrs. Marlene Street-Forrest
Mr. Livingstone Morrison

JSEMEMBERSHIP COMMITTEE
Chairman:Mr. Livingstone Morrison
Miss Dian Black
Mr. Garth Kiddoe
Mrs. Jane George
Miss Nicole Lambert

COMPENSATION COMMITTEE

Chairman:Mr. Curtis Martin
Mr. Garth Kiddoe
Mr. Donovan Perkin
Mr. Mark Croskery

REGULATORY AND MARKET OVERSIGHT COMMITTEE
Chairman:Mr. Livingstone Morrison
Miss Dian Black
Mr. Garth Kiddoe
Mrs. Jane George
Miss Nicole Lambert

AUDIT & FINANGE COMMITTEE
Chairman:Miss Dian Black
Mr. Garth Kiddoe
Mr. Ed McKie (or alternate Dr. Derrick McKoy)
Mr. Allan Lewis
Mr. Livingstone Morrison
Mrs. Jane George
Mr. Mark Croskery

NOMINATING COMMITTEE

Chairman:Mr. Curtis Martin
Mr. Livingstone Morrison
Mrs. Marlene Street Forrest

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
Chairman:Mr. Garth Kiddoe

Mr. Ed McKie (or alternate Dr. D. McKoy)
Miss Anya Schnoor
Mrs. Marlene Street Forrest

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

Chairman:Mr. Curtis Martin

Mr. Christopher Berry

Mr. Ed McKie

Mr. Julian Mair

Mrs. Marlene Street Forrest
Mr. Robin Levy
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THE MANAGEMENT TEAM

From left to right:

Miss Michelle Sirdar - Manager, Registrar Services (JCSD)

Mrs. Beulah Johnson - Manager, Equity Operations (JCSD)

Mr. Robin Levy - General Manager, JCSD & Deputy General Manager, JSE
Miss Riccalya Robb - Trading Officer

Mrs. Marlene Street Forrest
Miss Josephine Lewis

Miss Suzette McNaught
Mrs. Doreen Parsons Smith

General Manager, JSE

Manager, Trustee Services (JCSD)

Manager, Information Technology & Systems
Human Resources Officer

Mr. Wentworth Graham - Chief Regulatory Officer
Mrs. Suzette Whyte - Accounting Manager
Mr. Neville Ellis - Senior Marketing Officer
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Mr. Curtis Martin
Chairman

From the Chairman's Desk

Economic Outlook

2009 saw the deepening of the global recession which began in 2008 and
which had its genesis in the US financial market. The continued recession
affected the Jamaican economy in every sphere. The impact was felt in all
areas of the productive sector but primarily in the areas of mining, remittance
and the tourism sectors. This resulted in rising unemployment rate from 11% in
2008 to 14.5% in 2009. The country's Gross Domestic Product also declined
by 4%. Additionally, the country's public debt ballooned to 131.7% of GDP in
2009 from 116.3% in 2008, a 15.4% increase. However, a positive indicator
was that of inflation which declined by 13.4%, falling from 22% in 2008 to 8.6%
in 2009.

The Government towards the end of the year took a very bold step to reduce
the country's debt servicing by introducing the Jamaica Debt Exchange (JDX)
Programme. It is expected that this should go a far way in reducing interest
rates and stimulate the economy in 2010.

Junior Market

The Jamaica Stock Exchange realized from the onset that 2009 would have
been a very challenging year for the Jamaican economy on a whole and
business in particular. Therefore, we concentrated on long term strategies that
will ensure continued growth of the market. The establishment of the Junior
Market to allow small and medium size companies to raise capital on the
market was one such initiative.

Members of the Board

| would like to say special thanks for the support of the Board Members
throughout the year. During a difficult year the support of our team, was of
utmost importance. We were able as a team that is, members of the Board,
Management and Staff, to keep the Jamaica Stock Exchange at the forefront of
the economy by the continual delivery of quality service and provide the level of
disclosures required for a vibrant capital market despite the tremors. The
Board members continued the work from 2008 to ensure that the Junior Market
was up and running in 2009. We achieved this result very early in the year,
which shows that team work is fundamental to great achievements.

Vision 2010

We used the opportunity throughout the year to continue to lay the
foundation for growth and development in 2010, preparing for an upsurge in
the market in 2010 by implementing several measures one of which is the
continued education for the industry.

We recognized that there is a need for continuous education within the market.

We will be moving to establish our e-Learning campus to allow professionals
within and outside of the industry to have access to training online.

(Continued)
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From the Chairman's Desk (Contd)

We will also be looking to grow the markets by having increased listing on the Junior Market and the Main Market to allow for
more choice in stocks and more growth in the economy. We realized that with the JDX coming on stream in 2010, investors will
be looking to the Stock Market for investment opportunities and we want to be in position to offer these opportunities to our
investors. The same will be true for business owners as the economy gets more difficult, persons will turn to equity financing
and this will make the Junior Market very attractive, given the tax benefits.

Although we are expecting the challenges which were encountered in 2009 to continue in 2010/11 period as the fallout
continues in the global market place. We are, however, quite optimistic that the worst is behind us and we are putting in place
the elements that will allow for a quick turnaround, as soon as there are improvements in the market place. We endevour to
provide a fair, efficient and transparent stock market as an integral part of the growth of the capital market

Financial Highlights

The year ended December 31, 2009 saw the continuation of the challenges from 2008 which were reflected in the Company's
Consolidated Financial Statements. The Company's Financial Statements show that Operating Income for 2009 was $159
million representing a decline of $311 million or 66% over the figure of $470 million recorded for the previous year. Net surplus
for 2009 was $43 million down from $207 million; a decline of $164 million or 79.3%. Investment Income was $104 million, up
from $91 millionin 2008.

The main index ended the year at 83,321.96 points, up by 3,169.93 points or 3.95% from the close in 2008 of 80,152.03
points. The slight improvement in the index of 3.95% resulted from increased activities towards the end of the year.

Mr. Curtis A. Martin
Chairman
Jamaica Stock Exchange
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Chairman's Report, Regulatory & Market Oversight Committee

Mr. Livingstone Morrison
Chairman

2009 Market Oversight Report

The 2009 Annual Report provides an opportunity for sharing information on the
strategies being pursued by the Regulatory and Market Oversight Committee
(RMOC) of the Jamaica Stock Exchange (JSE), towards delivering its mission
which is to promote market transparency, integrity and efficiency by protecting and
advancing stakeholders' welfare through the enforcement of rules, market
surveillance, broker inspections and the assessment of market documents and
financial statements.

Following the demutualization of the Exchange in 2007 and the establishment of
the regulatory framework, supported by the creation of the RMOC to which the
Board of the JSE delegated all regulatory responsibilities, significant steps have
been taken towards separation of the commercial activities from the regulatory
functions of the Exchange. The RMOC which is comprised of independent directors
ofthe Exchange, and which is inits second year of existence, has been focused on:

1. Structuring and directing the regulatory functions of the Exchange;

2. Monitoring the adequacy and effectiveness of the regulatory programme of
the Exchange and assessing regulatory performance;

3. Reviewing the rules of the Exchange to ensure consistency with current
international standards;

4. Monitoring compliance by market participants and listed companies;
5. Monitoring trading activities by member dealers; and
6. Enforcingthe rules of the Exchange.

As we administer these activities, we have been mindful of the need to build sound
institutional arrangements to support the effective discharge of the functions. Itisin
this context that significant time and attention was devoted during the year to
streamlining the work processes of the Regulatory and Market Oversight
Department (RMOD) which is responsible for administering the day-to-day
regulatory and market oversight functions. Reporting arrangements covering all
regulatory activities have also been established and implemented to ensure that the
independent directors of the RMOC are provided with all relevant information on
market activities and rule compliance on a timely basis. In this context, there was a
43% increase in regulatory activities during the year in review when compared to
2008. Further, the programme for inspection of member dealer operations was fully

(Continued)
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Chairman's Report, Regulatory & Market Oversight Committee
2009 Market Oversight Report (Contd)

administered during the year in addition to which a new Compliance Management System was launched and new guidelines
covering Management Discussion and Analysis prepared for early implementation.

The members of the RMOC are satisfied with the level of independence, having regard to the effective separation of the
regulatory activities from the commercial activities of the Exchange, and the steps taken to ensure the transparency and
integrity of regulatory processes. During the year ahead we will continue our work towards modification, refinement and
enhancement of rules, supervision and market surveillance. In addition, we continue to invest in the building regulatory
capacity to include the enhancement of the regulatory framework to accord with changes in international best practices and
the recruitment and retention of staff that are appropriately trained to deliver on the regulatory imperatives.

Mr. Livingstone Morrison.
Chairman
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Audit and Finance Committee Report
The Jamaica Stock Exchange and Its Subsidiaries

The Audit & Finance Committee continues its mandate (which includes risk regulations) to ensure that there was good
oversight and governance of the company's finances. The Committee's main focus for 2009 was on investments and internal
audit review in order to ensure compliance of the company's policy guideline in respect to effective management of the
company's finances. Throughout the year the Committee worked assiduously on the strengthening of policies relating to
counter party transactions, internal audit reviews, Investment, IT programme and software development.

Internal Audit

In relation to internal audit, the Committee focused primarily on areas of cash management, Trustee Services (a new division)
and Equity Operations to ensure that all areas were efficiently managed and that there were effective uses of the company's
resources.

Stock Exchange Benchmarking Activities

The Audit & Finance Committee was also charged with the responsibility of ensuring that the Stock Exchange was performing
within the guidelines of international standards. In order to ensure proper benchmarking in respect to comparative ratio, the
Committee undertook major research activities both regionally and globally, the result of which was used as a measuring tool to
guide the Exchange activities.

Rationalization Programme

Given the global economic crises which impacted the Exchange there was the need for effective rationalization measure and
the Audit and Finance Committee was given this responsibility. The Committee was able to effectively monitor the
rationalization programme which allowed the Exchange to weather the storm of the global financial meltdown and emerged at
the end of 2009 a stronger organization.

Composition of the Committee

The current members of the Committee are :-
e DianBlack (Chair)

Ed McKie

Allan Lewis

Mark Croskery

Livingstone Morrison

Jane George

Sixteen meetings were held during the year with satisfactory attendance from all members.
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Ms DlanBlack
Chairman
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Compensation Committee Report
The Jamaica Stock Exchange and Its Subsidiaries

The Compensation Committee of the JSE is made up exclusively of non-executive directors and is chaired by the Chairman of
the Board Mr. Curtis Martin. Other members of the committee are:

e Mr. Garth Kiddoe
e Mr. Donovan Perkins
e Mr. Mark Croskery

The committee's mandate is to make recommendations on the Company's framework of executive remuneration. The
Committee reviews and approves corporate goals in relation to the CEO's compensation; evaluates the CEQO's performance in
light of the company's goals and objectives and makes recommendations to the Board with respect to executive and non-
executive compensation.

Directors' fee, which is normally paid to non-Executive Members of the Company, totaled $7.14M during the 2009 period.

Mr. Curtis A. Martin
Chairman
Jamaica Stock Exchange
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The JSE GROUP '
2009 Management's Discussion and Analysis

Executive Summary

The Jamaica Stock Exchange Group is comprised of the Jamaica Stock Exchange Limited (JSE), Jamaica Central Securities
Depository Limited (JCSD) and JCSD Trustee Services Limited (JCSDTS). This Management Discussion and Analysis
(MD&A) of the JSE Group's financial condition and results of its operations is provided to enable stakeholders to assess the
financial health, material changes and results of its operation for the year ended December 31, 2009. It provides information on
liquidity and capital resources and gives a comparative examination of the current year under review against the previous
year's performance. The MD&A should be read in conjunction with our Audited Financial Statements and must be considered
as complimentary information to that which is provided in the audited statements and the accompanying notes there to. The
information presented is based on the best judgment of management, taking into consideration all our internal systems and
controls, our plans and the present programmes and policies that are being pursued.

The JSE, which completed its demutualization process in 2007, floated Variable Preference Shares in the marketin May 2008
and was listed on its own Exchange on June 30, 2008. This signaled the beginning of a new era in the Exchange's history, with
a step towards more direct and widespread public ownership. New line items in our financial statements, such as dividend
payments for both preference shareholders and ordinary shareholders, have their origins in this development.

For further information and in keeping with the JSE Listing Requirement, financial information is also available on the JSE
Website www.jamstockex.com.

Executive Summary of Vision, Strategies and Priorities:

The vision, strategies and priorities of the individual companies, that is the Jamaica Stock Exchange, Jamaica
Central Securities Depository and JCSD Trustee Services, are complementary and aligned to the overarching
objective of facilitating capital market growth and development. The JSE Group of companies ensure that the trading
and settlement of different types of securities on a secure and efficient platform are realized.

Our Vision:
To be among the leading stock exchanges and securities depositories within the Caribbean Region; providing the best
operating electronically trading and settlement platforms offering a wide range of products and services.

Our Priorities:
° Grow & Innovate

We have pursued a path of developing products and services that will be attractive to the market, both to investors
wanting to investin regulated investments and to companies who must look at low-cost equity financing to spur growth
of their companies. The plan takes into consideration the need to ensure that the Group diversifies its revenue stream,
capitalizing on products that are complementary to the business of Exchanges and setting a path for revenue stability
ina'bull'or'bear' market.

We will match solid product offerings with good product delivery, as we compete vigorously for market share within the
financial services market.
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2009 Management's Discussion and Analysis (Cont'd)

Summary of Long Term Vision includes:

> Offering Regionally and Globally diversified products

> Commitment to high standards of transparency and governance

> Continuously improving Shareholder Value

> To set a strong foundation in all critical divisions and subsidiaries to allow for long-term

growth and development
To enhance the attractiveness of the equities market to investors and businesses
To build internal competences and be among the top employers of choice in Jamaica

To be considered a partner that is essential to Nation building

Y V V V

To forge key regional and global partnerships in furtherance of these goals

Summary of Our Performance Measurements

> High Customer and Employee Satisfaction

> Financial measurement including growth and profitability targets, net profit and return on
equity

> Diversification of products and services scoring at 50:50 split with progressively less

emphasis on equities contributions

> Increase in listings on the Main & Junior Exchanges

Market Conditions and Outlook

Regional and Global Capital Markets continue to be battered by the events which started in 2008 and the market continued to
be affected by local and Global economic crises. The Government and the Bank of Jamaica, while putting in place measures to
stem the pressures brought about by the crisis, have been unable to prevent the fall-out in many of the major industries within
the Country. Consequently this has affected both business and consumer confidence and has had a negative impact on the
Stock Exchange. Investors seem to have burrowed further into a non-investment mode while business owners, which were
poised to list their companies on the main market, largely took a 'wait and see' mode.

The market was not without its positives however, as the launch of the Junior Stock Market was widely hailed as an excellent
vehicle for raising capital, with the added benefit of the most effective tax shield for small and medium sized business. The
prospects for listing and contributions to employment, business development and the Economy will continue well into the year
2010 and beyond.

The JSE Group's normal operating revenue, which does not include any large one-off block transactions due to activities such
as mergers and acquisitions, are highly dependent upon the level of market activities on our exchange. These activities are
measured by looking at volume and value traded, number of transactions, market capitalization of the securities and number of
listings on the Exchange. The Exchange benefitted from the listing of one main market listing and one Junior Market listing in
2009. JCSD and JCSDTS lead the way for diversification of revenue during the year through the provision of registrar and
trustee services respectively to the business community, registering significant success in growing revenue and increasing
those Companies' profitability. Indicative industry demand is that both lines of business are expected to continue their growth
trends throughout 2010.
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We think it is fair to say that 2010 will still see signs of an economy that is just beginning to fully address the issues of the global
meltdown, which would have impacted many of the companies listed on the Exchange. Therefore despite the expected internal
and external developments, the corresponding benefits to our revenue and profitability will not be seen until 2011 and beyond.

2009 Management's Discussion and Analysis (Cont'd)

(The Market Conditions and Outlook section above contains certain forward-looking statements)

Market Operations & Trading

Over the 253 trading days in 2009, total volume of ordinary units traded amounted to 1.66 billion valued at J$11.5 billion. In
comparison to 2008, this was a decrease in volume of 633.61 million or 27.60% and a decrease of $12.86 billion or 52.77% in
value traded. The total number of ordinary transactions for 2009 was 16,029, a decrease of 14,283 or 47.12% when compared
to the previous year. The total number of all shares traded in volume and value for the year was 1.76 billion units and $12.19
billion, respectively, being fairly consistent in being below prior year levels throughout the year, as evidenced at chart 1 below.
This included block market activity which registered trade volumes of over 102.7 million units valued at $675.70 million.

In 2009, market capitalization decreased marginally by approximately $52.4 billion or 8.77% of total to close at $544.88 billion
in December 2009. The decline was largely due to generally bearish market conditions continuing throughout the year, but
more significantly because of two de-listings during the year (Goodyear Jamaica and Sagicor Financial Corporation). The
sharper downward trend of 2008 as opposed to the shallower decline of 2009 is quite evidentin Chart 2.

(Continue on next page)
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As at the end of 2009: the JSE Index advanced by 3,169.93 points to close at 83,321.96 points, per Chart 3 below; the All
Jamaican Composite Index declined by 2,999.16 points to close at 70,995.77 points; and the JSE Select Index declined by
88.69 points to close at 1,896.05 points, in comparison to the 2008 year end closing indices. There were two new indices that |

were introduced in 2009: the Cross Listed Index, comprising of the cross listed companies on the JSE, that began on March 2, i

2010; and the Junior Market Index that was launched on April 2, 2010 but not engaged until our first listing in October. The
Cross Listed Index declined by 37.08 points or 3.71% to close at 962.92 points whilst the Junior Market Index advanced by
50.01 points or 50.01% to close at 150.01 points.

The performance of the market for 2009 was also captured in an advance/decline ratio and capital appreciation. The

Chart 3

advance/decline ratio indicated that a total of 18 ordinary stocks advanced and 19 declined, while no ordinary stock registered
unchanged prices. For 2009, 1 company experienced price appreciation of 100% from the 18 stocks that had advanced during
the year. Table 1 (below) shows the top advancers and decliners for 2009, while the succeeding Charts indicate the recent five
years of JSE trading history.
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Table 1 - Top Advancers and Decliners for 2009
WINNERS % LOSERS %

Ciboney Limited
Jamaica Broilers Group
PanCaribbean Financial Services 50.83%
Pan Jamaican Investment Trust 44.00%

100.00%
55.00%

Sagicor Life Jamaica 25.36%
Montego Freeport 22.58%
Salada Foods Jamaica 19.23%
FirstCaribbean International 17.94%
Pegasus Hotel 17.59%
Jamaica Producers Group 12.57%

Hardware & Lumber

Jamaica Money Market Brokers
Berger Paints (Jamaica)
FirstCaribbean Intl Jamaica Bank
Kingston Wharves

Lascelles deMercado & Co

Radio Jamaica

Gleaner Company

Cable & Wireless (Jamaica)
Mobay Ice Company Limited

65.00%
45.58%
40.00%
39.52%
35.83%
34.73%
33.00%
32.95%
24.00%
21.65%

Peints

Millions

Chart 3 Recent Five Year History of Trading Data
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2009 Management's Discussion and Analysis (Cont'd)

Overview of the Business

Both the Jamaica Stock Exchange and its subsidiary, the Jamaica Central Securities Depository, are licensed by the Financial
Services Commission to operate. The JSE and JCSD operate electronic trading and settlement platforms through a service
licensing agreement with reputable exchange service providers NASDAQ/OMX. The JSE boasts the most listings of equity
securities within the English-speaking Caribbean.

44 listed companies comprised of thirty eight (38) Ordinary Securities (37 listed on the JSE Main Market and 1 listed on
the JSE Junior Market) and nineteen (19) Preference Securities. Trading activities are concentrated in the Ordinary
and Preference Shares.

The JSE is the primary venue for the raising of equity capital in Jamaica. The total market capitalization as at
December 2009 was J$544.88 billion. The top five stocks were in the banking and insurance sectors and represented
67.3% of overall market capitalization.

The JSE maintains five main indices:

(i) The JSE Market Index

(i) The JSE All Jamaican Composite
(i) The JSE Select

(iv) The JSE Cross-Listed Index

(v) The JSE Junior Market Index

The JSE Main Index is a market-weighted index comprising ordinary shares of all listed companies. The All Jamaican
Composite Index measures the performance of Jamaican Companies only while the JSE Select Index measures the
performance of the JSE's 15 most liquid securities. The JSE Cross-Listed Index measures the performance of the
companies registered outside of Jamaica and the JSE Junior Market Index measures the performance of the
companies listed on the Junior Market.

The JSE launched its Junior Market for small and medium sized companies who wish to raise between $50 million and
$500 million via the market and whose stated capital will not exceed $500 million in October 2009. This exciting
proposition has enjoyed the full support of the Government of Jamaica as evidenced by Cabinet approval of a total of
ten (10) years of tax exemptions on profits of these companies.

Year Ended December 31,2009 Compared withYear Ended December 31,2008

Net Surplus

The Net Surplus of the JSE Group for the year 2009 of $ 43.0 million represented a marked decrease of $164.69
million against the previous year. Income from Operations of $159 million was lower than the previous year's $470
million because income from trading activities continued to decrease and the Group did not have any significant one-
off transactions to augment regular trading activities, as had been the case in the prior year. Investment Income
increased by 14.7% however, from $91.0 million in 2008 to $104.4 million in 2009.

Surplus & Earnings Per Share

The Deficit derived from Operations was $17.03 million, or -$0.61 per common share, for 2009, as compared with
2008's Surplus derived from Operations of $173.6 million or $6.19 per stock unit for 2008. As we had pointed out last
year, the Group was not expecting similarly high surplus or earnings per share in 2009, the negative bottom-line result,
which has a direct correlation to the global financial crisis and a downturn in the economy, is of great concern to the
management.
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Revenue

o The bulk of the earnings of the Group are from Cess Earnings, but with the ongoing JSE Group strategy of
revenue stream diversification, Income from seminars, publication, registrar, trustee and other services such
as market data sale is increasingly becoming a significant factor.

o The following table and charts provide a visual representation of the Core Business of the JSE Group. We

primarily derive income from trading and settlement, listing fees, pledge fees, investment income and other

related activities.

Table 2 JSE Group Revenue 2007 through 2009

ar (1

1

Memiberstap Fes
1%
Trmnenarion
&l =
== Tlembers &
Fagrar s " Attormey

1| o
. [

2009 2008 2007
Cess 50,240,333 260,273,357 110,259,983
Fee Income
Annual Listing 40,805,566 36,084,823 32,726,700
Initial Listing 563,371 3,651,500 1,676,700
Supplementary Listing 154,928 699,642 389,091
Members & Attorney 7,500 17,500 12,500
Transaction 16,416,667 111,428,422 17,947,404
Maintenance 1,390,500 1,400,650 1,459,515
Trade Data 2,662,436 2,974,779 2,961,478
Registrar 6,373,902 4,409,732 3,682,287
Trustee 5,566,008 1,144,952
Membership Fee 1,325,000 1,124,000 1,639,800
Other Operating
Income
Regional Conference 12,180,000 13,255,000 11,628,000
Other Income 21,285,000 33,806,000 21,506,000
Investment Income 104,416,000 91,027,000 34,908,000
TOTAL 263,387,211 561,297,358 240,797,458

Chart 4a
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Chart 4b Chart 4c
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The Group is organized into four main business segments, namely:

(a) Exchange operations which deal with the operations and regulation of the exchange.

(b) Depository Services which are involved with the transferring and holding of securities,
shares, stocks, bonds and debentures.

(c) Investment Compensation Fund - Income derived from investing activities of the
Compensation Fund.

(d) Investment Other Income derived from investing activities of the Group with the exception

of (c).
(e) Other- Trustee, custodianship, company management and other activities

Trustee Services represents the latest addition to the number and types of services offered and we believe this is a
growth area given the synergies to be derived from the Exchange and Depository operations and from the increase in
demand for trustee services with Jamaica and the Caribbean region.

Expenditure

Management has held the Group's over-all expenditure tight, in keeping with commitments to rationalize expenditure. In order
to accomplish this, activities were restructured, resulting in job enlargements, a freeze on replacements and the hiring of only
mission critical employees. All other key areas of expenditure were examined to ensure that the best method of achieving the
result could be done at the lowest price. Total Expenditure in 2009 of $243.7 million was lower than 2008's $296.3 million. This
represented a 17.7% decrease over 2008 and further represented a cut in expenditure in real terms, factoring in the prevailing
inflation rate. Securities Commission Fee showed the most in marked decrease by $49.0 million or 82.7%. The only significant
increase was that of Staff Costs, which increased by $4.89 million or 4.3%.
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Staff Costs

It was not possible to complete the exercise we began in 2008, that ofimplementing all the recommendations made by
the consulting firm in respect to the Compensation Audit Review. Staff appreciated the necessity to restrain all areas of
expenditure including salaries and even agreed to a voluntary roll-back of increases that had been granted earlier in
the year, towards this end.

Advertising & Promotion

Critical to the growth and development of the Group is the education of both investors and persons within the listed
companies and companies that have the potential for listing. As a direct result of our strategy to grow involvementin the
stock market, the Group is now in aggressive mode to impart the message of the importance of the capital market and
the benefits to be derived by market players.

Securities Commission Fee

This is a function of the level of Cess Revenue earned. The Exchange levies 0.393 of 1% of the value of each
transaction on the market and the Financial Services Commission (FSC) earns 0.08% of this amount. In 2009, the
Cess Revenue was $50,240 million compared to $260,273 million in 2008, precipitating a sharp decrease in the
amount paid to the FSC from $59,178 million in 2008 to $10,219 million for the current year under review.

Rationalization of Expenditure

The Exchange plans to continue to relentlessly pursue a course of expense rationalization; ensuring that monies
expended provides the highest return on investment. We have successfully done so over the years and more so within
2009. The Group sees this drive to efficiency as one of the major lynchpins of our operations.

Revenue Reserves

The Group's Revenue Reserves decreased in 2009 to $255.3 million from $272.4 million in 2008 due to a net deficit of
$17.0 million derived from operations.

Five Year Financial Highlights

The table below shows the steep drop in revenue in 2009 after an increase in 2008 and consecutive declines in 2005 and 2006.
Profit showed a significant decline in 2009 over 2008 due primarily to the one-off transaction in 2008, which positively affected
that year's performance. In addition, the bull market and the global market conditions affected the year 2009. Where there are
only three years of comparison, this reflects the data upon the JSE being demutualized. Please refer to table and graphs below:

Table 3 Five Year Financial Highlights

2005 2006 2007 2008 2009
Revenue ($000) 313,590 294,515 240,797 561,297 263,387
Surplus/(Deficit ) * 114,213 8,213 44,116 207,703 43,019
Surplus derived from
Operations 25,167 34,114 (17,033)
Earnings per share $ 0.68 6.19 (0.61)

*

includes Compensation Fund
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The Group's overall risk management strategies have been re-examined and reworked in light of the environmental
factors that have affected the Exchange and will continue to be a factorin the ensuing years.

Of primary concern is the Group's dependence on income derived from equity trading or investment income could prove
detrimental to solvency and long-term viability. This is especially true given the Government's policy programme aimed
at reducing interest rates on Government securities. The Group's revenue base is now heavily dependent on member-
dealers creating new products and participating in those that are internally driven for growth. The possible absence of
high yielding Government of Jamaica Securities in the future will have implications for many member-dealers' overall
business models, for the Exchange's dependence on low-risk but high-yield investments and for the entire financial

services industry.

Investments

Management, through the Group's Investment Committee, continues to manage and review its investment portfolios
in line with the Investments Policy Guidelines, which are also periodically reviewed by the Audit & Finance
Committee of the Board. The Investment Management Committee receives and review data on current market
conditions and economic outlook; review various risk reports submitted including fair value, interest risk, liquidity risk,

currency risk and market risk. Meetings are held at least on a monthly basis.

Analytical skill and financially

nimbleness are increasingly important for the effective management of portfolios in volatile investment climates

such asours.
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Other Operational Risk Mitigation Strategies

IT Risk Mitigation Strategies

The Company's principal business activities rely on trading activities in the Market and by nature are subject to
various risks including systems downtime, which may result in loss of productivity, revenue and confidence in the
market. Consequently, redundancies, data protection measures, security measures and policies to ensure more
resilient and secure systems have been putin place by Management to ensure 100% availability during business
hours, as achieved for 2009.

Other IT-based risks is also minimized through appropriate segregation of duties, requisite training, adherence to
implemented polices, internal audits, continuing review and update of policies and close management oversight.

The JSE has adopted the IT Governance Framework, Cobit4.1, which ensures that IT and business strategies are
aligned to achieve the following objectives:

e Use of IT to enable the organization by exploiting opportunities and maximizing benefits;
e Responsible use of IT resources;
e Appropriate managementof IT relates risks

Group Medium and Long Term Strategies

Due to the global financial meltdown, the negative impact of the unregulated schemes on the Jamaica economy, the high
interest rates that have prevailed for much of the last 2 years and the reduction of investor confidence in the market, the
exchange are faced with the significant challenge of attracting new entrants to the market and retaining current market players.
Market uncertainties have created new challenges but within them exist new opportunities. We believe that all our
stakeholders have come to appreciate the need for greater market information, education, regulation and product
diversification. To this end, the focus will be on the continuation of the following activities:

o Increased market educational activities through companies' and investors' outreach, school programmes and
training of market intermediaries.

° The continued focused through the JSE independent Regulatory and Market Oversight Division of Market Surveillance
and Member Dealer Inspection. The implementation of the State of the Art Surveillance System in 2009 was a welcome
addition to the slate of tools used by this division.

o More product offerings: through the sale of market data; the development of and maintenance of new indices; and
derivative products.

° Growing the Junior Market for the Small & Medium Sized Companies.
o Expansion and Growth of Registrar and Trustee Services
° The operational integration of our regional exchanges through the Caribbean Exchange Network

. Utilization of Information Technology to facilitate the drive for the growth & development of the Group and the Market.
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GENERAL MANAGER'S REPORT - JSE

The year 2009 marked the end of a decade which saw several positive
transformations to the Jamaica Stock Exchange (JSE); changes that
are designed to improve profitability, market confidence and the
delivery of products and services.

ENVIRONMENTALFACTORS

The global economic crisis, the high interest rate policies and the effect of the
fall in many unregulated schemes all negatively impacted on the market in
2008 and continues throughout 2009. The country is still faced with the cutin
export earnings arising from the shutdown of a large portion of the
bauxite/alumina sector, the fall in remittances and revenue from other
products in the traditional and non-traditional sectors which could impact on
companies’ profitability and the ability of investors to invest. Not-with-
standing this, as we have seen in the past, if the measures that are taken to
reduce interest rates and if the foreign exchange rate can remain relatively
stable then the market may rebound.

All these factors impacted the psyche of investors in the equities market
bringing confidence to an all time low. This resulted in the strengthening of
the 'bear market' that had started in 2008 as many investors sought a more
conservative approach to investments or cashed in on their investments in
equity to meet cash flow needs.

We expect that these conditions will persist, though with some small
improvements, for much of 2010.

JSE PERFORMANCE IN 2009

As a direct result of environmental factors, the stock market experienced
declining stock prices and continued low levels of trading throughout 2009
and many companies with potential did not come to market to be listed.
Income from the main areas of JSE operation therefore declined significantly.

While efforts to constrain expenditure were successful and resulted in
reducing the year's expenses below the previous year in real terms and while
investment income was marginally higher than 2008, these positives were
insufficient to translate to a profitable outcome for the Group after discounting
for the Compensation Fund's Income. The JSE and its subsidiary, the
Jamaica Central securities Depository (JCSD), both experienced sharp
declines in revenue and profitability. JCSD Trustee Services Ltd., the new
subsidiary formed in 2008, however experienced its first surplus. The growth
of business in Trustees Service and Registrar services was positive in a
market of declines.

The negative financial results did not deter the Exchange from achieving
some positive milestones, including the celebration of our 40" Anniversary
with the successful staging of several events and activities designed to
continue the process of market education. One highpoint was the musical
evening of excellence, which captured through music and drama, the
Exchange's journey as a company twinned with Jamaica's journey as a
nation. Other functions included our annual capital markets conference and
our best practice awards, both of which continued to enjoy increasing interest
and good support.

Mrs. Marlene Street Forrest
General Manager
Jamaica Stock Exchange

(Continued)
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Throughout the year we embarked on an intensive marketing programme to educate and encourage small and medium sized
companies to take advantage of the recently launched Junior Stock Market. This we are convinced is a potential bright spot for
the growth and development of our market and the economy. Access Financial listed in 2009 and we are assured of many
more listings for 2010 and beyond.

GENERAL MANAGER'S REPORT - JSE (Contd)

The long awaited Caribbean Exchange Network continued as a 'work in progress' but with one major hurdle cleared, as the
Regional regulators signified their approval for the implementation of the CXN. However there is many a slip between the cup
and the lip and so we continue to work on the few hurdles that are left to clear. We continue to pursue this initiative, as we
believe this will redound to growth of the Regional capital markets.

We have started the development of the JSE e-Learning Campus, which is designed to provide post-graduate certification and
comprehensive, structured and continuous professional education to persons in the financial services sector. We expect to
launch this new initiative in 2010.

We believe that we need to accelerate the process of making relevant changes to our rules and procedures to enhance the
market and have therefore been working with our listed companies, member-dealers and investors to implement these
changes. Throughout the year, we also had discussions with the Government of Jamaica and other stakeholders towards
enhancing the market through service delivery and the introduction of new products. We urge you to look towards even more
products and innovations in the coming years.

OPPORTUNITES

In spite of the fragile economic environment, the JSE identified possibilities and achieved some firsts in 2009. Many new
products have been started in 2009 that will be completed in 2010 and many that were started in 2008 have now been
completed.

In April 2009, we successfully launched the Junior Stock Market, even though the delayed passing of the tax amendments to
codify incentives in September 2009 caused some hesitation by Companies coming to list. We also completed the
development and introduction of new bond indices, which are published daily on the Jamaica Stock Exchange's Website. The
Stock Market Game a simulated electronic trading and portfolio management competition aimed at improving market
understanding and getting younger persons involved in the market was launched in 2008 and has succeeded in attracting
many new entrants and broadening our reach within high schools and colleges across the island.

Sustainability is important to the Exchange. Therefore, we are proud to report that the initiatives that have been launched over
the decade, such as electronic trading and the implementation of new products and services such as our website, the Stock
Market Game and the Investment & Capital Markets Conference show potential for enhancing stakeholder value and have all
been maintained and enhanced through the dedication of our internal and external teams.

STAYING THE COURSE

Our vision remains focused on improving the capital market by creating products that will enhance investment experience and
encourage new companies to list on either the Main or the Junior Exchange. We also consider it an imperative to provide
greater value to our listed companies by identifying areas in which the overall cost of listing, inclusive of disclosure
requirements, can be minimized while raising the standards of effective and efficient communication to investors.

While the year has been challenging, we at the JSE continue to have successes in maintaining focus on our priorities and
fulfilling our mandate of fostering growth and development of the market through efficiency and transparency.

TRADING OPERATIONS IN 2009

In 2009, we implemented the Average Price as the method of determining the Close Price for daily trading. While this has
improved market perception in respect to manipulation, we are now examining the Circuit Breaker Rule to see whether we can
furtherimprove the efficiency of the market operations in this regard.

There is always merit in introducing new blood to the market place through additional member-dealers. The Exchange
considered the auctioning of at least one seat in 2009 but discontinued the process due to the market conditions. It remains an
integral part of our strategic plan but this will be effected at the most opportune time.
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JSE OPERATING PLATFORMS

Our trading and settlement software and hardware platforms remained robust in 2009. We experienced no significant
downtime and have even improved on the previous year's performance. Despite this, we continue to examine the offerings
within the market to ensure that the platforms on which we operate are on par with our most developed contemporaries and
provide the most cost-effective return on investment. As we look towards offering new products and services to the market, we
will be using the coming year to request proposals from other service providers in the industry in order to ensure that we have
the best platforms for service delivery at the most competitive rate.

JSE CORPORATEACTIVITIES AND NEW INITIATIVES

OngoingActivities

L X2

A X2

LXK 4

g

0

Upgrades and Enhancement of trading platform for efficient market delivery

Upgrades of other supporting systems to ensure relevance and compliance

Website Enhancementincluding Stock Market Game geared at market education at the high school & tertiary level

Staff training

Continued Development of internal processes for CXN

DEPARTMENTAL HIGHLIGHTS

MARKETING ACTIVITIES

In keeping with the organization's goals and objectives, our Marketing Department worked assiduously to organize and
host several events and implemented a number of projects during the year to increase our customer base and to have
greater interaction with our stakeholders. In achieving this objective the JSE were engaged in the following
programmes:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

v)

High School Education Programme

This is geared towards educating high school students about the Stock Market. This programme continues to
make strides with forty-two (42) High Schools visiting the Exchange, setting the stage for continuous education
ofthe public.

National Investor Education Week
The JSE held several events marking the week of September 28, 2009 to October 3, 2009. As in the previous
year, we had good attendance.

Teacher's Outreach Programme:
The Teacher's Outreach Programme, which was introduced in 2008, continues to be a successful venture. Six
schools participated in the programme this year.

The JSE's Public Investor Outreach Programme:
There were nine Public Investor Outreach programmes held across the island.

JSE's Investments & Capital Market Conference:

The year 2009 saw the Exchange celebrating its 40" year anniversary. The JSE continued its vision of bringing
persons not only from across the Caribbean, but from Europe and North and South America, to exchange ideas
and network in an effort to continue the development of the Capital Market. The JSE took the opportunity to
honour the Rt. Hon. Edward Seaga, former Prime Minister of Jamaica, who was a founding member of the
Jamaica Stock Exchange.
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(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

GENERAL MANAGER'S REPORT - JSE (Contd)

Evening of Musical Excellence:

The JSE continued its 40" year Anniversary on July 13, 2009 by hosting an Evening of Musical Excellence at the
Little Theater. This event was well supported and honoured many of the entertainers who contributed to
Jamaica's musical industry over the years.

Workshops:
The JSE hosted a series of workshops throughout the year. The objective of these workshops was to expose

stakeholders in the market to international best practices in the capital market. A total of four (4) workshops
were held and covered areas such as: Risk Management; Listing Companies on the Junior Market; Mentorship
for Junior Market companies; and Preparing Documentation for Listing.

The efforts that we have put into market outreach programmes and workshops continue to reap tremendous
benefits. This is evidenced by the fact that even though most companies had contracted on their expenditure,
employers are not averse to their employees participating in our workshops. We have flagged this area for
growth inthe medium to long term.

Best Practices:

The year culminated in December 2009 with the JSE's Annual Best Practices Awards. The Awards are part of
an effort to encourage Listed Companies and Stock Brokerages participants to adopt international industry
standards and best practices and was launched in 2004. Companies are awarded for outstanding performances
in several categories, ranging from Best Annual Report to Best Investor Relations. The Best Practices Awards
Programme has become a calendar event and the criterion for each award is a benchmark for companies within
the industry.

The JSE through its Marketing and Communication's Department is committed to the process of dialoguing and
educating all the players in the market to allow all to operate atinternational standards.

INTERNAL AUDIT

Towards the end the year we outsourced our internal audit functions to PriceWaterhouse Coopers, as we are of the view
that this would further strengthen our internal controls and improve on our procedures. It seems to have paid good
results to date and we look forward to more contributions from PWC in the coming years.

INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY

The JSE continues to implement and utilize information systems that support and enhance its strategic objectives.

U

(ii)

Infrastructure and Core Business Applications

At the hub of the Exchange, we continue utilize an electronic trading, clearing and settlement platforms, which
are robust, secure and efficient. Brokers and other external users access the systems via our Wide Area
Network (WAN). As the JSE continues to expand its services, the infrastructure is continuously upgraded to take
advantage of the emerging trends.

Website

The JSE's Website is the 'public face' of the Exchange. In 2009 a significant revision was unveiled, as the site
had been made more functional, user-friendly and accessible. The website continues to be a very valuable
resource for information dissemination to our listed companies and for information gathering by investors,
financial analysts, researchers, students, and other visitors to the site.

Some of the valuable resources available on the site include daily and historical stock market information; trade
sheets; company news by subscription; charting capabilities; financial statements; information on listed
companies and member firms; membership subscription; our stock market game; portfolio manager; online
statement access; and archived trade sheets from 1969. Additionally, we have introduced subscription services,
such as RSS feeds where persons can subscribe to receive the most current market information. The year
2010 will see the introduction of live video streaming of the JSE events.
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(iv)

(v)

(vi)
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Data Services

Information dissemination is crucial in keeping investors abreast of the activities on the Stock Market.
Consequently, the JSE ensures that accurate and quality information is made available to its clients through
sources such as Bloomberg, which utilizes a Market Data Feed provided by the JSE. Other products of this data
feed can be seen on cable stations and websites of clients who subscribe to this technology. In 2009, we
expanded this service to include text messaging, which may become a key source ofincome in future years.

Application Development

During the year, we completed development of a Market Surveillance System for the Regulatory and Market
Oversight Division (RMOD) and the first part of a Registrar System for the JCSD Registrar. Undoubtedly, these
systems will assist in enhancing the efficiency of both business units while allowing them to meet business
objectives.

In 2009, we started development of an online Learning Management System, which will offer online training to
persons in the financial market. The system dubbed The JSE e-Learning Campus will be launched in the
second quarter of 2010 and will be an exciting addition to the JSE's many service offerings.

Risk Management and Compliance

The Company's principal business activities rely heavily on information technology and by nature are subject to
various risks including systems downtime, which may result in operational risk or loss of revenue and
confidence in the market.

Rigorous policies and Operational procedures are established and approved by the relevant management
personnel and quarterly internal audits are conducted to ensure compliance with the established policies and
international standards. There are also system redundancies, data protection measures, and security
measures in place to ensure a more resilient system, which would have 100% availability during business hours

JSE's IT Governance structure incorporates:
1. Administrative controls effected through the relevant committee (Audit and Finance)

2. Organizational controls effected through segregation of duties, requisite training and adherence to
implemented polices.

These controls are reviewed on a quarterly basis to ensure they provide effective governance and compliance is
maintained.

Business Continuity
As part of its Business Continuity strategy, the JSE continues to ensure that its hotsite remains currentin order to
provide redundancy for its core systems (Trading, Clearing and Settlement) and other supporting systems.

In addition to the system redundancies in place, the JSE's business recovery plan is continually updated to
ensure that the business is able to recover from disasters and other disruptions in the shortest possible time.
The plan outlines the response to be undertaken and indicates the minimum resources required to ensure the
continuity of key business units in the event of disruptions.

Focus for2010

In 2010, we will be implementing a new server infrastructure focused on enhancing system stability and
ensuring that we set the stage for further information technology upgrades needed to meet the business
objectives for the future.

We will also continue our thrust to implement solutions that are geared towards allowing the JSE and its

subsidiaries to take advantage of market opportunities, which will increase revenue and improve customer
service.

(Continued)
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HUMAN RESOURCES 2009
Despite the financial challenges affecting the Exchange during the year, the JSE team-members demonstrated their resilience
and commitment by continuing to make sterling contributions to the achievement of our strategic objectives.

While there were budgetary constraints, the JSE in its mandate to effectively equip staff to deliver excellent service, continues
to contribute to staff development through training in areas such as Operational Risk Management, IFRS, Junior Market,
Mentoring for Small and Medium Size Business and internal cross training. Our ancillary and support staff is now computer
literate, as they successfully participated in in-house computer training. The JSE continues to support staff education
achievement through education grants and education loan facilities. The year 2009 saw one staff member acquiring her
Bachelors Degree and three staff members acquiring their Masters Degrees.

In continuing our quest to have a motivated workforce, the Employee Recognition Award was re-introduced in 2009. The
objective of this award is to recognize consistently superior performance of JSE's employees and especially those who go
beyond the call of duty for the smooth and effective operation of the Exchange. This award is intended to act as a vehicle to
access and reward distinction and at the same time, encourage and motivate others to strive towards high standards at the
workplace.

Good health of staff members is of great importance to the JSE. Consequently, the JSE collaborated with the Heart
Foundation to conduct at the Exchange, critical tests for our employees.

The year 2009 was challenging, but we understand that staffs members need to unwind and through the innovation and
creativity of the JSE's family, our car park was transformed on December 17, 2009 for a memorable occasion dubbed “Lyme in
diPark”. This saw staff members and their families coming together and having fun.

CORPORATE SOCIALRESPONSIBLITY

The challenges we faced during the year did not deter us from making a difference in the lives of others through donations and
corporate social activities. The year 2009 saw the Jamaica Stock Exchange celebrating its 40" Anniversary and one of the
activities to mark this very special occasion was the “Musical Evening of Excellence” where icons in the musical/entertainment
field were honoured for their sterling contributions to the development of Jamaica's music and culture. Proceeds from this
event were donated to the Good Samaritan Lodge.

We also continued to maintain close association with our community by making donations towards St. Michael's Primary
School Breakfast Feeding Programme and the KSAC's Roadways Reconstruction Programme. We also gave moral and
monetary supportto Trevayne Campbell, a teenager who had lost a leg to cancer.

Our commitment to education and development of our youth is maintained through JSE's Scholarships for students of both the
University of the West Indies and University of Technology. We also continue to provide work experience programmes for
student from UWI, UTECH, EXED and other institutions of learning. We are also committed to United Way and other charitable
organizations.

FORECAST -2010

We are continuing to build on the gains achieved in 2009. Major decisions taken by the Government in early 2010 such as the
Jamaica Debt Exchange Programme (JDX) will provide a stimulus for the market. It is expected that the Junior Market will
prove an engine for the listing of small, and medium sized companies. There has been tremendous interest from many
potential listed companies. In addition, building market awareness and the advantages that exist even in the face of an
economic downturn for both investors and current and potential listed companies will be the thrust of the Group's activates for
2010. We will seek new ways of providing better service to the market at a lower cost. We will improve on our response time to
our stakeholders.

(Continued)
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The Group pursues several other business initiatives, which include:

<*  An Exchange Traded Fund (ETF) market
** New Exchange Indices

% Market Data Messaging Services

e Listing of Foreign/International Companies

° The Caribbean Exchange Network

We wish to thank all our listed companies, investors and others, whose continued support and feedback has enable us to
continue our growth path.

Our many successful market education programmes such as the Market Analyst Competition and Best Practice Awards
would not be possible without the dedicated Committee members who volunteer of their expertise and themselves to the
oftentimes challenging and time consuming tasks necessary for ensuring high standards of execution.

We know that employee retention and job satisfaction are essential to our continued future success in product and service
delivery. | wish personally to commend the time, efforts, and enthusiasm displayed by our staff member in the execution of their
duties, often above and beyond the call of duty, throughout the year.

Marlene J. Street Forrest
General Manager, JSE
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Regulatory & Market Oversight Division 2009 Market

Mr. Wentworth Graham
Chief Regulatory Officer

Oversight Report

n 2009 the Jamaica Stock Exchange's Regulatory & Market Oversight Division

(RMOD) addressed 123 issues in accordance with its market surveillance,

compliance and enforcement responsibilities. This was 43% above the 2008

mark. The RMOD attributes the growth in issues to its redefined and intensified
focus in discharging its market oversight functions. Specific activities that have
contributed to the performance include keener financial statement assessments,
closer monitoring of trading activities and closer scrutiny of market disclosures. The
Division's tools and operations are frequently reviewed, enhanced and
strengthened, and therefore would have contributed to the improved oversight
operations and better performances over earlier years. Forthe calendar year 2009,
95% of the cases were closed and the remainder were carried forward to 2010. In
2009, brought forward cases amounted to 6%. Asummary ofthe RMOD's oversight
activities in 2009 is presented in the diagram below.

Nature of Infraction 1

Nature of Infraction Number
Market Infractions 111
Other Compliance Issues 12
Total 123

Oithvar

Compliance

[F T
L

Market Infraction Distribution 2

Trends and Other Activities

The RMOD commenced operations on April 1, 2008, and prior to its formation the
Market Operations and Trading Department undertook elements of market
oversight. With the Jamaica Stock Exchange completing its demutualization
process in November 2007 the Company's Board ceded its regulatory
responsibilities to the Regulatory and Market Oversight Committee (RMOC), which
is comprised of only Independent Directors of the JSE's Board. The RMOD, which
is headed by Mr. Wentworth Graham, Chief Regulatory Officer, provides
operational support to the RMOC whose Chairman is Mr. Livingstone Morrison.

Since undertaking market oversight responsibilities there has been a steady climb
in the number of regulatory issues identified and assessed. In 2007 total cases
amounted to 21 and by 2008 it was 86; 2009 ended with 123 cases. The trend of
casesis represented in Diagram 3.

(Continued)
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Oversight Report contd

Diagram 3 - Total Number of Regulatory Issues 2007-2009
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Other significant activities within the RMOD in 2009 include:

1. Developing new rules, namely:  Management
Discussion & Analysis, Complaint Management
System Guidelines, the Regulatory and Market
Oversight Committee and Disciplinary Proceedings.
Creating a Logo and Tagline for the Division,
developing the RMOD's Newsletter and
implementing an Automated Market Surveillance
System for the Exchange;

Undertaking member-dealers' standard and special

inspections; and streamlining their reporting
requirements to fully satisfy market requirements.

Support and Looking Ahead

The JSE's regulatory advancements would not have been
possible without guidance and support from the Regulatory
and Market Oversight Committee (RMOC). Aspecial note is
necessary for the first RMOC Chairman, Ms. Hilary Philips,
QC, who relinquished her post in June 2009 having been
appointed an Appellate Judge of Jamaica's Appeal Court.
Justice Philips worked tirelessly and with devotion to
establish the framework of the RMOC and RMOD and the
baton has been passed to Chairman Livingstone Morrison,
who is keen on reinforcing the institutional framework of the
JSE's regulatory operations. Ms. Nicole Lambert replaced
Justice Philips as the Bar Association of Jamaica's
representative, and in this capacity also serves as an

Independent Director of the JSE. The Exchange's
regulatory affairs were also advanced due to support from
entities such as the Companies Office of Jamaica, the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of Jamaica, international
organizations and most importantly the team of officers
within the RMOD, as well as the wider Exchange.

In 2010, the RMOD's area of focus will centre on advancing
its institutional structure by strengthening its operational
capacity and creating stronger association with support
entities both locally and overseas. Additionally, there will be
a concerted drive to advance public awareness of the
RMOC/RMOD's affairs. In closing, itis safe to say that 2010
will have new challenges and by all accounts, the JSE's
regulatory activities will have to continue to resolve them
effectively. In this regard, the RMOD will be guided by the
maxim: “Act, Learn and Refine” as it stays focused in
fulfilling its general purpose of market regulation and
oversight for the Jamaica Stock Exchange.
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orporate governance continues to
receive a high level of attention
worldwide The practice of good
corporate governance is central to the

health and stability of any economy and is the
key to the integrity of corporations, financial
institutions and markets.

It can be concluded that the collapse of major
corporations resulted from their failure to adapt
good corporate governance principles and as a
result of their shortcomings in this area, it led to
aworldwide financial crisis.

In order to restore investors' confidence,
enhance corporate transparency and
accountability, it is important that the best
practices of good corporate governance be
implemented and practiced. The Jamaica Stock
Exchange in its quest to promote good
corporate governance among listed companies
and brokerage houses, has established the
Jamaica Stock Exchange Best Practices
Awards.

The Jamaica Stock Exchange Best Practices
Awards culminated on December 8, 2009 with a
gala banquet at the Jamaica Pegasus Hotel
under the theme “Prosperity and growth for
2010". The theme inspired the creative use of
fruit trees in the décor for the event a fitting
symbol of growth and prosperity. In addition to
its aesthetic appeal, the trees would support the
national tree planting drive which in turn,
bolsters the country's food security initiatives.

In her welcome remarks Mrs. Marlene Street
Forrest, General Manager of the Jamaica Stock
Exchange told the audience that ‘the
implementation of Best Practice is about
challenging ourselves, especially when the tides
are rough. It is not about cutting corners when
the challenges present themselves. It is about
principle and not exigency. | see Best Practices
as a culture, as a lived experience that gets
easier as we commit to getting it right”.

As guest speaker on the topic “Quality, Better
quality and Best quality” Associate Professor Dr.
Geraldene Hodelin, challenged all companies to
attain their best. According to Dr. Hodelin “in an

environment where mediocrity abounds and
where bad policies and practices are being
blamed for some of our current socio-economic
woes, it is refreshing to see demonstrable
evidence of best practices being undertaken by
our local organizations and more importantly,
being recognized and hailed publicly...the three
imperatives that should always be included in
(companies') business mantra are quality,
better quality and best quality every time, no
matter what.

It was then left to the Chairman of the Best
Practices Committee, Professor Neville Ying, to
speak to the 2008 competition and announce
the winners. In his address he stated, “I am
proud to be part of the Best Practices Awards
Committee whose work over the last five years
has enabled this function to grow to become a
calendar event. This is now an event to which
Listed Companies, Brokerages and other
stakeholders look forward to attending, and to
share in the success of team work, hard work
and dedication. This shows that hard work and
dedication is rewarding in the long run”. He then
went on to announce the winners for each
category.

The Best Practices Best Annual Report Award
Committee chaired by Mr. Alvaro Casserly,
encourages public listed companies to produce
comprehensive, more reader-friendly annual
reports and to provide greater insight into
companies' financial affairs, governance
practices and business activities. In the area of
Best Annual Report, third place went to JUMB
and Sagicor Life Jamaica, the runners up
were Scotia DBG Investments and Scotia
Group Jamaica Limited and the company to
walk away with the winning award in this
category was PanCaribbean Financial
Services Limited.

The Jamaica Stock Exchange Best Practice
Corporate Disclosure and Investor Relations
Award serves to recognize companies that
make timely and accurate reports and
announcements to the JSE. This award also
encourages them to maintain good investor
relations with the wider investing public. This
Committee was chaired by Mr. Christopher

JSE CORPORATE HIGHLIGHTS 2009

The Best of The Best Took Centre Stage At
The Jamaica Stock Exchange Best Practices Awards Banquet

Bovell. In third place was Scotia Group
Jamaica Ltd, with runner up National
Commercial Bank. The winner was NCB
Capital Markets Limited.

The Jamaica Stock Exchange Best
Performing Company Award seeks to identify
and recognize outstanding performance by
listed companies that enhance shareholder
value in the areas of return on capital, improved
profitability and direct return on shareholdings.
The Chairman of this Committee was Dr. Noel
Reynolds. In third place was Pulse
Investments Limited, the runner up was
Carreras Ltd and the winner Montego Free
Port.

The Best Practices Investor Relations
(Stockbrokerage) Award Committee,
chaired by Dr. Brian Langrin, recognizes
excellence in the services provided by
stockbrokerages to investors, and was
designed solely for the Brokerage Community.
In third place was JMMB Securities Ltd, with
runner up Pan Caribbean Financial Services
Limited. The winner in this category was
First Global Financial Limited.

The Jamaica Stock Exchange Best Practices
Website Award is divided into two
categories; the Jamaica Stock Exchange
Website Award for Brokerages and the
Jamaica Stock Exchange Best Practices
Award for Listed Companies. This category
was designed to encourage listed companies
and stockbrokerages to raise the quality and
efficiency of the dissemination of information to
the investing public via their website. The
Chairman of this committee was Mr. Errol
Anderson.  The following companies won
awards in the Listed Companies category:
Scotia DBG Investments Limited was third
place, with runner up Guardian Holdings
Limited and the winner was Trinidad Cement
Limited.

In the Brokerages category, in third place was
JMMB Securities Ltd with runner up Scotia
DBG Investments Limited and the winner
NCB Capital Markets Limited.

Continued on next page

4



p—

“Providing A Fair, Efficient and
E Transparent Stock Market”

i, JSE CORPORATE HIGHLIGHTS 2009

PBest &

ractices
Mards 2008

The final category was the PSOJ/JSE Corporate
Governance Award, which recognizes
companies that demonstrate and practice
outstanding corporate governance. In third
place was GraceKennedy Limited; the
runner up was National Commercial Bank
and the winner, Sagicor Life of Jamaica.

The evening climaxed with the presentation of
the prestigious Governor General Award by the
Most Honourable Edward Seaga on behalf of
the Governor General. There was a tie for first
place and the companies that emerged as the

Z‘{er?” V;mnerf’w;re SCOt',ZgBG Im;;‘:Stmen_tsl Governor Generals Awards for Excellence: Anya Schnoor, Chief Executive Olfficer, Scotia
lml.te anc anCaribbean Financial  ppc: 1 ociments and Donovan Perkins (right), President & CEO, PanCaribbean
Services Limited. Financial Services receive shared award for the Overall Winner. They received the

. . . Governor General's Award for Excellence from Former Prime, Minister The Most Hon.
Itis anybody's guess who will be the winners  piy4rd Seaga.

in2010!

Mr. Richard Byles, President
& CEO, Sagicor Life
Jamaica and Mrs. Janice
Grant Taffe (centre) accept
.\ PSOJ Corporate Governance
Award from Ms. Greta
Bogues, PSOJ Corporate
Governance Committee
Chairman.

Ms. Yvonne Clarke (left),
Group Chief Financial
Officer, National
Commercial Bank Jamaica,
accepts the award for
second place in Corporate
Disclosure & Investor =~
Relations from Mrs.
Marlene Street Forrest,
General Manager, JSE.
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Mr. Robert Drummond, President of First Global Financial
Services accepts the first place award for Investor Relations
Stockbrokerage from Ms. Nsombi Jaja, Best Practices
Committee member.

Mr. Lissant Mitchell (left), Snr. Vice President Treasury &
Capital Markets accepts the award on behalf of Scotia DBG
Investments for joint first runner in the Annual Report category
from Mr. Livingstone Morrison, JSE Board Member.

Miss Shaun Lawson (left), Company Secretary Caribbean
Cement Company Ltd receives the first place award for Website
(Listed Company) on behalf of parent company TCL from Mz
Alan Lewis, JSE Board Member:

Miss Julie Thompson-James (left), Corporate Secretary of
Scotia Group Jamaica accepts the second runner award in the
category of Corporate Disclosure & Investor Relations from
Mprs. Marlene Street Forrest, General Manager JSE.

Members of the audience listen attentively to the Keynote
Speaker Dr. Geraldene B. Hodelin.

Investments Ltd, is caught in a frank discussion with the former
Prime Minister of Jamaica, the Most Honourable Edward
Seaga; looking on is Mrs. Marlene Street Forrest, General
Manager of the Jamaica Stock Exchange
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Best Practices Awards (cont'd)

Mpr. Christopher Williams, former Managing Director of NCB  Mr. Christopher Brown (left), receives the st Runner award for
Capital Markets accepts on behalf of the company first place award  Best Performing Company from, Mr. Curtis Martin (right),
for Website (Stockbrokerage) from the Most Hon Carla Seaga. Chairman JSE.

Members of the Sagicor family enjoy their hard earned awards.
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Market Research Competition
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Simone Hudson of Scotia
DBG Investments, second
quarter winner receives her
cheque from Mr: Neville Ellis,
Senior Marketing Officer at
the JSE.

Juvenne Yee of Stocks &
Securities Ltd, third quarter
winner of JSE's Market
Research Competition
receives her cheque from
Mpr: Robin Levy, General

|  Manager - JCSD and
Deputy General Manager -
JSE. Mr. Levy also serves
on the JSE Market
Research Committee.
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JSE CORPORATE HIGHLIGHTS 2009

Junior Market Listing

On October 30, 2009 history
was created when Access
Financial Services Ltd was first

compnay to the JSE Junior *

Market. The official insertion of e
the Access Financial Services
Limited at the Jamaica Stock
Exchange; looking on from left:
Brian Goldson, Chairman of | 3
Access Financial; Don Wehby, -
GraceKennedy Chief Operating
Officer; Marlene Street Forrest,

General Manager of the c ' ““
Jamaica Stock Exchange; e g -
Marcus James, Chief Executive 1
Officer of Access Financial, Mr. a

Wentworth Graham, Chief
Regulatory Officer and Sharon |
Harvey Wilson, Finance
Director of Mayberry
Investments Ltd.

Evening of Excellence

Members of the audience at the JSE's Evening of Musical Excellence are all smiles.

o
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JSE CORPORATE HIGHLIGHTS 2008

Evening of Excellence (cont'd)

Members of L'Acadco
giving a very energetic
performance.

Mz Robin Levy
(right), Deputy
General Manager of
JSE presents
Certificate of Award
to Bob Andy one of
the performers at the
JSE's Musical
Evening of
Excellence.

Posing for the Camera:
(Front Row From Left to
Right)Hon. Edward
Seaga, Mrs. Seaga, Mrs.
Marlene Street Forrest,
Ms. Anya Schnoor (Back
row) Mr: Livingstone
Morrison and Mr.
Franklyn Forrest.
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SHAREHOLDINGS
Top 10 for Jamaica Stock Exchange
As at December 31, 2009
Name
Account(s) Joint Holders Volume Percentage
DOUGLAS HALSALL
77630703 2,125,615.00 6.44
2,125,615.00 6.44
FIRST JAMAICA INVESTMENTS LIMITED
34280557 1,249,511.00 3.79
14523713 507,809.00 1.54
1,757,320.00 5.33
FIRST GLOBAL FIN. SERV. LTD-TRADINGA/C
81557264 1,408,803.00 4.27
1,408,803.00 4.27
DEREK DEMERCADO
66757220 1,254,489.00 3.80
1,254,489.00 3.80
WILFORD REID
44078249 Ronton Constantine Schrouder 1,249,511.00 3.79
1,249,511.00 3.79
CHARLES LEIBA
65200723 1,200,000.00 3.64
1,200,000.00 3.64
BERRIST ALFANZO PHILLIPS
58221184 Cherrie Evadney Phillips 1,000,618.00 3.03
1,000,618.00 3.03
VICTORIA MUTUAL BUILDING SOCIETY
46352585 761,747.00 2.31
761,747.00 2.31
ONIS JOHNSON
91722027 Monica Johnson 751,725.00 2.28
751,725.00 2.28
LASCELLE LENFORD BROWN
69947956 Paula Ann Sinclair 627,278.00 1.90
627,278.00 1.90
Executives Holdings for Jamaica Stock Exchange
As at December 31, 2009
Name
Account(s) Joint Holders Volume Percentage
MARLENE STREET-FORREST
58965921 8,333.00 0.03
2100230 Keena Street 20,000.00 0.06
28,333.00 0.09
ROBIN LEVY
47840275 25,000.00 0.08
25,000.00 0.08
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SHAREHOLDINGS Contd
Executives Holdings for Jamaica Stock Exchange
As at December 31, 2009
Name
Account(s) Joint Holders Volume Percentage
SUZETTE MCNAUGHT
8393311 Minette McLeish 25,000.00 0.08
25,000.00 0.08
DOREEN PARSONS-SMITH
8623243 8,333.00 0.03
8,333.00 0.03
SUZETTE WHYTE
10195781 Felix Whyte 10,000.00 0.03
10,000.00 0.03
NEVILLE ELLIS
74045793 8,333.00 0.03
8,333.00 0.03
JOSEPHINE LEWIS
99209426 25,000.00 0.08
25,000.00 0.08
Directors Holdings for Jamaica Stock Exchange
As at December 31, 2009
Name
Account(s) Joint Holders Volume Percentage
RITAHUMPHRIES LEWIN
86083601 19,978.00 0.06
19,978.00 0.06
EDWIN MCKIE
94165455 Beulah McKie 49,846.00 0.15
49,846.00 0.15
CHRISTOPHER WILLIAMS
40795769 Michelle M. Williams 129,491.00 0.39
129,491.00 0.39
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SHAREHOLDINGS cContd
Ordinary Shareholdings for Jamaica Stock Exchange
As at December 31, 2009
Names Shareholdings

Barita Investments Limited 2,550,000
Capital & Credit Securities Limited 2,550,000
First Global Financial Services Limited 2,550,000
Jamaica Money Market Brokers Limited 2,550,000
M/VL Stockbrokers Limited 2,550,000
Mayberry Investments Limited 2,550,000
NCB Capital Markets Limited 2,550,000
PanCaribbean Financial Services Limited 2,550,000
Scotia DBG Investments Limited 2,550,000
Stocks & Securities Limited 2,550,000
VM Wealth Management Limited 2,550,000
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Deloitte

7 West Avenue

Kingston Gardens

P.O. Box 13 Kingston 4
Jamaica, WI.

Tel: (876) 922 6825-7
Fax: (876) 922 7673
http://www.deloitte.com.jm

428 & 42C Union Street
Montego Bay Jamaica, W.I.
Tel: (876)9524713-4

Fax: (876) 979 0246

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT
To the members of
THE JAMAICA STOCK EXCHANGE LIMITED

Report on the financial statements

We have audited the financial statements of The Jamaica Stock Exchange Limited (the Company) and its
subsidiaries (the Group), set out on pages 55 to 108, which comprise the consolidated and the company
statement of financial positions as at December 31, 2009, the consolidated and the company statement of
comprehensive income, statements of changes in equity and cash flows for the year then ended, and a
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards and the Jamaican Companies Act. This responsibility
includes: designing, implementing and maintaining internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error;
selecting and consistently applying appropriate accounting policies; and making accounting estimates that are
reasonable in the circumstances.

Auditors' Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our
audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing. Those standards require that we comply with
ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors' judgment, including the assessment of
the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditors consider internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of
the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements,

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

Cont’d on next page
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Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial positions of the Group and the
Company as at December 31, 2009 and of the Group's and the Company's financial performance and cash
flows for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards.

Report on additional requirements of the Jamaican Companies Act

We have obtained all the information and explanations which, to the best of our knowledge and belief, were
necessary for the purposes of our audit.

In our opinion, proper accounting records have been maintained and the financial statements are in agreement
therewith and give the information required by the Jamaican Companies Actin the manner so required.

f i il.-'-"\-
Delife R Db,
Chartered Accountants

Kingston, Jamaica
February 24, 2010

Carey O. Metz, Audley L. Gordon, Winston G Robinson, Fagan E. Calvert, Gihan C. deMel. A member firm of

Consultants: T. Sydney Fernando, Donald S. Reynolds. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AT DECEMBER 31, 2008

2008 2008
Moles 000 000

ASSETS
Mon-curront assels
Proparty and squipmaent 6 g2 704 1,085
Infangible assels B 11,356 11,706
Imrestments in securilies:

Compensation Fund B1 350,804 23T a4

Citver 8.2 58,855 425 506
Long-term recahvabbos 8 5818 #4158
Posl employment benefits 10 1654 42548
Tolal non-currenl asssts _BO1.373 A0 605
Current assets
Income tax mooseraia 17,145 -
Trade snd other recevables 1 25,188 23,278
invesimanis in securities:

Compansation Fund B.1 183,280 282 620

Cither B2 1682 006 126,187
Cash and bank deposils 12 20,358 98880
Tatal curront assets 40827 530,023
Total asscts 1208643 1332628
Capital and Ressrves
Shane capital 13 168,590 168,580
Fair valun resends 14 - [ 4,008
Revenue resarve 15 —2pb.3a1 72374

423,931 435,058

Confingency resene 15 530,166 477201
Total equity _Bee 127 214217
Non-curront [labllitios
Long-tarm labilities 17 86,000 66,000
Diefermed tax liabilites 18 __ 31874 L AR404
Total non-current liabilitles Br.BT4 116404
Current liabilities
Accounis payable i) 85,653 254,278
Borrowings 20 o1.080 -
Income tax payabie et o — 48,731
Total eurrent liabilitize 157,542 203,007
Total equity and liabilities 1,208,843 1.332.628

The notes on Pages 63 to 108 form an integral part of the financial statements.

The financial statements Pages 55 to 108 were approved and authorized for issue by the Board of Directors on

February 24, 2010 and are signed on its behalf by: C;A<
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INMCOME

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 11, 2000

Motes $000 5000
Incoma
Cess 50,240 260,273
Fea moome 15,566 162,936
Other gparaling nooms 2 _ 33465 47 061
1658.971 470,270
Expensas
Staff costa 22 120,122 116,230
Progay Gxpenses 47015 43,764
Depreciation and amaorlisation 13,563 16,877
Acvertiging and promdation 26,870 26,493
Professional lees 18,468 18,221
Securibies commission lees 10.219 58,178
Allgyrancis for doublhul dabls i 258) 2170
Demutualizalion cosis - 3,437
Dthor oparating expenaes 1702 X
43713 s Lo K]
(DEFICIT] SURPLUS FROM OPERATIONS i B4.7432) 173,977
Invastmenl incoma 23 104,416 81,027
Compensatasn Fund incoma [net) 24 B4 G6E 51,828
Finance cost 25 (AS.525) (6013
SURPLUS BEFORE TAXATION 26 64,808 310,810
Taxation 27 (_21.790) (103,116}
NET SURPLUS 28 43018 207,703
OTHER COMPREHEMNSIVE INCOME
Ml loss on revaluation of ayvaitable-lor-sals mancial assels i 1.934) [ 1,784)
Met re-classification adjusiments related to available-for-sale
financinl assets disposed {__1.874) -
Other comprehenshve income for the year, net of axes {31085 {1 7ed)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 22,810 205,914
(Deficit) surphes derived from operations distnbutable | 17,033) 173,589
Surphus ol Compensabon Fund 60,051 4,114
43,018 207,705
Eamings per share 29 (80.61) 86,19

The notes on Pages 63 to 108 form an integral part of the financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 11, 2009

Shara ‘:‘:ﬁu Revenue  Conlingency
Nt SO0 So0 Sobo. T Som 5000

Balance at January 1, 2008 113,590 (1302 73,785 442,030 928,303
Dividend declaned g ¥ (220.000) — (20, 00D
Surplus for the year - - 207703 - 207,703
Oaher comprahensive incomea for the year e — [2,906) = 1,117 1789
Total comprehansive incoma Tor i year = (2.B08] g0r. o3 LT #0594
Issue of bonus shanes 55.000 - [ 55,000) "
Appropriation from revanue reserve

o condingency resenye fund 16 - - {_34.114) _3d 114
Balance at January 1, 2009 168,590 (4,008) 272374 A4T7 281 914,217
Surplus for the year - - 43,018 - 43,018
Oahar comprehaensive income lor the year - 4 008 - .11 3, 108)
Total comprehansive income for the year s 4,008 A8 (AL S3.910
Appropriation from revenue resena

1o coningency resen fund 18 - . (_60.051) 60051 = =—

Batance at Decembar 31, 2009 168,580 — 233,341 530,196 54,027

The notes on Pages 63 to 108 form an integral part of the financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 11, 2009

Note 2008
$000 000

OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Nat surplus 43,018 207,703
Adjustments for
Dapreciation of praparty. and equipment 10,429 11.774
Amortsation of intangible asseis 3135 5303
Loss on disposal of propery, and equipment ¥ 55
Gain on di=posal of svadable-for-sake vestments { 6.363) -
Linrealised foreign exchange gaEns on mwvestmenis | 3.068) | 11,818)
Pozl employment benelll charge 5.B20 T.8610
Allowanca for doubiul debils i 256) 2,110
Ineome ik oo 21,780 103,118
Intarest income {155, 246) (129,075
Interrost exponse 38,535 603
Cporating cash Nows belom movemants in working capital | 41,236) 202,751
{InCroase) decreass n frode and olhor recevables { 23200 1,013
Decrease in pccounts payvable (& 14 BES) [ 25665
Past employmant banafit contributions {4867 L3312
Cash (ufilized in) generated from operations (263.288) 197,787
Income tax paid (103.541) { 23,301)
Intarest paid {_13.381) {5207
Cash (used in) provided by operating activities (3802200 159,279
INWESTING ACTIVITIES
Acguisibon of investments in securilies [nel)

Compensation Fund { B9.895) { 62,003)

Oither 55,692 (221,441}
Acquisibon of progarty, and equipment { 12,078) { 6187
Acquisiton of intangible assets { 2.785) [ 3,380)
Long-farm receivables { 1.662) i 481)
Interest receved 180,030 135,347
Cash provided by (used in) investing activiles lag.311 (158.155)
FINAKCING ACTIVITIES
Nel borrowings 81,880 { 4860)
Issue of preference shares - 66,000
Proceads from dsposal of aviklable-for-sale snvestiments _50 ass -
Cash provided by financing actvities 151,844 61,040
HET (DECREASE] INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS { 79,065} 72,164
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE BEGINMING OF THE YEAR 28,860 26,807
Effect of foresgn exchanga rate changes 564 ___ &9
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE END OF THE YEAR 12 20359 28,860

The notes on Pages 63 to 108 form an integral part of the financial statements.
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AT DECEMBER 31, 2009

2008
Hodes $'000 000

ASSETS
Man-current assols
Froperly, and equipment [ 88,484 84,526
Inangible assebs 8 8,580 8,088
Imvestment in subsidinry T 85,000 55,000
Imvestments in sacufifies

Compensation Fund 8.1 350,801 22T 444

Cipher B2 234 B35 34T 053
Long-letm receiabis B8 4,248 2843
Post employment benefits 10 — S 3417
Tatal non-curment ssacts R _T87.169
Curront assetis
Incame tax recoverabls 11,208 -
Trade and ofher recaivatias 11 14 457 14,708
Imvestments in secufities

Compansation Fund a1 183,480 202,690

Crthar 8.2 133,028 8278
Chue froem relaled parly 62,308 4,319
Cash and cash equbsalants 12 11873 __ B30
Total current assets 425 483 462 06
Total assels L198.776 1218238
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Shsretolders’ Equity
Share capital 13 168,580 168,560
Fair value ressne 14 - { 2853
Ravenus resene 16 _261.368 g8 208

W20 058 382 146

Contingency mesena 16 B30, 196 _ATT201
Total shareholders’ equity 560,154 _B38.400
Mon-current llabiliten
Long-torm labilties 17 66,000 86,000
Deforred tax Habillies 18 — 28,180 43775
Total non-cument Nabillities — 04,180 100,775
Current labillities
Accounts payable 19 53,444 230 588
Borrowings 20 91,880 -
Incarme tax payable = — 30471
Total current labilitios 145,433 _270,057
Total equity and lighilities 1.188.775 1218238

The notes on Pages 63 to 108 form an integral part of the financial statements.

The financial statements Pages 55 to 108 were approved and authorized for issue by the Board of Directors on

February 24, 2010 and are signed on its behalf by: @
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STATEMENT OF COMPREHEMNSIVE INCOME

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2009

£009 2008
Maotizs £'000 000

INCOME

Cass ar.ed 185,205

Fae incoma 41,531 40,454

Crher operating ncoma 21 121,387 _df Baq

200,542 284,540

EXPENSES

Slalf costs 22 81,066 BE,610

Property expenses 28,122 28,507

Depreciation and amoizalion 10,501 13,950

Agvarlising and promoticn 26,551 26,305

Profossional lees 14,113 13,568

Securities commission fea 8400 53,804

Demutualization costs - 3,437

Allowance for imecoverable debis { 2TH) 1,784

Liher operating expeansas 4 632 5218

184,11 233,073

SURPLUS FROM DPERATIOMNS 16,426 4B 467
Investment income 23 B7 62 74,830
Compensation fund ncome {ned) 24 B 5610 51,828
Finance cost 25 {_30.535) _6.013)
SURPLUS BEFORE TAXATION 26 149,522 160,921
Taxalion Zr [ 24.311) {_EB.1TT)
NET SURPLUS 125211 113,744
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Het gasn arsing on revaluation of avadable-for-sale

financial assats { 1,134) { 6a7T)
Wt reclassificalion adjustimants related 1o avallable-lor-sala
financial assots 3320 =i

Oiher comprahansiva mcome for 1he yoar, nel of taxes 4463 86T

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR 120,748 113,077

The notes on Pages 63 to 108 form an integral part of the financial statements.
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2009

tote 2009 2008
000 000
OFERATING ACTIVITIES
MNal surplus 125211 113,744
meents for;

Depraciaton of property, and equipment 8,230 9,576
Amartisation of intangible assots 2281 4374
Loss on disposal of praperty, and equipment i 55
Unrealisad fomign exchange gains on invesiments { 2.160) { 6478
Gasin on sale of imestiments in availabie-for-sale financial assets { B.385) .
Pesl employmant benelfl change 4,760 5, B30
Allowance for doubtful debts i 278} 1,784
Income tax expanse 24311 5EATT
Interest income (155,080) (179,068
Interes! expense X 8013
Operaling cash fiows balore movemenls in working capital 38,385 71,547
{Increase) decreasa n trade and other recawvablas i 53) 3, (s
Decrease In accounis payable {32, 286) { 38T
Post amploymant benef contributions (_3.997T) (2380
Cash (used in) generated from oparations {ITT 841) 68 S06
Income tax paid { T9,344) { 21,240)
Inberest paid (13391 (_5.407)
Cash {usad in) provided by oparating activitios (ET0.6TE) _Ag.549
INVESTING ACTIVITIES
HWet acquisiton of invesiments i secunties

Companaation fund | &9,895) { 62,003

Cihar 42,070 (179,827}
Advances lo/payments from subsidisny { 106, 5c30) 61,1545
Acauisition of praperty, and equipment { 12.078) { & BEB)
Acquisition of inlangible assels { 2,785) { 3089
Long-term receivable { 1.405) { £4)
Interesi recaived 150,881 126,637
Cash usad in mvasling aclivilies 18} 6042
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Loan financing (mel) 1, 584 [ 4,5960)
Proceeds from preference shanes - 6,000
Procoads lrom sale of invwestmants in available-for-gale financial assets 458,478 -
Dividends received 700 —
Cash provided by financang aciiies £1846T 61,040
MET (DECREASE) INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS { &2.37T1) 41,547
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 63,926 22290
Effect of foreign exchange rate change 418 i)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE END OF THE YEAR 13 11973 53,926

The notes on Pages 63 to 108 form an integral part of the financial statements.
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- g# glélz . “Providing A Fair, Efficient and
EXCHANGE Transparent Stock Market” ANNUAL REPORT 2009

MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2009

1 GROUP IDENTIFICATION

1.1 The Jamaica Stock Exchange Limited (lhe Company) is incorporated in Jamaica as 8 public limied
lkabibity company. The main activities of the Company are the regulation and operation of a stock
exchange and the development of the stock market in Jamaica, The registered office of the company is
40 Harbour Sireel, Kingston, Jamaica.

Effective April 1. 2008, the Company was fully demulualzed with he formal separation of its rogulatory
arm from s commercial arm.  The new organizational struciure of the company, inclusive of the
Regulalory and Markel Oversighl Committes, Wustrales a clear line of demarcation belween Ihe
Company's twin role of regulating participants in a fair and transparent stock market, and operating an
gfficiant platform on which that market trades, which is the commercial arm of the company,

Az part of the demutuafization, the Company issusd preference shares (o the public and these preferance
shares were listed on the Jamaica Stock Exchangs elffective May 2008, [(See also Mote 13),

Thesa financial statements amn exprassad in Jamaican dollars.

12 Principal Activities

H The Group comprises the Company and As wholly-owned subsidiaries as detailed below:
Subsidiaries Brincipal Activity
Jamaica Contral Securitias Depoasilary To eslablish and mainiain a Central Securities Daposiony
Limited and iz subsidiary ICSD0) in Jamaica to transfer ownership ol securitles

“by book entry”, including shares, stocks, bonds or
i dobeniures of companies and other dligible securities.

JEED Trustes Services Limiled The pronesion of trustes, compamy managameni,
fl {Incorporated July 21, 2008) cusiodianship and related sarvices.
f
::l'. 2 ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED STANDARDS

'l J 21 Standards and interprefations affecting presentation and disclosures

y The following new and revised standards and Inlerpretations have been adopled in the current period and
1 the effects are detailed below. Details of olher standards and interpretations adopled in these financial
/ slatements bul have had no effect on the amounts reporied are sef oul in Mole 2.2,

A Standards affecting presantation and disclosure

. IAS 1 (as revised in 2007). Preseniation of Financial Statements. The main objective of the
revision in IAS 1 was to aggregate information in financial statements on the basis of shared
characterisiics. Adoplion of IAS 1 aflected Group’s preseniation of owner changes in equily and
of non-owner changes in equily (comprehansive income), The revision required the presentation
of comprehensive income in one or two stalemenis and the Group hes adopled the ona
siatement method o presant the comprehensive income. Presantation of Group’s stalement of
changes in equily has also been amendead o comply with the revisions. |n adddion, the revisad
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- g# glé\ll . “Providing A Fair, Efficient and
EXCHANGE Transparent Stock Market” ANNUAL REPORT 2009

KOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2009
2 ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED STANDARDS [Cont'd)

21 Standards and interprefations affecling presenfalion and disclosures (Coni'd)
standard requires presaniation of a third stalement of financial position (balance sheel) at
January 1, 2008 when applying policy changes retrospectively. However, the Group has not
presenied a third sialemant as thera were no relrospoective policy changes that alfected the
presentation and disclosures of theso fnancial statemaents,

2.2

IFRS T, Fingncial Insiruminds - Disclosunes. The amendmants 10 IFRS T oxpended the
disclosure requined in espact of fair valus measurements and liquidity risk. In particular, tha
amendmeani requires the disckosure of falr value measurements by bevel of a fair value hierarchy.
The Group has elected nol 1o provide comparative informalion for these expanded disclosunes in
tha currani year in accondance with the ransitional reel offered in the amandmaents. Seo Note
311,

IFRS &: Operating Segments. IFRS 8 |z a discloswre Standard and has replaced AS 14, The
new Standard requires & ‘managemant approach’ under which segment informalion is pressnied
on ha same basts as thal used for imemal purposes. Adoplion of IFRS 8 has nol resulled in any
changpe in the basis on which segment informalicn is presented in comparison & previous years
mnd has nol resufied in changes in the fnancial performance and positions reported for tha
curreni and prior accounting perods. Thenslore the Group has not prosentod a third siatemen
of financial posilion (balance sheal) at January 1, 2008. (Sea aiso Mota 30)

Standards and Interpretations adopled with no effect on the financial statements

Tha followeng now and revised slandands and nlarprotalions hse also beon adopled in thesa financal
slalements.

Their adoptson has nol had any impact on the amounis reporied in these financial stalements bul may
affect the accountng for future transaciions or amangemeants.

A5 I3 (Rovised) - Bormowing Cosils - Tha mevision removes hae oplion of ahar capitalising
bormowing costs retaling 1o qualifying as5els or expensing these borrowing cosis, The mevised
standard requires managemani 10 capiialise borrowing cosis attributable to quakifying asseis.
Cualifying mssets are assets thal ake & substantial tme o gel ready for thelr intended use or
sale. The Group currently has no gualifying assats or relaled bormowing cost

IAS 28 (Revised] Invesimenis in Associales - effective January 1, 2008, The amandmand
addressas Impaiment of invesiments in associates as it ghves clarfication that an investmand in
an associale s resied as a singke azsel for impalrmant testing, Therslons, &0 impalmment loss
recorded by an invesiol alled agplying the oguity mathod is nol allocaled agains any goodwill
incheded in the eguity accounted investment balance Such an mpasment loss should ba
revarsed i 8 subsequeni penod o the extend that the recoverable amouni of the associale
ICraS S

Uinder the amendments o [AS 32 [(Rewvised) Francial instrumends: Presentalion - affectva
Januany 1, 2009, Puttatwe nstruments and Obbgations Arsing on Ligeidadion, certain financial
instrumenls thal currantly moet the dafnilicn of a financial liability will be classified as equily
because (hay represant the resadual inferest in the net assets of tha entity.

Lindar the amendments fo IFRS 2 (Rewsed) Shame-based payment — effective January 1, 20046,
Westing Condiions and Canceflations, the terms ‘vesling conditions' and ‘cancellations™ wara
clarified as follows. Vesting conditions are senice and perdormance conditions only. Featumes
of a share-based payment thai are not westing conditions should be Included in the grant date
falr valua of ihe share-bassd paymenl A cancellation of equity Instrumants s accounied for as
an acceleration of the vasting period,

F _r_;—__,--_-'-.-

B4

.



- g% glé'\ & CA “Providing A Fair, Efficient and
EXCHANGE Transparent Stock Market” ANNUAL REPORT 2009

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2009

2 ADOPTION OF HNEW AND REVISED STANDARDS (Cont'd)

22 Standards and Interprefations adopted with no effect on the financial statements (Coni'd)

. IFRIC 13 Customer Loyally Programmas - Effective July 1 2008, This inierpretation addresses
the aecounting by enliies thal prowvide thelr cusiomers with incenlves 1o buy goods of sandces
by providing awaeds (called ‘award credis’) as part of a sales rpngaction, IFRIC 13 reguires the
anfify that grants the awsrds bo account for the sales ransaclion thal ghwes rise 1o e award
crodits as a ‘mulliple-alement revenee iransaclion’ and 1o allocate tho fair value of tha
consideration mcehved of mecehabls betwean the award crodds granted and the olbar
componants of he rovenue transaction. This treatmen] applies imespeciive of whathar tha entity
supples the awards (the discouniod goods or senvices) or whalher a thind party supplies tham
For amangamoenis falling within s scope, IFRIC 13 explictly prohibits the alternative ireatmand
of recognising the full considaration received as revenue, with & separate liebility for the cost o
supplying the awands.

. IFRIC 15 Agreemends for the Conslirsction of Real Estate - effective January 1, 2008, Tha
Interpretalion addresses how enlities should defermine whelher an agreemeni for the
consinsction of real estate s within ihe scope of AS 11 Consfruction Conlfracts or IAS 18
Rovanus and whan revenus from the constructon of mad estale should ba recognised.

. IFRIC 16 Hedges of 8 Mei Invesiment in 8 Foreign Operafion — Effective October 1, 2008 The
Interpratalion provides guidance on the delsiled roquiremants for nel investman] hadging for

k cartain hedge accounting designations.
L - FRIC 18 Transfers of Assefs from Cusiomers (effeclive for translers made on of alter 1 July

| 2008). Tha Interpretation addresses tha accountng by recipéents for transfers of proparty,
and squipmant from ‘customers’ and concludes thal when the ilem of proparty, plant
aeguipmen transfamed maets the defindion of an assael from the parspective of tha mecipian
recighent should recognise the assel al iis fair value on the dale of the transfer. with the
recognised as revenue in accondance wilh 1AS 18 Revanue.

iz

23 Standards and Imterprefations in issue nof yel adophed

Al the date of avthorsabion of these financial sialemenis, the following Slandands and Interpretathons
wene in issue bul not yet effective for the financial penod being eporied upon

b" Efactive for annual periods
,' Daion !
ol BAS 1, T,17,36,.38, |} Amendmanis ansing from Apnl 2008 Annueal

%—I IFRS 5 and 8 (Revisad) )  Imgrovements (o IFRS January 1, 2010
h | IAS 24 (Revised) Related Party Disclosures — Revised delinition of

L retpted partes January 1, 2011
';,, IAS 2T (Revised) Consolidated and Separate Financial Stalemonts

K - Consequontial amendments arising from

& amendmanis lo IFRS 3 July 1, 2009

e IAS 28 Investments in Associates

i « Consequential amandmants arising from

i amandments to IFRS 3 July 1, 2009
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“Providing A Fair, Efficient and
Transparent Stock Market”

ANNUAL REPORT 2009

JAMAICA
- STOCK
EXCHANGE

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2009

2 ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED STANDARDS (Cont'd)
23 Standards and interpretations in issue not yet adopted (Cont'd)

Effective for annual periods
beqinning on or after

IAS 31 Interests in Joint Ventures - Consequential
amendments arising from amendments to IFRS 3 July 1, 2009
IAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presantation
- Amendments relating lo classification of righls issues February 1. 2010
IAS 38 (Revised) Intangible assets — Amendments arising from April 2009
Annual Improvements to IFRS July 1, 2009
IAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement
- Amendments to clarily Eligible Hedged Ilems July 1, 2009
- Amendments for embedded derivatives when '
reclassifying financial instruments. Jumna 30, 2005
IFRS 1 First-time Adoption of International Financial Reporting
Standards:
- Amendment relating to oil and gas assets and
determining whether an amangement contains a lease Jaruary 1, 2010
IFRS 2 (Revised) Share-based Paymeni:
- Amendments arising from April 2009 Annual
Improvements to IFRS July 1, 2009
- Amendmenlts relaling to Group cash-settled share-
based payment transactions January 1, 2010
IFRS 3 (Revised)  Business Combinations - Comprehensive revision on
applying the acquisition method July 1, 2008
IFRS 5 (Revised)  MNon-current Assels Held for Sale and Discontinued
Operations - Amendment relating to Plans to sell the
controlling interast in a subsidiary July 1, 2008
IFRS 8 Operaling Segments - Amendments resulting from April
2008 Annual Improvements to IFRSs January 1, 2010
IFRS 9 Financial Instruments — Classification and Measurement January 1, 2013
IFRIC 9@ (Revised) Reassessment of Embedded Derivalives —
Amendments arising from April 2009 Annual
Improvements lo IFRS July 1, 2009
IFRIC 16 Hedges of a Nel Investment in a Foreign Operation -
Amendment to the restriction on the entity that
can hold hedging instruments July 1, 2009
IFRIC 17 Distributions of Non-cash Assels o Owners July 1, 2008
IFRIC 19 Extinguishing Financial Liabilities with Equity July 1, 2010

Except as noted below, the Board of Directors and management anticipate that the adoption of these
slandards and interpretations in the future periods at their effective dates will nol be relevant to the
financial statements of the Group in the periods of initial application.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2009

2 ADOPTION OF HEW AND REVISED STANDARDS (Cont'd)

23 Standards and interprefations fn isswve nof yel adopied (Coni o

. 145 24 [ravised): Relaled Party Disclesures Efective | Januwary 2011, The amandmants o tha
standard simplify the disclosure requeements for endities thal are controlied, jointly controlled or
significantly influenced by a govarnment (relemed bo as governman-reated entifies) and ciarly
tha definifion of a mlaled party. The standard 5 nol expocied 1o have any significant impact on
the Growp's financial results and will only hawe an mmpact on the disclosures in the financial
stataments.

. IAS 27 (Revised] - Consobdaled and Separate Financial Stadement, wnder the amendmants, the
increases or decreases in 8 parenl's ownarship inferest that do not result in a koss of controd, is
gcoounted for &5 equily iransactions of the consolidabed entity, Mo gain or 1058 & ecognised on
such ransaclions and goodwill B not m-moasured. Any diference belwaen the change in tha
non-coniroling imastment and the fair value of the considaration paid of received 5 recognised
directly in equily and atiributed to the owners of the parenl. Where thera is loss of conirol of a
subsidiary, any relained non-controliing investment at the date conbrol i lost s re-measured to
fair value, Lossas of ihe acquired antities an allocaled (o the non-coniroiling inlerest aven i thay
exceed tha non-conlroling inferast’s share of eguily in the subsidiary. The adoplion of the
revised slandard iz not expecied o hawve any significant impact on ihe consolidaied financial
strlaments of th Group,

" The amendmenis lo FRS Z Shame-Dasad Paymen! = effective January 1, 2010, provide
npdditional guidance on ihe atcounting for share-based payment ransactions among group
onlities. The revised Standard slafes explicitly that the entily receiving the goods or services will
rocognise the transaction as an equity-setiled sham-based paymanl iransaction only i, tho
awards granisd ams As owm equity instruments; or il has no obbgation (o setils the transacton. in
all giher circumsiances, Ihe antily will measure the ransacton as & cash-sellled share-based
payrent. This standard is nol expecied 1o have any significant impact on the Group's financial
stalements.

. IFRE 3 (Revised) Busnwess Combinalions - The rewison io (FRS 3 and e consequeniial
amendments fo IAS 2T Congoldafed and Separate Financial Statements, 1AS 28 Invesirments in
Asgociates and AS 31 Interexsiz v Joind Ventwes, remove the scope exclusions for business
combinabons invahing two or more mulesl enlities and busingss combinations in which separate
onlities am brought ogethar 1o form & reporting entily by contract alona wilthoud thi obtaining of
an ownership nlarest. The standard s not expected to have any significant impac on tha
Group's financiad statemenis.

- IFRE 8 Financial instrumarnds - The Standand infroduces new equinaments for the classificaton
ond measurement of financial assets and 8 effective from January 1, 2013 with eady adopbon
permitbed. Undgr the niw standards all recognisod finoncial assols thal are curmdntly in tha
scope of LAS 35 will be measured al adher amortised cost or tair value, A dobl instrument (e.g.
ican receivable) that (1) 5 held wilhin & business moded whose objeciive 18 1o collect the
contraciual cash Niows and (2) has contractual cash fiows thal are solely paymients of princapal
and interest on the prncipal amount outstanding gonerally mus! be measured al amortised cost.
Al giher debt instnements must ba measured at fair value through profit or less (FWTPL). A fair
value option B available (provided thal cersdn specified condibons are mel] as an altematva o
amortised cosl measurgmant, For dobd insiruments nol designated al FVTPL wndar the e vades
oplion, reclassification i requined batween FVYTPL and amorised cosl, or vice varsa, if the
anlity’s business modal objective for s financial asseis changes o thal its presious modal no
et applies,
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HOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 11, 2009

2 ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED STANDARDS (Cont'd)

23

Standards and interpretalions in issve not yel adopbed (Cont d)
. FRE 8 Fiancial iestriaments (Conld)

Tha new reguiremens for classificathon and measurement of financiad labilies, derecogniion of
financial matrumenis, impairment and hadge acobunling are axpecied to be addid o IFRS 9 in
2010, As a resull, IFRS 8 will aventually be a complals meplacemant for IAS 38 and IFRS 7, An
early adoplion of IFRS 8 will reguire the conlinued application of 1AS 39 for other acoounting
requiraments for financial instruments within is scopa that are nol covered by IFRS 8 (eug.
classification and measuremant of Anancial inbdies, recogniton and derscognition of fAnancial
aasals and financial Eabilies. impammant of financial assels, hodge accounling, oo, )

The siandard is not likely o have a significant impaci on the linancial resulls as the group
curranly has no significant financial asseats or kabilises thal are messwred of falr valee

3 SIGHIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

an

3.2

33

a4

Statement of compliance

The Group's Anancial stalemants have been prepaned i acoordance, and comply with. Inlemalonal
Financial Raporting Standards (IFRS) and the Jamaican Compankas Act,

Basis of proparation

The financial stalements have been prepared under the historcal cost basks, excepl for revaluation of
financial assats classified as avadable-for-sale invesimants. Histoncal cost is genarally based on the Fair
value of the considamation given in oxchange for the assats,

The principal sccounting policies are 81 oul below.
Basis of consolidation

The consolidaiad financial stalemants incorporala the fnancial stalements of the Company and the
ankilkes conlrolled by the Company (its subsidianes). Control is achieved whera the Company has the
porwear b0 govermn the financial and operating policies of an antily so as 1o obtain benefits from its aclivities.

Tl'llI'HI.IJ'I:I'DIEhbﬂ-lﬁlﬂﬂIﬂulﬂﬂﬂfﬂlmmﬂummﬂﬂmlmﬂmmlﬁmm
slatament of comprebansive incoma fram the offective dabe of acqussition or up b the offective date of
disposal as appropriate.

All intra-group irensactions, balances, income and expenses are eliminated o full oa consolidalon,

Properiy and ogquipmant

MﬂiﬂﬂﬂyIMWH&HT&'H&MIM%NM.“WHMHMM,“
recorded ai histoncal cosl, less any subsequent accumulated depracialion and subsequent accurmulated
impairment losses.

Properias in ihe course of producilon are carmied al cosl, less any recognesed impairment koss, Cost
includes professional fees capitalized in accordance with the Group's accouming policies. Depreciation of
Ehisgl fssels, on tho Sama DOsls a8 Oler properly assols. Commances whan e pSeels are feady for
their ilanded usa.
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“Providing A Fair, Efficient and

E Transparent Stock Market” ANNUAL REPORT 2009

HOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 11, 2009

3 SIGMIFICANT ACCOUNTIMNG POLICIES [Cont'd)

34

35

38

Property and equipment [Coni'd)

Depreciation is charged 5o as o write off the cost of property and equipment (obhes than freehold land),
ol the estimated useful lves, using the siraight-line method. The estimated useful bves, residual valugs
and deprecialion methods am roviewdd al each yaar and, with the affect of any changes in astmale
accouniad for on a prospective basis.

Freshold land is not depreciated

The gain of loss ansing on the disposal of retiremant of an ibem of proparty and equipment S datermened
as the diference batwoon the sales procesds and the carrying amount of the asset and i recognised in
thix stalarmant of comprehanshme incoma

Intangible assets

infangubla assels acquired are repored al cost less accumulabed amorsation and accumulatod
impairmiant lossos

Intangibla assets in the cowss of development are camied al cost less any impairment losses, Costs
include professional fees capitaliped in accordance with the group's accounting policies, Amortisation of
thess assdls, on the same basis as olher mlangible assets, commences when the assels are meady for
thieir inlanded use.

Amorissation on intengible esseis is charged on 8 streighi-bne basis over the estimaied lives. The
estimated usaful life and amorisation method are evewed al the end of each annuesl mposing pariod,
wiih ihe affect of any changes in esbmate being accounted for on a prospective basis

Impairment of tangible and intangible assels

Al the end ol aach reporting year, the Group reviews the carmying amounts of its {angibie and nlangible
azsals o datermine whether thare s amy indication that those assets have suffered an impalment loss. I
any such indicalksn exisis, the recovermble amount of the Bssel = astimaled i order lo determing the
axtend of the impairment boss (F any). Where it s not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an
indrvidual assal, tha Group esbmates fhe recoverable amound of tha cash-ganarating unil 1o which i
assel belongs. Where a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can ba identified, corporate assets
are atso aliocated to individual cash-generating wnils, or otherwise they are afiocaled fo the smabast
group of cash-genarating unds for which a reasonable and consisient alocation basis can be identified.

Imangible asseis with indefinite usehd Iives and inangible assals not yel avalable for use are tesied for
impalment annually and whenaver thare is an indication thal the assel may be impaired.

Recoverable amount = the higher of fasr valse less costs to sell and value in use, In assessing waloe in
usa, thi eslimated lulure cash fows Bne discounlod to theil prosent value using & pro-tax discount rale
that raflects currond market assessmonts of the time value of money and the risks spocific 1o the assat for
which the astimates of future cash fiows have not been adjusied.

If the mecoverable amount of an assel (or cash-generubing unil) is eslimated 1o ba lass than iha carmying
armount, the carmying amount of the assal (cash-ganarating unil) B reduced 1o s moovwfable amaunt.
impasmeni losses ara recognised as an expense immadiaialy.

B4

e e

B

i



“Providing A Fair, Efficient and

E Transparent Stock Market” ANNUAL REPORT 2009

HOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2009

3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

3.6

3z

a4

)

Impairment of tangible and intangible assets (Coni'd)

Where an impairment loss subseguenily reverses, the carmyng amount of the assel (cash-penaratang und)
i increaged 1o the revised estiimate of its recoverabbs amoun, Bul 2o (hal i encreased STy Mo
doas not excead e camying amount 1hal would have been delarminad had no impairment kass bean

recognised for the asse! (cash-genarating unit) in peor years. A reversal of an impairment loss is
recognised a8 income Immaduslaly,

Imrvestmeant in subsidiary

Imastment in subssdiary is staled al coat in the inancial stiements of the Compay.

Employes benofit costs

Paiigh biigiti
The Group operates a defined banefil pansion plan. The cost of providing banafits s delermined using
the Projected Linit Credit Method with aciuarial valuations being carried oarl af the and of each reporiing
yoar, Actuarial gains and losses thal excesd 10% of the gredder of the present value of the group's
dafined benafit obligation and the fair value of plan assats at the end of the prior year are amorised over
the sxpecied average remaining working kves of the participating employess. Pasl service cosl is
recognised immediataly to ihe exient thal the benafiis are already vested, and olhersisa s amorisad on
a straight-line basks over the average period unid the amended benefits becoma vested.

The post employmend benell assel recognised in e siatemen of financial positton represents the Tair
value of the plan assels, as adjusted for unmecognised acluanal gmng and losses and unfecognised past
senice cosls, and as reduced by the present value of the defined benalil obligation. Any assal resulling
from Ehis calculadion 18 limiled 1o the unrecognised acteinal osses and past senvioe cosl, plus (he pregen
walue of avaitable relunds and reductions in fuiure contributions to the plan,

Taxation
income {ax expense repeesanis the sum of iax cemently payable and defemed ia:x
381  Current tax

The tax currently pavable = based on taxable surphss for (o year. Taxable surplus differs from
the nat surplus a8 reported in the statemant of comprafansive incoma because it exciudes items
of income or expansas thal ara (axable or daductibla in olfesr yaars and il further exchades ibems
that are nover {axable or deductible. The Gerousp's Bability for current tax is calculabed using tax
ralas that have been enacted at the end of the reporing pariod
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HOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 21, 2009

3

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)
Taxation (Cont'd)

39

A0

382

Daferred tax

Deferred tax |s recognised on differences boatween the canmying amounts of assels and llabiitles
in (he financial stalemants and the cormasponding 1ax bases wsad in the computation of faxabls
surpluses. Deferred fax liabilities are ganerally recognised for all taxable jemporary differences
and defermed tax assels are recognised lo the exiant thal i is probable that taxabée surpluses will
& avallable against which deductible lamporary differences can be ulilized. Such assals and
liabllites @re nol recognised i the temporary differences arise from the mdlial recogniton of
assels and liabiflies in a tensaction that affects nedlher the (axable surplus noe the Rcoounbing
SUpE,

The carmying amount of dalerred lax assels s reviewsd al each year-end dale and reduced to the
exient (hal it is no longed probabls that sufficient tnxable surplus will be avallable 1o allow a8 or
par of the assel o be ecowansd

Defermed tax assels and liabilities are measured at the lax rates thal are expocted o apply n tha
peniod in which the lability s setiled or he assai realized, based on lax rales (and tax laws) that
have bean enacted by the and of the reporting year, which rales are expected io apply in tha
penod when tha liabilty ks seitled or the asset s realised. The measurement of deferred fax
Eabilibes and assels reflocts the lax conseguences that would fallow from the mannes in which
the group axpacts, at the reporing date, 1o moower or saftls tha carmang amound of its assats and
Babilites.

Deferred tax assels and liabdites are offssl when thame is a legally enforceabls nghl 1o set off
currend iax assais against curment tax labdibes and when they relate to income taxes levied by
tha same taxaton suthority and the Growp inlends o seiile its cument tax assels and Eabdliles on
a net basis,

383 Curreni and deferred tax for the period
Currant and deformed iax for tho panod is charged or cradiied in the statement of comprehansive
incoma, aucepl when it rolales 1o tems chamged or cradited directly to equity. in which case tha
delarrad tax is &l50 charged or credited in eguty

Financial Instruments

A fingncial insfrurmnant is any conlract thal ghves rise 1o a inancial assel to one entity and & Enenciad
liabifity to or equity bo another enlity

A financial assst is any assal that s

{uk
ihi
[eh

cash
an aquity instrument of another aniity
a confractual rghi

(i} toreceive cash or another financial asset from another endity; or
(8) o exchange financial assels or financial Babilibes with analhes antity under conditions Hhal
ane potentially favourable 1o e Groug.
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“Providing A Fair, Efficient and

E Transparent Stock Market” ANNUAL REPORT 2009

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2000

3 SIGMIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

A.10

Financial Instrumeants (Cont'd)

A financial liabiily is any Eability thal is @ contractual ohligaton:

(i} 1o deliver cash or another financial assel o anothar enliy, or
(i) 1o exchange fircencial sssets of fnancial latildes wilh another enlily under oonditions hal s
polentially unfavourable 1o the Group.

An equity instrumani s any contracl thal evidences a residual interest in e assets of the Group after
deducting all of fs linbdities.

The Group recognises financial assets or financial kabilites on s statemant of francis! posidion only
when the Group becomas a party 1o (he contraciual provisions of tha insirumenl.

Financial asseis

Imestments are recognised and derecognised on a frade dale where the purchase of sale of an
invesiment i under o contract whose erms requing delivery of the invesiment within the timelrame
establishad by tha markat concemed, and are niially meaasured at fair value, plus iransaclion costs.

Financial asssis are classified inio the iollowsng specified calesgonies: ‘held-io-rmaiunty investmants’,
‘available-for-sale’ (AFS) financial assets and ‘loans and receivables. The classification depends on Tha
nature and purpose of the financial asssts and is determingd al the lime of iniial recognition

3111 Effective interes! mathod

The effective interesi method = a method of calculating the amorised cost of & financal assel
and of allecating mares! income over the relevant peniod, The effective Interes! rate i the rale
thal exaclly discounls estimated future cash receipis (including all fees on points paed o
recaived that form an infegral part of the effective interesi raie, transaction costs and other
premivms or discounis) ihrowegh the axpacled ke of the inancial assel, or, whane apphopriale, a
shorer period,

Income s recognised on an effectve interest basis for the debl Insinements.

3112 Hald-lo-mitirily inveatmnls

Invesiments in securities with fixed or delarminable paymants and fixed maluity dates thal tha
Group has the positve mtent and ability to hold o maturity are classified as held-to-matunity
imesiments. Held-io-maurity imestments ane recorded & amorised cosl wsing The afecthe
inlarast mathod less any impairmant, with mvanue ecognided on an alledive yield basis

3113 AFS financial assels

Listed redesmable noles held by the Group thal are raded in an aclive markel are classilied ag
biing AFS and are siobed a1 lair value, Fair value is determingd in the manner describad in Nole
311, Gains and losses ansing from changes in fair value ane recognised directly in equsty in
the faéir wvalue meserve with the excepion of impaimment kosses, interest calculated using the
eltective inleres! methad and foreign sxchange gaing and |losses on monetary assels which are
retognisad direclly @ ihe stalemant of comprehanshe incoma, Whote tha invesimenl ks
disposed of or ks determined 1o be impaired, the cumulative gain or loss prenviously recognisad in
the fair value reserve is included in surplus or deficit for the period.
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CA “Providing A Fair, Efficient and
NGE Transparent Stock Market” ANNUAL REPORT 2009

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2000

3 SIGMIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

an

Financinsl #zseis (Conl'd)
3.11.3  AFS financial assets (Conld)

The fair value of AFS monelary assats denominated in a fodesgn curmency i delermined in thal
forsign curency and franslabed at ihe spol rate al the ond of the reporting year, Tha chango in
fair valua atiribuiable to franslation diferences thal resull from a changa in amortised cosd of the

assal s recognised in statement of comprahensiva incoma, and other changes are recognesad in
egquity.

3114 Loans and receivabies

Loans, and other receivables thal have fixed or determinable payments that are not guoled in an
active markel are classdied as Soans and recelvables’, Loans and recivables are measured al
amortised cost using ihe effeciive inlerest method less any impaiomeand Inberesi incoma ks
recognisad by applying the affectve interest rale, excepl for shori-leem receivables when the
recognition of interest would be immabenal

3115 Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables and othes receivables are clagsified as loans and receivables and s measured
indlialiy at fair values. Inlerest is nol charged on culsianding balances &s they are usually seiiled
within & short peniod during which recognilion of nlaresl would be immatenial,  Approphate
pliowances for eslimated |recoverabls amounts are rocognisad in the slatement of
comprahansive incoma, whan thene is objective avidence that the assal is impairad

3116 Ralated party
A party 3 considerad 1o be related i
(i) direcily or indirecily, throwgh one or more intermadianes, ona party ks able o axarcise
conirol or signdicant influence over the other party;
() both parts arne Subject o common control of signaicant nfluenca from this Sama
foctine N

(il ihe parly is a mémbaor of ey managemant personne of the group ar its parand, that is,
thosa persons hawving auihonty and rasponsiity for planning, direcling and contralling
the activites of the group, incleding divectors, officers and close members of the
families of these individuals; or

{w the party is a post-smployment banafit ptan for the banafit of the employess of the othar
party.

Intra groasp transaciions are recorded @l normal rates.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2009
3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)
3.11 Fimarcial assets {Conld)
3017 |mpairment of inancial assels

Financlal assels are pssessed for indscation of impatrment at the end of sach reporing year.
Financial sssets are mpained whare thare s objective evidence that, as a resull of one or mone
evants that eecurred afer tha inital recognition of the Snancial assets, the astimated luture cash
fiows of the invesiment have béen impacied.

For ol financial assets, inchafing redeemable noltes classified as AFS, objsctive svidencs ol
impairment could include:

" Significant inancial difficulty of the issusr of counlar party, oF
. Dofault or delinguency in intenest or principal payments; of
- It becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruplcy or financial re-organaation.

For cenain categonies of financial asset. such a5 trads receivables, asssets thal are assessed nol
o be impaired individually are subsequently assessed for impairment on a coliective basis.
Dojective evidence of impairment for a portfolko of recevables could inchude the Group's pas!
experence of collecling payments, and mcreass in the number of delayed paymenis in he
porifolio past the average credit peniod of 30 days. as well as observable changas in national of
kocal sconomec conditions thal corralate with dafaull on recedvables.

For financial assets carried o1 amorised cost, the amount of the mpalrment s the dilsrence
botween he assel's carrying amouni and the present value of estimaled future cash Nows,
discounted ai the financial assel's onganal oifective interest rale

Tha carrying amount of the Brnancial assel s reduced by e impairment loss dinectly for all
financial azsats with 1he axceplion of irade rocorvables, whone tha carmying amownd is reduced
through thi e of an allowancd accounl. When a trade recoivable is considensd uncollectible, i
i wiilton-0f aganst tha allowsancd acoount Subseguent recovenias of amounts privsoushy
wrillan-off are crediled against the aBowance account. Changes in the carmying amount of tha
allcwance account ane recognised n the statement of comprehensive income.

It, in a subsequent pariod, the amount of the impairmdgnt kkss decreases and the docroase can
bo related objoctvely 1o an avenl ocourring aftar the impairment was recognised, the previously
rpcogrisod impasmand loss is roversed through the statoment of comprehanshe ncomae 1o tha
axten! thal the camypng amount of the investmaent at the date the imgasrmant i reversad does nol
oxcead what the amartised cost would have been had the impairment nol been recognised.
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CA “Providing A Fair, Efficient and
NGE Transparent Stock Market” ANNUAL REPORT 2009

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2009

3

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

3.1

3.12

Financial agsets (Conl'd)

1118 De-recognition of linancial assets

The Group de-recognises a financial assel only when the confractual righls 1o the cash fiows
from the assel expire; of It transfers the financial assels and subsiantinlly all the risks and
rewards of ownership of the asset o ancther ontity, If the Group nelthar ransfers nor mdaing
substandially all the risks and rewards of osnarship and continues 10 condral the iransloened
assel, the Group recognises its refained interest in the assel and an associated labdity for
amounis it may have o pay. If the Group relains substantially all the risks and mewards of
ownership of a renstemed financlal asset, the Group continues 1o recognise the fnancial asset

and also recognises a collateralized bormowing for the proceeds recelwed,
Financial Habilities and equity instruments issued by the Group

3121 Classification as detd or aquiy

Debt and eguily instrumenls are classiied as aither inancial liabithes or 88 equily in accordance
wath thie substance af i contractisal amangamesi

3.12.2  Eguity instrumanis

An equity instrument i any conlract hal evidences a residusl interest in the asseis of an entity
after deductng all of #s liabilities. Equity melrumants issued by the Group ane recorded al the
procpads recenved, ned of direct issue costs.

34123  Elnangial lighilities
312,31 Fmancial liabililies of the Group are classified as other financial liabilities.

Oitbwer financiad liabilities thal include bomowings and accounis payable are millally
megsured gt fair values nel of transaction costs and subsequenily measured at
amorised cost using the affective interest mathod, with interest expanse recognised
on an effective yield basls.

Thes effective interest method s a method of calculating the amortsed cosl of &
fmsancial liabily and of allocaling interes! oxponsa ower (ha felovand pencd, Tho
affective interost rale s the ralte (hat exactly discounts estmaled fulure cash

paymeants through the expacted life of the Ninancial Tabilty, o, whera appropriate. a
sharlar pariod.

31232 Accouniz payable

Mo interest i accrued on oulstanding balances as thess are usually seltled wihin a
shor period during which any inferest charged would be immaterial.

11233  De-ecognilion of inancial Rabilifes

Tha Group desrecogreses financial habidily when, and only when, the Group's
obligations are dischanged, cancalied or they axpire.
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“Providing A Fair, Efficient and

Transparent Stock Market” ANNUAL REPORT 2009

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2009

a SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

313

Revenue recognition

Rovenwe is measured at the falr value of the considerafion receled of recervable and represanis
amounts receivabla lor senicas prosided in the nomal course of businass, el of comsumpbion taxes.

3131

3132

3133

Income from operatons

Cass income

Cess income which s based on o parcentage of the volume of business done thiough brokers
on the Exchange and derived from levies on insestors, is accounted for on tho accruals basis,
Eeg incoma

Fee income of the company, dedved from annual listing lees chamged 1o Ested companies is
accouniad for on the accruals basis. Fee income of the company also includes inilial lsting feas
padd by entilies wishing i be lisied on the Stock Exchange. These are accounied for as
recelved,

Fee income of (he subskdianes includes:
- Membership fees

Thesa are annual fees charged o the brokers and instifulional invesiors who paricigaie n
the 5D, and are sccounbed for on the accrnisl basis.

- Account maintenance fees

Thase are mondhly fees changed 1o the brokers and instiutional imestors wha paicipate n
thie CSD. and are accounted for on the atonal bagis,

+  Userfops

These include charges per transaction lor deposits, withdrawals and defivery onders
{irades), and are stoounted for on the acorual basks

- Trusiee sevvice feg

These include service fees charged fof ihe provision of ruslese, company managemant,
custodinnship and related services and are accouniod for on the accrual basis

Qehet cparating iNCom

These inchede income relaled io other senvioces and evenls of the group such Bs website
charges, conlerences and seminars, and are accounied for on the accrual basis.
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- g# glé\ll . “Providing A Fair, Efficient and
EXCHANGE Transparent Stock Market” ANNUAL REPORT 2009

MNOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2009

3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

313 Ravenue recognition (Cont'd]

3134 Investmenl income
Interes! incoima

Intenesi income i accruad on a ima basis, by mfemence o the principal outstanding and al tha
effective interesi ralea applicable, which & the mta thal exaclly discowns estmated fubtuwe cash
recaipis through the axpectad 6e of the financial assel lo thet assel's nal carmymg amount.

314 Compensation fumnd

3141  Compensation fund receipls

Thase are confribulions by membess of the Stock Exchange, based on & percentage of the
volumn of business done by them through the Exchange. for maintaining the Confingency
Raserve Fund, However, during tha year thare wie no contributions by the mambaer dealors as
tha Board was of the view thal the resene was adeguate for the spedlic purposae. (Ses 3.14.2
betow)

3142 Contingency resene

_k. This fund is crealed oul of swipluses for the purpose of providing some prodacton o the
| imvesting public who have suffered pecuniary loss a5 8 resull of defalcabion or frauduben misuse
: of securilies or documents of lifles 1o secunlies. Provisions in respect of the fund are in

atcordance with Sections 27 1o 35 of The Secunties Acl. The Board has decided o transfar
each yoar from income (o tha fund an amount equivalent bto the tolal of compensation fund
recaipds (Maote 3.14.1 above) and compansaton fund investment income nel of the chargs for
incodme B felated to swch meceipts and mvastmant incoma. Tha amount of Mhe Tund & ineested
a5 detailed in Mole B.1,

315  Segment reporting
The Group hes adopted IFRS 8 Operaiing Segmenis with effect from January 1, 2009 IFRS B requines

s operaling segments 1o be identibed on the basis of internal reponts abouwl components of the Goowp that
b, are regulary reviewed by the chiel cperating decision maker in onder (o allocals resources 1o the
b segmenis and 1o assess their perlormance.  In confrast, Ihe predecessor Standard (IAS 14 Segment
"]:u Reporing) requened an entity to identily two sets of segments (business and geographical), using a risks
P and. returns approach, with the entity's “syatem of internal financial reporting 1o key managemant
{. personnel” serving only as the starting posnt for the identification of such segmaent
hl' The activities of thie Group ars organized into the following pamary segments:
‘X
¥ {a) Exchange operations
\ ()  Depository
i fej  Investments - Compansabion Fund
s {d)  Investmants - Other
] ig} Dihar

i The adoption of IFRS &, has nol resulted in any changes 1o how segment ane identified within the Group.

e e

B

i



- g# glé\ll . “Providing A Fair, Efficient and
EXCHANGE Transparent Stock Market” ANNUAL REPORT 2009

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2009

3

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)
316 Foreign currencies

The fmancial statoments are presented n Jamaican dollars, the curmency of tha primary economic
environment in which the Group operales (s funclional curmancy).

In prapafing the financial stalements of tha Group, ransactions in curmancies other than the Group's
functional currency, the Jamaican doflar, are recorded at (he rales of exchange prevailing on the dates of
the Iranzaciions, Al the end of each reporing year, monelary Hams denominated in foresgn currencles
arm re-iranslaled al the rates preailieng on the stalement of financial position date, MNof-moanelary ilama
that ara maasurad in tarms af histoncal cost in & forelgn currency afe Noi re-Iranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the seitiement of monelary ilems are included in the siatemant of
pompreheniive incoma.

317 Dividends

Dhvidend distribubon 1o the company's shareholders |8 recognissd as a liability in the financial siatemanis
in the period in which the dividends are approved by the company’s shaneholders,

318  Borrowing costs

Borrowing osts are recognised n the statemant of comprehanaive incormes in the perod in which thay ane
Incurmed

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the apphcation of the Group's sccounling policies, which are descnbed in MNole 3, managament is required o
make pedgments, estimales and assumplions aboud the carying amounts of assols and habdities thal are not
readily apparent from other sources. The estimales and assoclated assumplions are based on historical
aupersance and olher feciors that are considered to be relevant. Aciual resufis may differ from ihese estimales.

Tha estimates and undartying asswmphions am mviewed on an ongoing basis, Revisions o accounting esbimales
are recognised in the peanod in which the estimate |s revised il the revision affecis only that perod, or in the perod
of the revision and fulure periods if the revision affects both curment and future penicds

4.1 Critical judgments [n applying accounting policles

The folowing is a crlical judgmenl. apar from those nvolving estimations (see 4.2 below] Thal the
ment has made In the process of applying the accounting policies and that have the most
significant effect on the amounts recognised n the financial stalements

4.1.1  Held-to-malurity investments

Thie direciors hawve reviewed (he Groug's hield-to-maturity inancial assets in e Bghl of ks caplial
maintenance and lqueidily megquiraments and have confirmed the Group’s positive intenlion and
ability to hold these asseis io maturity. The carrying amount of the held-to-maturity fnencial
assels ks SBB4 million. Details of these assels are st oud in Nole B.
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“Providing A Fair, Efficient and

Transparent Stock Market” ANNUAL REPORT 2009
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2000
4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (Cont'd)

42 Koy sources of estimation uncertainty

The following ame the key assumplions conceming the future and oiher key sources ol estimalion
uncertainty at the balance sheet date, that have & significant sk of causing &8 material addustment to the
carrying amount of assets and Rabilites within the nest financial year.

&21

422

Post employment benefit

As dischosed in Nole 10, the Group operales a defined benafit pension plan. The asset amounts
shown in the siatemant of financial position of approximately $41.6 million for the Group and
$33.3 million for the company, i respect of the defined banefils plan s subject io estimales in
respact of panodic costs that ane depandeni on fulwe rebums on assels, fulure discount rates,
rales of salary increases and inflatsasn rale in respect of the pension plan.

The estimated return on pension assels assumplion s determined by consedenng kng-lenmm
héstorical returns, assel allocation and future estimates of long-ferm imvestment returms.  The
Group estimales the appropriate discounl rale annually which rale I8 used o delerming the
presant value of estmated cash outliows expecied o be required to sottle posl amploymand
enefit obligations. Aciuanes are contracied in this regand,

To determing 1he appropriaie discount raba in the absence of high quality corporaia bonds, tha
mlerest rales on government bonds thal have malurifies approwimating the relaled pension
Habilities ware conskiened.

Incoms taxes

Estimaies are required in determining the prowissons for income faxes. There are some
tranzaciions and caleulations for which ihe uiiimate tax determination s uncertain during ha
ordinary cowrse of busness. The Group recognisas abdies for possible iax msues based on
estimates of whelher asdiionnl taxes will ba dus. Whaere the final lax culcome of these malters
in différanl from ihe amownls thal wete ongmally recorded, such diferences will impact tha
incoma tax and dofarred tax provisions in ha perod in which such delarmination is made. (soe
Mobes 18 and 2T},
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“Providing A Fair, Efficient and
Transparent Stock Market”

ANNUAL REPORT 2009

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 11, 2000

5 PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT [Conl'd)

The following useful lives are used in the calculation of depreciation of propery and equipment:

Buildings . 40 yaars
Furniture and fixtures - 10 yaars
Odffica equipmen - 5 yaars
Compuber hardwane . 5 yoars
Maolor wehiclas - 5 yoars

Mo depreciation is provised on {reshold land,

[} INTANGIBLE ASSETS
—_— TheCeep
Cosmigitar
Softwana
Conmputns Darvalopmeni
Soltware  _ Progect
5000 2000
Cost
dnrwry 1, 2008 LT ] 4610
Addions Fi-1d 2563
Jaruney 1, 2006 ILETE T.203
Addiliens 001 AL
Decamber 31, 2000 41577 AL
Ao liaaicn
Jirmary 1, 2008 26570
Chargs far it year 5.2 =
Jaraiary 1, 2000 22173
Charge Tor tha yesar pR ] .
Deecambar 31, 2006 8308 —
Camying ameown
December 31, 2000 JE.250 S08F
December 31, 2008 503 L20g

THIRL

ks

8
o

EE EE

The Compsmy
Coimpufes
Saltwriare
Daeslopment
— Prowct Torind
§1000 5000
. 24,188
1 3089
.00 ITIrT
LT85 AL -
efar o LU
" 16817
- 4 AT4
21,181
= 28
e £3.473
A S.550
el SLOBE

Amortigation of the computer software is calculated based on an estmated useful life of 3 - 5 yesms.
Amortisation is not calculaled on computer saffemre in davelepment.

T INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARY
Irvaeatmanl b subskipry is a5 follows.,

Shares — at cost

5000

2008
$000

55.000
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- g‘]\' glé‘ |{ CA “Providing A Fair, Efficient and
EXCHANGE Transparent Stock Market” ANNUAL REPORT 2009

HOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 11, 2000

8 INVESTMEMNTS IN SECURITIES
B Compansation Fund
The Geoyp and Tha Company

2000 200
S000 5000

Heaid-io-madurdy — Al fmodtiped oos]

Govarnmenl of Jamaich Seciinites

Wiwlable Rates Local Regisiensd Siocks: 12 5% - 18.675%

(0012 5% - 16.915%) 41,915 45,701
livesrsiment Debenbunes: 168% - 24 5% (2008 16.7%) B2 550 3 214
Investment Bonds: 17.50% - 21.83% (2008 14 58% - 18.40%) 224,355 B2.850
Bank al famalca cerdificale of deposis 17 4% (3008: 17% - 18%) 3200 11355
W Variable Mole - 21.17% 31,0049 -
Forot Croncy investmanty
Govemmeni of Bolize guananiesd momgage noies

{mominal valus LISS49 201) 4.4549 2.0

Fimed faie LS5 Global Bonds — 100625% (nomnal valus LISS350,000) 30631 30 TE
LSS 8% Global Bond {rominal valus LISS195,000) 13,460 12110
GO Fixed Rade LSS Indax Bond 11 5% (nominal value LSS 144, 000) _13.065 11,658

444674 ST AR
Avpulatp-for-gake — Al fae vk
Invvestment i Urd Trosts JARes 45133
Loans e receivabias — Al amarioed Gos
Repuichass agreamants — 13% - 21% (2008 12 55% - 15.65%) 10Ty arar
Repuichass agrésments (nominal value LSSTIS, 170; 4% - %)
(2008: nominal valoe LISST 466 4 85% - 6.5%) _43.609 §12
-] 107 TEd
Cash ang Qifwars
Cash and cash oguivalents 31358 128,454
Cihar recohvables 2.555 &.211
Payabies (2200 4507
23115 120,758
Sd 281 510,134
Lanx: Coet porticn (1934800 (262.690)
a8 L7 444
e mecreprmeend o Thee year in availatie-for-sale invesimants
s i Tollows:
S 45 1713 43 457
incraass in fair value - 1678
Despomad of units {32967 =
Cloging balance S S48
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- g% glé'\& CA “Providing A Fair, Efficient and
EXCHANGE Transparent Stock Market” ANNUAL REPORT 2009
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 3009
8 INVESTMENTS IN SECURITIES (Cont'd)
E2{a) Oiher
The Group The Company
2009 =008 ) 2008
$000 5000 £000 §'000
I fiby =
Govermmani of Jamakca Secumlies
Vanable Rates Local Registerad Siocks: 16.975%
(2008 15.915%) 33431 33,278 33431 33,278
Investmend Debantures: 16.70% (008: 15.50%) 788 12,542 - 11.756
NWC Variable Mole 21.17% 2,087 - 2,087 -
Bank of Jamaica CD 17.14% {2008:15.30%) - 56,9309 - 53,836
Govermment of Jamaica
invastmant Bonags J517.3385% - 22 58%
(2008: 14.87% - 20, 76%) 233,038 239,253 208,781 210,748
Foreign Cumrency Invesiments
GOJ 10,625% USS indax Bond
{mominal value USE410,000) 35,889 35,801 35,869 35801
Govarnment of Balize guaranisad mongage
noles (nominal value USS40.201- 4. 25%) 4,459 2,701 4,450 2,1
USS Giobal Bond {nominal valua LUSS20:0,000) 17,485 16518 - -
G0 Fixed rate 7.25% (nominal valua US5518,000) 4T 417 42 456 18,561 17887
k Gdobal Bond 8.0% (nominal vahos LISSE00,000) h2 454 46 5TQ 52 454 46,518
i Fimnd rate USS Indexed Bond - MC Barbados 9%
X {reominal value LSS 100,000) 9,188 __B6a = =
436,194 493,338 357,022 412,645
' Investments in Uinit Trusis - _21,848 - _12.880
Lopng and mecaivables - il amonised cog
Repurchase agresmants:
13 50% - 18% (2008 11.55% - 12.5%) LR 31,450 10,838 13,637
Rapurchase agreamants
. -UUSS52, 573 - 5.0% - 4,167 = 4167
b 451,088 550,783 36T 851 443 325
!‘" Less; Current portion {152.099) (125,197 {133.028) ( 96.276)
,’ 288,999 425,596 234,835 H7.053
ol The movemeant lor ihe year in available-or-zala
y Invesiments is a3 lollows:
' Opening balance 21,848 26,205 12,880 15,555
Decrease in fair value : { 4,357 B { 2675
h ' Disposal of units (_21.848) . -
-é Closing balance I 21848 e 12880
i
LY
% B2 (b) Carain mvesimants bsted above ang hald as secunly for borrowings by Pan Canbbaan Financial
% Services Limited, soo Note 20,
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- g% glé'\ & CA “Providing A Fair, Efficient and
EXCHANGE Transparent Stock Market” ANNUAL REPORT 2009

MNOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEAR EMDED DECEMBER 11, 2000
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10

LONG-TERM RECEIVABLES

Thasa fepresan| loans granled to employeas, The loans are epayable by monthly instaliments and am for &
period of 5 years. Thase loans carry an interast rate of 10% per annum, The curment poricn of these loans, due
within twalve monlhs from e year-end amounbing to 53,424 5987 [2008: 52,438.940) is incheded in other
recaivabla.

POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS

The Group operates a defined benafil pension plan for is employees. This scheme is open o all permanan
employees and is adminstored by Guardian Assel Managemen Limfled. The schems is funded by employes
conlributions of 5% of pensionatde salary, with an oplion for additonal voluniary contnbutions of up 1o 5% of
pensionable salary, The companies in the Group contribube to the plan al rates determined pefiodically by
indepandant actuanal valuations {currently 6.6% of pensicnable salary) to mael the obligations of tha schama.
Tha padsion benefis are determined on a final salary basis al 2% of final ponsionable salary Bmes pansionabla
years of sanice.

The mosi mecent aciuarial valuation was carmied oul st Decembsr 31, 2008, by Duggan Consulting Limied, a
gualified acluary. The present value of the defined benafil obligation and the related cumen] sanvice costs and
pasi service cosls have been meazured using the projectad unit credil method.

{a) Principal asssmptions used for the purpose of the achuarial valuations were as follows:
The Group and the Company
2004
Discount rafe 16.0% 16,0%
Expaciod rabwm on plan assols 16.0% 15.0%
Expacled rate of salary increass - 12.0%
Future pension increases 0.0% 0,0%
() Amoan méhpdad in the slatemant of financial posiBion m raspect of the schama 13 a5 Tollows:
The Group The Company
2009 2008 2009 2008
000 5000 $000 000
Presani value of defined banafil
oorgHions [ 36,362) (30,963} (29,090} (24,770)
Fair value of plan assels 103,532 14,869 52.02¢ 59,805
G7.170 43,006 53,7348 35,125
Pasi sarvice costs not yat
recogrised 272 L4 218 435
Unrecognised actuarinl (gasnes)
lossas { 4.558) 14,089 [ 3.648) 11,001
Aszols nol recognised due io
limftation in paragraph 58
of IAS 19 (_21.169) (15.881) (16.951) (12.444)
Mat asset in the stalement of
financial position 41,604 42,648 H1.355 H.117
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“Providing A Fair, Efficient and

Transparent Stock Market” ANNUAL REPORT 2009
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2009
0 POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (Cont'd)
(c) Amounts recognilsad in incoma in nespact of the scheme ane as follows:
The Group — TheCompany
2009 <008 2009 2008
5000 000 5'000 5'000
Current service cost 1,024 417 i@ 34
Emleresi cosd 5645 2583 4 516 2,386
Expecied return on plan assels { T.48T) {7, 506) {5,990) (B.005)
Pasl servica costs 2r2 3,835 218 3.148
Recognisad lossf{gain] S50 { 488) 440 [ 3
Increase in unrecognised assals _5.298 8270 4,757 6.349
Total included in employes benafit
costs 202 LE10 4760 ER-F41
Actual return on plan assels LABT (FA-F ] =399 E.261
{dj Movements in the net assel in the current perod wers 55 Tolows:
Thie Company
2009 2008 2009 2008
000 5000 $000 5000
Opaning baksncs 42648 45,946 34,118 37557
Amount charged 1o incomsa [ 5.302) { 7.810) ( 4,760) { 5.820)
Conlribulions paid i B b 3807 -£.380
Closing balance 41654 42,648 31355 ST
(&) Changes on e present value of the defined benald obligations wee as follows:
— TheGroug
2009 2008 2000 20048
5000 5000 5000 5000
Cipaning defined benafit obligations 30,963 20,005 24770 16,004
Saenvice cogl 1.024 47 a1g 334
Inlares) cosd 5645 2,982 4,516 2.366
hMambdars' contributions 5573 4 881 4482 37T
Past service cosl - 4,479 - 3.583
Banefits paid [ 562) { 538 i 472) [ 48]
Aciuadial gasn (_6.261) L1243} (2.023) [_1.265])
Closing defined benefit obligations 26,362 0,963 23,090 24,170
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“Providing A Fair, Efficient and

Transparent Stock Market” ANNUAL REPORT 2009
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31. 2009
10 POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (Cont'd)
M Changas in the fair value of plan assets are as follows:
— Thi Grgup The Company
2009 2008 2009 2008
£'000 £'000 5000 £'000
Cipaning fair value of plan sssets T4, 884 75,060 58,895 60,048
Membears' coniributions 5573 4 BB 3,062 3rma
Employer's contribulions 4,348 3312 3,897 2,380
Expected relum on plan assets 7487 7,506 5,890 6,005
Benafits paid ( o6d) [ 538} [ 473) [ 45)
Actearial gain{ioss) 11817 (15332} 2454 (12.2648)
Cloging tair value of plan assats 103,532 14.863 B2B26 SH.A85
]| Thie tair value of plan assels |s analysed as follows:
—The Group The Company ___
2009 2008 2009 2008
000 £'000 000 000
Equity inwestmeni 22,308 21,048 17,646 16,837
Government of Jamakca sacurities a7 465 37518 872 30,014
Real estals 20,000 10,010 16,000 8,008
Others 22,759 6205 19.007 5,096
Fair value of plan assat 103,532 [4.863 B2.826 20885

The ovarmll expected rate of relum of 10% on plan assels B a weighted sverage of the expacted relum of the
vanous calegones of plan assels held. The direclons’ assessment of the expecied refurn i based on historical
treniis and analysts’ predicions of the marked {or the asseis in the next twele months.

The history of exparience adjustrmaents is as follows:

Presenl valos of defined benafi obligation
Fair value of plan assals

Fund surplus

Experence adjusiments on plan Eabilibes
Experence adjustmeants on plan assets

Thie Growp

Dafined Bongl Pengion Plan

2008 2008 2007 2006 2005
5000 5'000 5000 5000 5000

{ 36,362 (30.063) (20005  (17.530)  (11,740)
103,532 74,863 15,060 B4, 782
&7,170 43,806 BE 055 52,508 53,042
6,281 {1243y ([ 2808) ( 6BOS) | 1733

[ 11,817 15,332 8,125 B,351 {14,041}
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- JAMAICA “Providing A Fair, Efficient and
STOCK Transparent Stock Market”
EXCHANGE p

ANNUAL REPORT 2009
HOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2000
10 POST EMPLOYMENT BEMEFITS (Cont'd)
The Company
Dafined Benef Pengon Pl
2008 2008 20T 2006
5000 5000 5000 £'000 £000
Present value of defined banafit obligation {28.571) (24770) (16004) (14024} | 9513
Faér value of plan assets B2.626 50,895 60,048 56.031 51.947
Fund surplus 54,255 35,126 44 044 42.007 42,434
Expanence adjustmants on plan Enbilibes 5,025 {1285 (17320 ([ 624 { 1424)
Exparience adjustmants on plan assets { 9.453) 12,266 4,277 4942 11,233

The Group and the Company expacl 1o make coniributions of 5421 million and 53,10 milkon respectively (2008:
£3.47 million and $2.58 million respectively) to the defined benelit plan durng the nesd financial year

The plan assels do nol include any of the Group's own financial instrumants, nor any propeny occupied by or

ol asaels used by the Group,

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

The Group The Company

2008 2000 2008

£000 £'000 $000 $000

Cass recaivable B.268 2441 106 1,878
Fees and olher receivables 18685 2. Bab 10,429 15421
26,853 25,087 16,535 17,299

Less: Allvwance for doubtiul debis - odher

receivables (6299 (_E.555) (_4.863) (5.241)
20,654 18,532 11,572 12,058

Prepayments A5 4,744 _2.895 2,740
ER.1EE 43276 14.467 14.738

The average credit perod on sarvices is 30 days. Mo inerest is charged on the frade and other receivables. The
Gmoup has provided for receivables over 160 days, because héstorical experience ks such that recehables thal ane

past dus bayond 180 days mre generally not recoverable.

Included n ather recaivables however, are debbors with a carrying amount ol $80,165 for the Group and nil far the
Company (2008: £1.8 milion for the Growp and $1.7 milan for the Company), which ane past due al the reporting
daby for which the Group has not provided as there has nol been a significant changs in credd gualily and the

amounis ane sl considensd recoverable.
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- g% glé'\& CA “Providing A Fair, Efficient and
Transparent Stock Market” ANNUAL REPORT 2009
EXCHANGE
HOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2000
11 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Cont'd)
Againg of past due alher recelvables
it
The Groug —The Commany _
2008 2008 ] 2008
S'000 £'000 £'000 5000
180 = 385 days 261 B3 B21
Chiae 1 year oL 818 i L _818
261 1.E09 - LE37
Movernen| in allowance for doubiful debts on
_Gther rocaivableg
The Groug —The Company
2009 2008 akit 2008
Lo00 £'000 £'000 £000
Balance al beginning of year 6,555 4,385 5241 3457
Impairmant losses recognised on
receivibdos (_258) 2170 T8 1784
Balance at end of year E.233 B.555 4,563 524l

In determining the recoversbility of a recelvabie, the group considers any change in the credit qualily of the
recenable from the dale credil was granted up 1o the reporing date. Concenfration of credil rsk s lmited dus o
i mature of he customer base, Accordingly, managemeni believes that there s no further credit provision
requirgd in excess of (he allowance for doubiiul debls

fgemng of impairad other recoivables
The Group — The Company
2008 2008 2008 2008
£'000 £7000 £000 5'000
180 + days £.209 E.555 4,963 5241
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CA “Providing A Fair, Efficient and
NGE Transparent Stock Market”

ANNUAL REPORT 2009

MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEAR EMDED DECEMBER 11, 2009

12

13

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

For the purpose of the cash flow stalement cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand and n banks, ned ol
bank ovendrall and invesimants in mongy marke! insirumants with an ofiginal matwriy of three months oF ss frem

ihe date of acquisition and ans hald 1o meed cash requissmants rathes than for vestmaent purposes.

Cash and cash sguivalenis include
Tha CHOUD Tha Comppry
rarits:) 2108 2004 £00E
5000 000 000 S000
Cash on hand and 5 banks BT T80 4 568 45,640
Mshey maiket invesimaers denominatod in
Jamaicon dollars af inderes? mbe of 11.55% -
12.25% [2008: 11.85% -12.25%) 0,785 12829 5.000 8778
oy markat invesimont donominaind in
fonsign curmency LISSE2 W56 (2008; USSTS 908)
o indores! rale 5% - 6% (2008 50% -5.9%) - X-r 55 388 511
£0.358 560 1LES B3935
SHARE CAPITAL
k] 2000 PiLls] Fak,il ]
Ho. of shares Mo, of shares 5000 §000
Auhitigsd:
Ovilinnry Shanes - no pisf value (e (o) bk EOOLOOOO0D  EO0LLOLO0D
Fralarsnce Shires - no par visue {56 (i) belcw] 100.000.000 JEH0L OO0 000
Issuad capaal
Cirdinary shams - no par valus LE050000  _2A.050.000
Praforonce shams - no par vakoe SRE00.000 33000000
Staled capilal
Al ABriEESy 1 113,580 113,580
Issun of ordinary shares [ses (b) balow) 55,000 55,000
33,000,000 prelerence shanss al S2.00 aach (near (o) bebkow) 56,000 66000
TH.580 234 530
Less: Redéamabls prahsence shand classilied is
linbdities na roqued by FRS [sae (a) (5} below)
{Moks 171 EE000) L OE.000
Al Decermber I 168.500 198,550

{a) Al an extracrinary general mesting of the sharsholders heid Agril 17, 2008, a resolution was apgroved 1o reclassily

they sarvon hundred milkon (F00,000,000) cordnary shares to s hundred million (G00,000,000) crdinary shares and one

hundred midlion (100.000,000) Class A’ wvanable redeemable prefersnce sharss snd that ihihy three millon
{33,000,000) of ihe one hundred milion (100,000,000) varkable rals pralenence shares be allotied by way of a public

oftor of o price of $2.00 sach

{B} By orduwnany resoluton dated Agil 17, 2008, 27,500,000 ordinary shanes wers issusd o i easing sharsholdars pho-
rated b the curren? holdings by capitalizing 55,000,000 out of the relained samings.
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- g# glé\ll . “Providing A Fair, Efficient and
EXCHANGE Transparent Stock Market” ANNUAL REPORT 2009

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2000

13 SHARE CAPITAL (Cont'd)

{c) Preference shanes

. Ther prafersnce shanes pay o wanable cumulatneg prferantial diedend évery threa {3) months
based on tha higher of Governman of Jamaichs waighted avwarage Treaswry Bill yeld (having a
lenor of between 176 and 184 days) fixed at the beginning of every & months pencd and inferes!
rate paid on open markel instrumsens issesd by the Bank of Jamaica that have 180 days lenor,

14 FAIR VALUE RESERVE
Tha regerve represants the Bir value sdjustment relating to available-for-sabe investments in securiies - othar
{Note 8.2).
The Group The Company
2009 2008 2009 2004
5000 000 5000 $000
Bakance at Jarvuary 1 (#,008) {1,102} {2.653) | BEE)
Mel adjustment arsing on revaluatsn
ol availablo-for-gale financial assels
during the yaar - (4, 35T) E [2.6T5)
Hat gain arising from disposal of
avallable-for-3ale financial assels 6,01 - 3,979
Dafermed lax adjustmants on
availabla-for-sale financial assels {2003 1,451 L B8
Bakance ol Decamber 31 - (4,008) ey (2,653
15 REVEMUE RESERVE
Rafiecied in the financial staiemeants of the
2009 2008
$'000 $'000
Paranl company 261,368 196,208
Subsidianes (_6.027) _76.,166
235341 FIFITL
16 CONTINGENCY RESERVE
The Group and the Company
2009 20048
5000 5000
aj  Tha transfer from mvenus resane Comprises:
Surpius — Compavaation fund belons txaBen B4, 669 S18z28
Lo
Income tax charge for year at 33%W% 26 36 16, 101
Dalirnisd b adjusirme| [_4,.7a5) 1613
24,618 11714
£0.051 24114

s Thirge profensnce shanes hive no voling rights
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“Providing A Fair, Efficient and

Transparent Stock Market” ANNUAL REPORT 2009
NOTES T THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2009
6 CONTINGENCY RESERVE (Cont'd)
a) (Coni'd)
The reserve comprises:
The Group and the Company
2009 2008
5000 S000
Irveestrman befofe fair value adjusimant 545,818 B00. 954
Fair valus acdurstmonts _1.535) —8.140
Imvesimenis in secutities (ses Mote B.1) 544 281 510,134
Income tax recoverable (payabila) 6,304 [ T.649)
Dielered tax abisy 20 478) 25 224)
230,196 417,261
2009 2008
S'000 5000
bj Balance at January 1 6,093 4,976
Met adpestman] related o availabla-for-sale financial assots 1,700 1,676
Deferred tax on adjusiment on revaluation of available-
b'|h for-sale invastmants [ 588} [ 558)
_ Nel adjustments related io mvaslable-for-sake financa azasts
i disposed of during thin yaar (12.374)
Defermad tax adjustments on disposal of available-for-sake
imestmanis 4,124 ——
Balance at December 31 1023 8,083
|
| 17 LONG-TERM LIABILITIES
_The Group and the Company
| 2009 2008
5000 5'000
b'_ Prafefence shares (Maole 13) 8,000 46,000
LE
Fj' 18 DEFERRED TAX
it
il This comprises
' —  TheGroup —  TheCompany
i \ 2009 2004 2009 2008
5000 000 5000 £'000
i Delarred tax assats 11,740 1,754 9,274 T2
Defarrad (ax labilities {43,714) (51.158) (3463} (44.507)
Met position at Decernber 31 (31.974) (49.404) (28.189) (43725}

42
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- g% a’l(‘:‘& CA “Providing A Fair, Efficient and
EXCHANGE Transparent Stock Market” ANNUAL REPORT 2009
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2009
DEFERRED TAX (Cont'd)
The movement in the nel deferred lax position was as follows:
The Group The Company
2009 2008 2009 2008
000 5000 $'000 $'000
At January 1 (49.404) (33,380) (43,775) (48,130)
{Charged) Credited to income
for the year (Nole 27) 15,875 (16,9186) 13,354 4,023
(Charged) credited to fair value
resarva for the year { 2,003) 1.451 [ 1.328) 891
Credited {charged) to contingancy
reserve for the year -3.558 (_359) -3.558 (_338)
At December 31 (31,874) (42,404) (28.189) (43.775)

The following are the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities recognised by the Group during the year:

Deferred Tax Assets

At January 31, 2008

Credited to fair value
resarve for the year

(Charged) Credited to
income for the year

At January 1, 2009

Charged to fair value
reserve for the yaar

(Charged) Credited to
ncame for the yesr

Al Dacember 31, 2009

The Group The Company
Unréalised
Inlerest Actrued Loss on Accrued Interast
Payable  Vacation  Investments  Tax Loss Tolal Vagation  Pavable ~ Total
5000 5000 £000 5000 2000 000 3000 5000
- 632 117 18,870 20,719 614 . 614
- 245 s (19.770) (19.525) 118 =T 18
- arr BT7 200 1,754 732 - 732
= - (ETT) - { BI7T) - - -
8715 (161) = 2,109 10,663 (173 B715 6,542
8.115 Al == 2309 11740 559 g5 89274
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“Providing A Fair, Efficient and

Transparent Stock Market” ANNUAL REPORT 2009
HOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2009
18 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE
The Company ___
2009 2004 2009 AL
5000 5000 £'000 000

Accruals and other payables

20 BORROWINGS

—_— e Grup
2009 2008
5000 000
Pan Canbbean Financial Sernvices Limited
(interesl rate - 23% - 25.75%:) 91980 —

This relates to a reverse repurchase agreement payable on demand,

21 OTHER OPERATING INCOME

The Company___
] 2008
AT £'000

1588 e

The Company
2009 2008
5000 5000

12,180 13,255
77,000 .
22217 23,626

— The Group
2009 2008
5000 000
Raogianal confenence 12,180 13,255
Dividand recaived from subsidiary = -
Other 21,285 33,806
33,465 47061
] BTAFF COBTS
Thay Gipup
2009 2008
000 5000
Salaries and other employes banaflits 108,704 100,717
Statutory contributions 6116 6,203
Retiremant benafil charge 5302 1610
120,122 115.230
23 INVESTMENT INCOME
Thi ﬁwn
2008
5000 S'000
231 Investiment incoma includes:
InlEresl income 85,038 T1.481
Foraign exchange gains 15,389 18,548
Loss on disposal of available-lor-salke
invesimeants [_B.011%) =T
104.416 21027

Thes Company
L] 2008
S000 £000

82,173 75,597
4,133 5.183
_4,760 _6.820
21,066 B6.610
The Company
5000 £000
81,847 B1.474
10,294 13,165
(2978 —

Br.962 14639
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“Providing A Fair, Efficient and

Transparent Stock Market” ANNUAL REPORT 2009
HOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 11, 2000
2 INVESTMENT INCOME (Cont'd)
_ TheGroup — The Company
ik’ £008 ALY L0
000 000 £'000 000
3.2 Invesimienl inoome aamed, analysaed by
category of inancial asset ts as folicws:
Held o maluriby 76,409 76,952 70,480 64,661
Loans and recaivables 3,751 14,075 3,583 9,778
Available-for-sale 34 255 - 13878 -
104,416 BLOZT BrBE2 T4.638
24 COMPEMSATION FUND INCOME (MET)
The Group and the Company
£009 2006
£'000 S000
Incomea:
InbErast income 73,443 27,5
Gain on disposal of availabla-for-sak inveatmants 13,870 -
Foreign exchange gains _16.573 13,135
103,895 FitRrs
Expanses:
Adminisiralive changes (_19,226) (18,901}
S4.669 51828
25 FINANCE COST
The Group and the Company
2009 008
2000 5000
interesi on preference dividends 13,309 6,013
Interes) on shor-term borroesdngs 26,144 -
38,535 6013
28 SURPLUS BEFORE TAXATION
Surplus belore taxation s stated afier laking into account the folleatng:
_ The Group The Corngeary
2009 2009 2008
5000 5000 000 5000
Incoma:
Inborest a5 038 71,481 B164T 81,474
Expanses:
Diresclorm’ fses B.566 B.680 T.137 704
Audil fees 5,003 4 400 1,300 2,500
Dopreciabon ol proporty, and equipment 10,428 11,774 8.218 B.578
Amoriisation of intangble assobs 3,155 5203 2281 4374
Inbarest on long-tenm liabilites 13,381 6.013 13351 6,013
Inberest on shoridenm bomowings 26,144 - 28,144 -
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- JAMAICA “Providing A Fair, Efficient and
STOCK Transparent Stock Market”
EXCHANGE p

ANNUAL REPORT 2009
NOTES TO THE FINARCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 20040
ar TANATION
i | Recognised in statement of comprehensive income
(1] The charge for the year represents:
The Group The Company
2009 2008 2009 2008
$'000 $000 $000 5000
Currani tax a7 865 66,200 37 BES &0, 200
Deterred tax (Note 18) (15.873) 16,916 (13.354) (4.023)
21780 103,116 24311 28111
(i) The charge for the year reconciled to the surplus as per the statement of comprehensive income
as follows:
Tha Group —ihg Company
2009 2004 2009 2008
000 5000 $000 $000
Surplus before taxation £4.808 410819 148,520 168,521
Tax ai the domeastc incomea
L raba of 33%% 21,602 103,606 49 B840 56,640
Tax effect of [tems thal ana
nid deductibla in
datermaning laxable phohi 311 1,173 a1 1473
Tax aflect of items allowsd
for tax purposas - | 1,841} { 25.687) { 1,6386)
Other 123} 22} - s

R N XA L

2451 =BT

Al the end of the reporiing year, the subsidiaries hed tax losses aggregating $6.9 milkon {subject fo
agreement of the Commissioner, Taxpayer Audit and Assessment) which are availlable for set-off

againgl futune taxable profils.

A deferred tax assel has been recognised in respact of these losses (Note 18) as management expects

adaguala fulure profiis 10 recover the assal

27.2 Recognised directly in equity

—The Group The Company
20049 2008 2009 2008
$000 000 000 §000
Fair value adjustments 1.554 ga2 s | I
28 MET SURFLUS OF THE GROUP FOR THE YEAR
Raflacted in the financial sialements of the;
2009 £008
5000 000
Parent company 48,211 113,744
Subsidiary [ 5.183) 983959
43,018 207,703

g7



- g# glélz . “Providing A Fair, Efficient and
EXCHANGE Transparent Stock Market” ANNUAL REPORT 2009

MNOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2009

20 EARMNINGS PER SHARE

Basic eamings per share is calculaled by dividing the distribatable swplus derved from operations, by Ihe
weighlad average number of ordinary shares in issue.

200g 2008

[Dhaficil) suipdus. derneed from operations - distributabla (5'000) {17,033) 173,588

Weighled sverage numbaer of ofdinary sharas (e Delow]) 28,050 28,050

Basic aamings per share (50.81) 5616

30 SEGMENT REPORTING

The Group s organized into four main business segmeants.

{a) Exchangs oparations - The operation and regulation of iha Stock Exchange,

i) Depositony - Sarvices in connection with iransfeming and holding of securises, shares, siocks, bonds
and dabaniures,

{c) irmestmeants — Compansation Fund - Income derived from investing acthities of the Compensation
Fund.

{d) Imnastmants — Othar - Incomea darived from mvesling activites of the Group with the excaption of {c)
above

(i) Other - Trstes, custodianship, company manageman! and olhar aciiilies.

The Group's operabons are localed solely in Jamaica
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- g% #é‘ |{ g “Providing A Fair, Efficient and
EXCHANGE Transparent Stock Market” ANNUAL REPORT 2009

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2009

30 SEGMENT REPORTING (Cont'd)

2008
Invesimentls
Compensation Investments
Exchange csp  ___Fund —Other Cther  Eliminations Gioup
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 &'000 £'000

External revenue 19,145 40,795 £4,669 104,416 127,234  (_88.203) 48,056
Tatal revenue 9146 40,795 £4,669 104,418 127234 (86,203 348,066
Result
Segment result 16,514 (13,045) 84 66O 104,416 B0 [ 88.291) 104,343
Finance cost ( 39.535) (11,203) - - - (_11.203) (_39.535)
Profit before taxation E4. 808
Taxalion [
Profit for the year P T
Other infermation
Capital additions 14, 863 - - - - - 14,883
Depreciation and

amartisalion 10,501 3,063 - - - - 13,5684
Assets
Sagment assats 287634 41,150 544,281 451,501 3,584 (118,921) 1,209,643
Consolidated total

assels 1.209.643

il

Segmenl liabilities 239,622 75,081 - - 3320 | 62487 _255518
Consolidated total

liabilities 256,516
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- JAMAICA “Providing A Fair, Efficient and
STOCK Transparent Stock Market”
EXCHANGE p

ANNUAL REPORT 2009
KOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2009
a0 SEGMENT REPORTING [Cont'd)
2008
Invesima s
Compensation  Imasirments
Exchangs G . Fund = Dfher Oitvat Eliminadiony Group
$000 000 $000 5000 5000 $000 5000
Extmmal revenue 235,659 188 408 L K-Fi| avagy 48,208 S oy 813135
Teilad revarue L15.E50 108 406 -1 K- SLOT AR.30% - T ]
Result
Segimand resul 3 258 125,118 1,828 91,027 14,562 J6 532
Finarce cost | 8.013)
Prafit before tnomlion A1
Taxabast 10311
Prafit loe the yeer L
Other nfarmation
Capilal addibons rarr 1,600 9577
Despreciation and
mrmcatration 13 650 3,037 18 97T
Assotn
Sagmani assats 205,775 2,008 510134 550,700 2.3 (B0.213) 1350 628
Conschdabed iotal
HEEnts L3XLA8
Linbilitiesy
Segursan] linbdiles 378 B3 41,256 1,804 | 4.581) Al
Conscidated iotal liabilities _d1g411

F _r_;—__,--_-'-.-
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“Providing A Fair, Efficient and
E Transparent Stock Market” ANNUAL REPORT 2009

HOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2009

b | RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS/BALANCES

3

331

Diuring 1ha year the Growp and the company had the following imnsaclions with relaled party o thae
rigimal coursa of busingss.

Theiy Gra The Company __
2008 2009 ranit}
S000 5000 $000 $'000
Fan Canbbean Fmancial Serdices Limiled
Interest expansas 208, 144 - 26,144 -
Bomowings 132,000 - 132,000 -
Jamaica Ceniral Securilkes Limied
Interes! income 11,203 - 11203 -
3.2 Compensalion al key management parsannel
Th remunedalion of directors and olher members of key mansgamenl during the year was as follows:
—IheGroup = __ThaCompany
2008 2008 2009 2008
5000 5'000 5000 000
Shori-term benafits 30,581 38,4848 18,080 28,800
Post employmeant benslis 1663 1.531 LRy 28
$2.253 40,018 20,037 21.626
313 Loons o related paries
The Company
2009 2008 2009 2008
5000 5000 5000 5'000
Loans 1o key manngemont parsonnel 2.950 2700 1585 1BET
X2 COMMITMENTS
Capital eommitmants
Cagpital commitmants as al Decembar 31, 2009, amounted 1o $8.6 mdlion and wera in relation 1o computer
hardwars (2008° $1.9 million in relocation to computer software applications).
33 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Capifal risk managemant

The capital struciure of the Geoup consisis of equity attnbutable fo the shareholders of the paneni

company comprising mseed capital; including preference capital, reserses, retained samsngs and cash
and cash equivalants.

ot



“Providing A Fair, Efficient and

E Transparent Stock Market” ANNUAL REPORT 2009

MNOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2000

1 FINAMCLAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont'd)

a1

132

33.3

. 335

Capital risk management (Cont'd)

Th Group's objeclives when managing is capital struclune, which i a broader concept than the equity
on the face of the stalement of financial position are:

i} To 'Illlﬂu?llﬂ thix Group™s ability jo conlinue as agdngmm &0 thad it can continug o
provide raturns for slockholdars and banefits for other stakaholders; and

I} Maintain n strong capital base 10 support the business development
Tha Group's overall stralegy remains unchanged from 20048

Significant accournting policies

Detads of the significant accounting policis and mahods adopled, ncluding the ciana for recognilion,
the basis of measurement and the basis on which mcome and expanses are recognised, in respect of
each class of financial assel, fnancial lability and equily instruments are disciosed in Note 3 o the
financial stalaments

Categories of Rnancial instruments
—The Group The Company ____
2009 2008 2008
000 2000 5000 5'000
Financial assets
Hald-to-matunly invesimanis 854,014 720,788 501,694 B40,105
Ayailable-for-zale linancial assats 12,1648 66,941 12,166 58,013
Loans and recenvables (inchuding
cash and cash equn/alanis) . ER ] 185,44 334172

Financial kabilites.
Amortisad cosl 1 11

Financial risk managemeant objectives

Tha Group's Investment Commithes i responsible for ecomminding o ihe Board of Dwectors, through
the Audil and Finance Commities, uniform inesiment decisions, poficies and procedures. Tha specific
dufles of the Invesiment Managemeni! Commitles are 0 recelve and review data on current makel
conditions and sconomic oullook; reviw vanows rsk reports submifted including fasr value, interest rale
risk, lguidity risk, currancy risk, and markel risk: rviesy monthly report on portfolics and eslablish
quariery imwestman] porifolio strategies. The Group does not enter into or rade financial imesimants,
inciuding derivative financial instruments for speculMive purposes.

Market risk

Thi Group's mvestment acthilies expose B primarily o the financial risks of changes i foreign curmency
axchango rales, inlerest rates and price movements (see MNotes 338, 33T and 338). The Group
manages iz sk ihrough exlensive research and mondors the risk exposures on the local and
international markets.

Thera has bean no changa to the mannar in which tha Group manages and measures this sk,

102
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- g# glé\ll . “Providing A Fair, Efficient and
EXCHANGE Transparent Stock Market” ANNUAL REPORT 2009

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2009

X3 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont'd)

318

Foraign currancy risk managoment
The Group underdakes cedain invesiment fransactions denominaied in currencies other than ihe

Jamaican dollar.  Ewchange rate exposimes are maneged within approved policy parameaters,
maintaning o menagaabls balance in the iypes of investmanis,

Tha following balances held in Uniled Siatos dollers are mcluded in these inancial stalemons:
— TheGroup — T Companmy

a00g 2008 £00g ravel}

S000 3000 5000 5000
irvestmant secuilles 282,969 303,083 228,800 254 BOG
Cash and cash egquivabens __ 3822 __1.318 — 2385 1318
Mel exposure 266,781 84411 231.185 £56.124

3361 Foreign cumency sensilivily analysis

The Group's investment portfolio is exposed to the Unfled Stales dollar. The Group's
sansilivity 1o a 2% ncrease of 5% decreasa in the Jamaican dollar against the United Stales
dodlar = the sensibivity rate used when repoding loresgn cumency rsk internally to the key
managemenl personngl and represens management's assessment of the reasonably possible
change in foraign exchange rate,

The sensitivily of the 2% (2008: 5%) increase or 5% (2008: 5%) decease in the Jamaican
dioflar on the nel Undled States dollar exposure would be an decrease of profits by J35.7 million
(2008 J515.2 mifion) or an increase of profits by J$14.3 million (2008: J$15.2 million).

This foreign currency sensitvities have vanad due to the sansitivity rates used and the incroase
iy thy Il of investment securities hald in foraign curmancy,

Imteresi rate risk managemeant

The Group's sxposure to mlerest rales on fnancial assels and financial liabilibes am detalad n the
liquicity risk managament section of this node.

inieras rate sansiivity analysis

Intarest rate sensdivily have been determingd based on the exposure 1o intenest rales for the Group's
irvegsimend in securitss al (he ¢hd of the repoding year as these ane substaniinBy tha nonest Sengiive
instrumant impacting fmancal resulls.  For floating rale assels. the analysis assumes the amount of
asss oulstanding at year end was ouisianding for the whole year, A 200 basis point increase or GO0
basis poinis decregse s used when reporting interest rate sk intemally to key managemeni personnel
and represents mannpgemen)'s assesament of the reasonabls possible change in interes) mles. In 2008
ihe assumplion was 100 basis points Increasa of decraass.

H market inferest rates had been 200 basis poinls higher or B00 basls poinls lower and al other
variables wene held constant:

103
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“Providing A Fair, Efficient and

Transparent Stock Market” ANNUAL REPORT 2009
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 20040
1 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont'd)
337 Interes! raie risk managemeni (Cont'd)
The Group The Company
2000 2008 2009 2008
000 £'000 £'000 5000
Effect on net surplus increasaidecrease
100 basis poinls 3,297 2985
Effact on nol surphus increase 200 basis poinis 8,032 . 7413 -
Effact on net surpdies decrease 800 basis points 23.7ar - 22 23 -

Tha Group's and thi Company's sansilivity 1o inlerest rabes has increased during ihe curment year as the

Group had a decreasa in the number of vanable rafe financial nstruments

338  Price risk management

The Group B axposad o price risks ansing from et trest imestments.  Unit trust investments ane held
{or sirategic rather than for trading purposes.  The Group does not aclively irede thess investmants.

Price sensitivity analysis

Tha sensitivly analysis bolow has bean daterminad based on the exposure to unit trusi pnce nsks at the
reporting date, I unit trusi prices had bean 51 higherflower and all other vanables were held constant

A The Group The Gompany
-. 2008 2008
5000 5000 5'000 £000
EHaci on fair value resene 1,563 - 1,331
Effect on contingancy resenea 819 3530 818 3,530

The Group's and the company's Sensifivity 10 price has decreased significantly as a number of

available-for-sale assels were disposed of dunng the financial year.

i 339  Credif risk management
P I Cradid sk refers to the risk thal counlerparty will defaull on its contraciual obligations resulling in
{inancial loss 1o the Group. o relation (o bank accounis and investments securities, the Group, as a
-l]". policy, deals wilh credil worthy countarparties, 10 minimize crodil nisk exposunes.
Pj Trade receivables consist of broker membars of the Group and accordingly mitigates aganst credit sk
y in relalkon io sach receivables. In e case of other recelvables, ongoing credit evaluation is parformed
h | on the financial conditions of those receivabios
"I:I \ Thay carrying amoani of financial assats mmoordad in tha inancial stalemants (as disclosad in Mode 33.3),
:_ \ which s net of impaimmant losses, regresents the group's magmum exposure o credil risk.
II.
E 3310 Ligquidity figk managomant

Uitimate responssblity for liquidity risk management rests with the boand of dieciors, which has built an
N appropriate kguEdity ek managament framework for the management of the Group's short, medium and

| % lang-teim funding and Bguidily manBQEMmEnT requiremenls,

The Group manages liquididy nsk by

maintaining adagueate esenes, banking faciblias, by continuously monitorng forecasts and achl cash

~ flows and matching the matuity profiles of financial assats and liabilites.

i 104
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CA “Providing A Fair, Efficient and
NGE Transparent Stock Market” ANNUAL REPORT 2009

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2000

33

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont'd)

3310 Liguidity risk management (Cont'd)

33.10.1 Liguidity and interast rate tablas

The following table details the Group's and the Company's condraciual maluriby for its nen-
dervative financinl assets and financial liabilities, The tables below hive been drawn up based
on undiscownted contraciual mahwilies of financial asseis ncluding inlerest thal will be samed
on those excepl whese the Group and the Company enlicipates that the cash fiows will ocour in
& different penod, and in the case of inancipl Kabilites, based on the sariest date on which e
Group and tha Company can be roquined to pay.

The Groug
Weighted
BVETBGH
effective Less
imlerest thian 1103 3 monihs 15 Orver
Jtals 1 month Monthe 101 yepr Yoars § ypars Total
= =000 5000 5000 000 5000 5000
2003
Financial assets
Ron=inlEnest beinng 18,697 421 - - - 22028
Vartable inferes! rate
instruments 7 a7 627 B5 779 173424 330,615 134 594 772,543
Flxed inlenes] mia
instnaments 15 A —s JI25BR 101445 374683 2 _SOO.7R1
_F3.380 B0 246533 | 522060 2 409380 2 1345452
Financial Eabililhes
Mon-interest beanng a0, 13% = - 40,1349
Inlefest boanng loan 15.8 119,371 - - 118371
Fedeemable
praference shares 17 = 2757 __BEES  BTEIT - o7 4089
147,069 —eI5T 6825 87 827 - 256,018
2008
Financinl aasels
Man-interest bearing 30,584 44,169 . - . 74,753
Variable inferest rate
instrumenis 15.75 - 134,090 145,300 a7, ey 7444 Thd 631
Fiumad inlerest rale
insthemanis 14.5 e g4 31206 SIRATE ESRISE _6Trgis
33637 185213 17R506 2 AS4ETI 266630 1516650
Finmncinl Epbilitsges
Mon-intenest bearning 253 335 : = . & #53 335
Redoamablo
preference shares 14.75 = — 3265 0,735 101,675 - 114, 315

253335 _ 32856 9735 100675 _ - _ 367,850

103



“Providing A Fair, Efficient and

Transparent Stock Market” ANNUAL REPORT 2009
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR EMDED DECEMBER 31, 2000
R FINAMCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont'd)
3390 Liguidity risk management (Cont'd)
33101 Liguidity and inferest rate tables (Cont'd)
The Company
YWaighled
average
affective Less
ineras! 1hawn 103 3 monihs o5 Crvat
@i Imoath  Months o1 vear 20 Total
% 5000 S000 5000 £'000 5000 5000
2009
Financial assels
Mon-inferest bearing 12,165 - - 12,165
Variable inlerest rals
instruments 165 47 627 74614 173,924 306,123 134 608 T35 086
Fixed imdarast rate
instruments 15 B 082 - B2 245 161,603 245 182 47T, 114
S7.874 4614 Q35169 487728 2 ITOBED  1LIR6.265
Financinl Eabilifies
Non-mierast baaring 25217 - - - - 25227
Interesi bearing loan 158 118,371 - - - - 118,31
Redeamable
preference shares Lk e I8 G625 8787 —_ irag
144,598 L7157 __ 6825 87827 —_ 242007
2008
Financial assalts
Mon-inferes! bearing 23748 12 880 - - 36,628
WVariabli inlenest rale
instrurments 165 - 134,080 118,569 442 652 - 695,311
Fized inlarest rate
inatrurments 16 C _ G854 13428 339379 230400 2 _ 500,161
L2748 150994 131897  TER03] 0 20400 1322100
Financial kabilies
Non-iiergst bearing 230 587 " 239,587
Radeamabla
preference shares 14.75 : _anes 8735 101,675 z 114 675
28587 365 9735 1Mevs - 00 354263

The desclosunes provided in this noté ane based on the mvestiment porifolio as 8 Decembar 31, 20048,
As descnbad in Note 34, the company participated in the Jamaica Debt Exchange {JOX) which may
result In significant changes 1o the company's Invesiment portiolio and the fulure cash fhows.

F _r_;—__,--_-'-.-
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- g# glé\ll . “Providing A Fair, Efficient and
EXCHANGE Transparent Stock Market” ANNUAL REPORT 2009

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2000

a3 FIMANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont'd)

3311

Fair valua of financial instrumaents

Fair value is he amounl for which an assel could be exchanged. or & liability sattied bebaeen
knowledgeabla, willling parias in @n arm's lenglh fransaction. A markel price, whene an aclive miarket
{such as a recopgnised slock exchange) exisis, is the besi evidence of the fair value of & financial
instrument. Where markei prices are nod avadable for some of the financial assets and labdiies of the
group, bthe fair velues in the fnencial statements hawve been presenied using various estmation
lechniques based on markel condilions exsting al balance shesl dale. Generally, judgemeni =
necessanly required in interpreling market dala to develop estimates of fair value, Accordingly, the
estimatles presentad in these financial statbmants are nol necassanty indicative of the amounts that the
Group would realise In o current markel oxchangs,

The following meathods and assumplions have bean used:

in Financial assets classified as available-for-sale ae measured &l fair value by relerence o
quobed markel prices.

(i} The fair value of varabds rate financial instrumenis = assumed to appromaie thair camying
Amiant

{iii} Tha fair valee of fixed rade financial instruments s estimaled using present valus or other
astimalion techniques based on markel conditions on simiar instruments 81 balance shest
dabe,

{iv) The camying amoimni of liguid assets and olher assets maturing within one year is assumed o
approdmate their (alr value. This assumption & applied 1o bguid asssts and (he olher ahoe-
brm edemants of all other fnancial assels and liabilities.

Excepl as detsiled in the following tables, management conskders ihat the earrying amounts af financial
assats and financial Eabdios in the financisl stiaments approximale thoir e values,

Fair vala of financial instements camed at amortisad cost in the slaiement of financial position.

T Growp
— D SO08
Camying Valug Eair Value  Camying Value Fair \als
S000 2000 000 5000

Financial assats
Compansation fund

Hekd-1o-mialusity 444 TED 457 200 22T 480 204,222
Oriher

Hedd-fo-rmpiurity 440,100 448912 443,328 459,285
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- g% glé'\& CA “Providing A Fair, Efficient and
EXCHANGE Transparent Stock Market” ANNUAL REPORT 2009
NOTES T THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 11, 2004
ki | FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont'd)
3311 Fair value of financial instruments (Coni'd)
2009
‘CamyingValue  FairVelue CanvingValue  Ear Vale
5000 §000 $'000 5000
Financial assals
Compansation umd
Huald-{o-malurity 444, TED 457,250 ZIT 460 204,222
Crihar
Held-to-maturity 57824 352,365 412,845 380,452
Fair valse moasuramant recognized in tha statement of financial position in respact of investmants in
unit tnests [classified as avadable-for-sala) is derived from quoted prices in the market for those unils.
3 SUBSEQUENT EVENT

On January 14, 2010 the Govemmeant of Jamaica (GO invited holders of cerisin domesiic dabl instrumeants io
voluntarily particigade in the Jamaica Debl Exchangs (JOX) programme, The stafed objectives of the programme
ane 1o reduca he cosl. as well as langthen he maberly profile, of GOJs domestic debd portialio. Under tha JOX,
GO intends to retire ceran exslng debt instruments ("Cid MNodes™) and issee new debl nstruments [“MNew
Mobes™) with an increased maturity profile and al rates of interest lower than the rales of imMerest on the existing

diobil insdrurments

Al Decamber 31, 2008, the Group's and the company’s investmant portfolio included invesiment in GOJ debl
imsfrumenis with a nominal valug of 55098 millon (ncluding USS662 400) for ihe Group and 5564 4 million

{including USS362 400) Tor (e
E£583.5 mallion for the company in the statemant of financial position.

. These ane staled al amortized cost of $640,.2 million far the Group and

The company has accepled the imataton io participate in the exchangs and awails the conclusion of the JOX by
ihe Governmen! of Jamaica. Upon completion, the company’s portliolio of Oid Notes wil be  replaced wih a
portiolio of Mow Moles on a “par for par” basis such thal ihe principal amounts that would have bean recelved al
maturity provided by the Oid MNotes are equal 1o the cormesponding amounis io be received from the New Maoles.
The gain or loss on daposal of the Oid Notes, which will also include any unamaortized discounts or premiums as
ol the seltiemont date, will bo recognized in the statement ol comprohansive incoma for year ending Decemboer

31, 2010. Concarning the defined henafit
may also have an impact on dafined beneli obligaton of the Growp,

plan for amployess of the Group and the Company, the JOX
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Products Offered by JSE

Remote Observer

The Real Time Market Watch or the Remote Observer is another exciting feature of the Jamaica Stock Exchange which allows
investors to view real time trading activities at their convenience. This product has endless possibilities for those who take the
stock market seriously, and abounds with the following features:

It allows the client to be on the cutting edge of technology.

Clients will be able to monitor daily activities of the market in real time giving them a distinct competitive
advantage.

Clients will have ready access to market information and will therefore be able to make informed decisions.
Clients watching the activities can negotiate sale and purchase fees of securities, thus lowering their transaction
cost.

Clients can know if their brokers are executing their requests.

YV VV VvV

This product is proven to provide significant benefits to the client and is a viable source of revenue for the Stock Exchange,
especially when the market is bullish.

The remote Observer is the only product on the market that offers real time information on trading on the Jamaican Stock
Market and attracts customers both locally and internationally.

This product is designed to meet the needs of:

1. Companies involved in pension funds management: (The contact will be established with CEOs, Managing
Directors and the Pension Funds Managers).
ii. Companies thatinvestin securities.
iii. Middle-to-upper class professionals who invest in the Stock Market as the means to create a solid retirement plan.
iv. CEOsand MDs especially those of listed companies who have an avid interest in the stock market.
v. CEO'sand MDs of potential listed companies
vi. Brokermembers

Banner Ad

The Stock Exchange's revamped website www.jamstockex.com has a totally new look and feel and has become an exciting
vehicle for companies to keep in touch with their upwardly mobile clientele.

The Jamaica Stock Exchange's website receives over 110,000 hits per day from many local and international visitors who use
our site repeatedly to check the daily trade sheets, as well as other information. This product offers an excellent opportunity for
companies and institutions to connect with their target market. It is a well-known fact that advertising works best when
targeted to a specific audience. Hence the JSE's Banner Ad is that medium of choice which provides product exposure to
existing and potential investors.

Online Statements

Twice yearly, the JCSD sends out statements showing client's transactions and trading activity of their invested securities.
In response to the demands of clients to supply more current and ready information on their accounts, the JCSD is now
pleased to offer you the JCSD online statement. This facility will give clients access to their statements whenever they

want it! .
What will the On-line Statement Show?

e Account holders who access this statement on-line will be able to see transactions conducted from December 31,
2004 onwards.

e  Whether or not clients choose to print their statement or view it on-line, the information will appear in the same
format.

e Clients will be able to stipulate what transaction they wish to view or print.

e Clients will see a quick look-up of their holdings as at the current date.

e C(Clients will have access to all their active accounts in the JCSD.
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Tickers
The JSE produces two types of tickers namely the “Desk Top Ticker” and the “Website Ticker”.

Desk Top Ticker

The Desk Top ticker is appropriate for clients working at aremote station and need to access summarized market information.
“The Desk Top Ticker”is a summary of trading taking place on the market compiled as a crawl across a computer screen. It
gives the distinct advantage of allowing the client to view the information, without disruption of work.

This is areliable way for clients to keep in touch with the performance of the market and most importantly, the performance of
their stock on a timely basis.

Website Ticker

This ticker is appealing to companies, web administrators and media houses. It is the ideal product to attract both local and
international investors to the client's site. Investors are always seeking information on the performance of the market and once
they are aware of a particular site which supplies this information they will make frequent visits to that site. A “Website
Ticker” site will also attract visits from new customers seeking market report information.

Publications

JSE's e-Learning Campus

JSE's e-Learning Campus is a web based e-learning system that will allow students to attend courses online. Lessons will be
interactive with video and audio clips of lecturers. Students will be able to read content, view or print e-books, do tests and
other exercises relating to a specific course. Additionally, students will be able to bookmark position in each course and
resume the course at anytime. The system will track usage, track scores from tests, issue certificates, and allow students to
interact with lecturers. Students will also geta chance to meet with lecturers and tutors face-to-face.

Our e-Campus will commence by offering the JSE's Post-Graduate Diploma in Financial Securities Management. This
programme is a continuing professional education course for participants operating in the capital markets, dealing in
investment products and for professionals in the financial services sector.

PocketBook

This annual publication is a compendium of facts, figures, charts and other illustrations showing the performance of the
Jamaican stock market for the previous year. It contains invaluable research material for potential investors locally and abroad
as well as for financial planners and managers.

The Pocketbook is distributed to our subscribers, both locally and internationally and is posted on the JSE's website which

averages at least 3,357,904 hits per month. This has opened for advertisers, a new window of opportunity to enter the overseas
market and in particular to reach Jamaicans living abroad.

Stock Market Review

This magazine is the perfect advertising vehicle for reaching existing and potential clients who invest in the stock market. The
publication is timely and contains indicators of market performance as well as pertinent news on market development.

The magazine is published quarterly and circulated free of cost to subscribers and other interested clients in Jamaica and
abroad. It also appears on the Jamaica Stock Exchange's website which enjoys thousands of visitors daily.
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Year Book

This annual publication is a sought after collection of information showing the performance of the Jamaican stock market for
the previous year. The distinguishing features of the Year Book are:

v~ A snapshot of the financials of the Listed Companies
v' Comparative figures on companies’ financials
v' Comparative figure for market statistics such as Market Capitalization, Volume, Top Ten Companies by Value and

Volumes

This publication is invaluable research material for potential investors locally and abroad as well as for financial planners and
managers.

The Year Book is distributed to our subscribers, both locally and internationally and is posted on the JSE's website which
averages some 3,357,904 hits per month.
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Brokerages & Contact Information

BARITA INVESTMENTS LTD.
15 St. Lucia Way,

Kingston 5

Phone: 926-2681-2 / 926-2686
Fax: 929-8432

e-mail: barita@cwjamaica.com

SCOTIA DBG INVESTMENTS LTD.
7 Holborn Road,

Kingston 10

Phone: 960-6699 / 968-3365

Fax: 960-3984

e-mail: info@scotiadbg.com

JMMB SECURITIES LTD.

11 Knutsford Boulevard,
Kingston 5

Phone: 920-5039 / 920-4720
Fax: 960-8106

e-mail: info@jmmbsecurities.com

FIRST GLOBAL FINANCIAL
SERVICES LTD.

2 St. Lucia Avenue,

Kingston 5

Phone: 926-1275

Fax: 926-1279 / 929-6436
e-mail: fgfs@gkco.com

MAYBERRY INVESTMENTS LTD.
1 % Oxford Road,

Kingston 5

Phone: 929-1908-9

Fax: 929-1501 / 920-2103

e-mail: feedback@mayberryinv.com

PAN CARIBBEAN FINANCIAL
SERVICES LTD.

60 Knutsford Boulevard,

Kingston 5

Phone: 929-5583/4

Fax: 926-0555

e-mail: options@gopancaribbean.com

M/VL STOCKBROKERS LTD.
2-6 Grenada Crescent,
Kingston 5

Phone: 960-1570 / 926-4319
Fax: 960-1571

e-mail: mvi@wtjam.net

NCB CAPITAL MARKETS LTD.

32 Trafalgar Road, 3rd Floor
Kingston 10

Phone: 960-7108 Fax: 960-7649
TOLL FREE: 1-888-4-WEALTH
e-mail: info@ncbcapitaimarkets.com

STOCKS AND SECURITIES LTD.
24-26 Grenada Crescent,

Kingston 5

Phone: 929-3261 / 929-3400

Fax: 929-4825

e-mail: info@gostocksandsecurities.com

VICTORIA MUTUAL WEALTH
MANAGEMENT LTD.

52 - 60 Grenada Crescent,
Kingston 5

Phone: 960-5000 - 3
Fax:960-4972

e-mail: spaimer@vmbs.com

CAPITAL & CREDIT SECURITIES LTD.
18 Trafalgar Road,

Kingston 10

Phone: 946-1770

Fax: 978-8005

e-mail: info@capital-credit.com
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Jamaica Stock Exchange
Yearly Trading Summary (1973-2009)
YEAR-END NO
MARKET OF VOLUME VALUE YEAR-END YEAR-END YEAR-END NO. NO.
CAPITAL LISTED TRADED TRADED JSE ALL JA JSE OF BROKERS
YEAR JA$(000) COMPANIES (000) JA$(000) INDEX COMPOSITE SELECT TRANS.
1973 203,649 41 9,450 7,811 78.94 4,525 5
1974 129,656 40 19,400 10,660 61.97 2,679 4
1975 126,472 38 6,930 5,335 66.22 2,104 4
1976 106,426 43 5,650 2,827 55.72 1,170 4
1977 89,776 43 2,185 1,293 146.99 459 6
1978 93,494 40 13,818 10,093 49.28 583 6
1979 109,600 39 4,833 2,217 59.28 420 5
1980 124,149 41 7,390 5,101 69.83 502 5
1981 225,761 33 4,198 3,332 152.23 799 5
1982 315,964 32 5,542 10,156 211.16 1,375 5
1983 359,199 32 5,185 9,820 240.38 1,566 5
1984 697,729 32 9,744 26,017 461.10 2,117 5
1985 1,456,590 33 37,640 117,146 941.50 3,049 6
1986 3,085,766 36 59,252 374,617 1,499.87 6,691 8
1987 3,468,661 41 71,877 399,971 1,515.09 11,187 8
1988 4,290,291 44 43,522 136,739 1,439.22 6,446 8
1989 6,228,384 44 95,202 516,456 2,075.85 13,892 8
1990 7,321,285 44 57,960 230,782 2,539.36 8,691 9
1991 22,214,715 44 144,258 1,156,609 7,681.50 24,072 9
1992 76,974,281 48 395,606 4,687,337 25,745.88 49,791 9
1993 41,879,310 48 567,454 8,346,770 13,099.68 55,519 9
1994 58,018,064 50 741,754 5,155,463 16,676.74 43,144 10
1995 50,755,753 51 3,565,607 11,560,485 14,266.99 42,600 10
1996 66,116,257 50 560,528 4,629,395 16,615.99 23,189 8
1997 79,619,594 49 905,387 4,594,108 19,846.66 18,623 8
1998 79,038,726 47 604,545 2,064,243 20,593.33 13,748 8+
1999 | 104,041,538 a4 520,531 2,218,714 21,892.58 9,256 6
2000 160,135,746 44 694,897 3,441,081 28,893.24 26,894.76 883.67 21,066 6
2001 222,006,166 42 2,845,199 5,948,358 33,835.59 32,508.99 1,015.26 20,979 10
2002 292,297,900 40 1,604,591 7,636,877 45,396.21 46,142.81 1,450.34 26,999 10
2003 512,884,380 41 4,290,433 24,237,330 67,586.72 55,629.64 1,697.87 35,954 10
2004 |879,297,296 40 5,194,558 35,994,853 112,655.51 116,218.38 3,176.62 86,875 [N
2005 839,852,762 41 2,498,028 40,746,681 104,510.38 104,941.62 2,859.62 75,001 (|
2006 |822,862,351 44 5,639,412 37,040,992 100,678.00 107,213.42 2,942.88 41,921 [N}
2007 876,690,610 44 2,433,488 29,047,425 | 107,968.00 106,782.82 2,928.98 38,621 1
2008 597,277,036 45 2,953,011 67,026,871 80,152.03 73,994.96 1,984.74 30,323 [ |
2009 544,882,559 44 1,764,894 12,189,895 83,321.96 70,995.77 1,896.05 16,099 [N}
+ Six (6) active Brokers
* The All Jamaican Composite started on the May 1, 2000 at 31,931.32 points
* JSE Select started on the June 1, 2000 at 1,000 points (Cont’d on next page)
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JAMAICA STOCK EXCHANGE
YEARLY TRADING SUMMARY JUNIOR MARKET (2009)

YEAR-END
MARKET NO. OF YEAR-END
CAPITAL LISTED VOLUME VALUE NO. OF NO. JSE JNR

YEAR JAS$(Million) COMPANIES TRADED TRADED TRANS. BROKERS MARKET INDEX

2009 755.17 1 62,248 1,531,915 14 (N} 150.01

Corporate Information

Registered Office: The Jamaica Stock Exchange &
The Jamaica Central Securities Depository
40 Harbour Street
P.O. Box 1084
Kingston.
Telephone: (876) 967-3271-2

Fax: (876) 922 -6966

Bankers National Commercial Bank
Cnr. Duke & Barry Streets
Kingston.

Attorneys-at-law Livingston, Alexander & Levy
72 Harbour Street, Kingston

Auditors Deloitte & Touche
7 West Avenue
Kingston 4.

Website Address www.jamstockex.com

E-Mail Address jse -info@jamstockex.com

14




mo e
>< =
o=

AIC
C
HAN

ICA
K
ANG

“Providing A Fair, Efficient and
E Transparent Stock Market”

Jamaica Stock Exchange Statement of

Corporate Governance Principles & Practices

PREAMBLE

The Jamaica Stock Exchange recognizes that as a national self-regulatory organization with a mission to ensure and promote a fair
and efficient stock market, it must embrace and practice sound corporate governance. These principles and the attendant
structures should serve the best interest of all stakeholders and emphasize the highest standards of transparency, oversight and
independence.

The intent is to protect the investing public while advancing the interests of owners and members. Confidence in the stock market
will be enhanced by the clear demarcation of regulatory and normal operational functions.

These practices are consistent with world best practices and adhere to the relevant legal and regulatory framework. The corporate
governance core practices of the JSE are rooted in the acceptance of the following principles:

1.

Corporate Governance should establish a clear foundation for Management and Board oversight. The role and
responsibilities of Board and Management should therefore be clearly outlined to facilitate accountability.

2. The Board of Directors should be structured and selected to ensure effectiveness, independence and protection of
the public's interests through appropriate selection and operating processes.
3. Ethical standards and responsible decision-making should be promoted.
4. Governance should ensure that there is accurate, timely and full financial and governance reporting with strong
internal controls and risk management.
5 Material information regarding the company's operations should be disclosed in a timely manner to the public and
regulatory entities.
6. There should be regular reviews of Board and Management performance to enhance effectiveness.
7. Remuneration should be fair to attract and retain competent skills, and reward consistent with performance
objectives.
8. The interests ofstakeholders should becarefully balanced, protected andpromoted
ISSUES DESCRIPTION/PRINCIPLE
Board Issues
Accountability to The JSE is a public company with public responsibility. It must balance the
shareholders/stakeholders interest of all stakeholders to foster a fair, efficient and transparent market.
Mission and Responsibility The Board members have the responsibility to attend meetings and familiarize

themselves with, and make decisions on issues within their purview.

Elections

The provisions for elections of members are set out in the Memorandum &
Articles of the JSE and stipulate election of members on an annual basis.
Interest groups identified by the Board will propose independent members to the
Nominating Committee. Where an interest group fails to make a nomination, the
Nominating Committee will propose directors for election.

Orientation and Training Training is made available to directors upon appointment to the Board.

The Exchange will organize orientation and training for any director within three
(3) months of appointment to the Board. The Board will pursue a programme of
continuous training and development, with emphasis placed on members
chairing committees.

Access to Information The Board considers the provision of good quality, timely and accurate

information as a significant priority in company procedures. Management has a
responsibility to provide the Board with any information that will allow members
to properly carry out its responsibilities.

Disclosure of Directors
Biographical Information

Sufficient biographical data with the names of all directors, nominated or elected,
will be presented to shareholders and directors. This allows for the proper
selection of members to specific committees.

Composition Board members will be drawn from different interest groups and from member-

dealers. Representation should reflect the diversity of stakeholders and the
needs of the Company. The Board shall be comprised of member dealers, an
equal number of independent directors and an independent chairman.

Multiple Board Seats Members must declare appointments to other companies. They must, at the

beginning of the year, and as many times as their positions change, give a
written declaration to the Board of the Exchange with pertinent information
about the other Boards on which they serve.

Chairman & CEO Any decision to combine these two positions must be justified.

Independence Directors No director qualifies as an independent director unless the Board determines

that the director has no material relationship that could interfere with the
independent judgment of that member.
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Jamaica Stock Exchange Statement of
Corporate Governance Principles & Practices

Committees

Composition

There are both mandatory and non-compulsory committees of the Board.

The mandatory committees of the Board are comprised of the Conduct Review
Committee, the Audit Committee and the Compensation Committee. These are
referred to in the JSE's Rules.

Each Committee has a written charter outlining its purpose and responsibilities
and reporting format. Committees must meet at least twice annually.

Review Process

The Board of the JSE conducts regular reviews of the performance of the
Committees. Chairmen of Committees are required to develop and present
their key performance indicators.

Audit and Finance Committee

The Audit Committee assists the Board with oversight responsibilities in regards
to the integrity of the company's financial statements. It also serves as the
communication link between the Board, the management team and the auditors.
The Audit Committee ensures that the Company complies with legal and
regulatory requirements.

Market Oversight Committee

The Market Oversight Committee is responsible for processing and recording
applications of Member Dealers for access of Member Dealers, attorneys/
traders, to conduct business on the floor of the Exchange and their use of these
facilities.

Conduct Review Committee

The Conduct Review Committee reviews Member Dealers' conduct of business
and adherence to Business Rules, Contractual Obligations and the Securities
Act. The Conduct Review Committee is responsible to the Board of Directors
for the conduct, procedures and holding of disciplinary hearings and reviews
and to investigate complaints by investors against Member Dealers.

Regulatory & Market Oversight
Committee (RMOC)

The Regulatory and Market Oversight Committee (hereinafter called the
“RMOC”) is the Committee of the Board of Directors of the Exchange
comprising the independent directors who are not the nominees or connected
to any Member/Dealer of the Exchange. The Board of Directors of the
Exchange has delegated responsibility to the RMOC for reviewing and ensuring
compliance with and enforcement of the Laws, any Rules including Business
Rules, contractual obligations and appropriate standards of conduct governing
the Member/Dealers, their clients and participants on the Exchange.

Governance Committee

The Corporate Governance Committee is responsible to develop, recommend
and review Corporate Governance Principles, applicable to the Board,
Management and listed companies. In addition the Committee has the
responsibility to oversee the evaluation of the Board's other committees and
make recommendations in respect to the structure of and effectiveness of the
Committees.

Nominating Committee

The Nominating Committee is comprised of non-executive directors and is
responsible for the recommendation of suitable candidates to fill vacancies on
the Board.

Compensation
Committee

The Compensation Committee of the JSE is made up exclusively of non-
executive directors who make recommendations on the company's framework
of executive remuneration. The Committee reviews and approves corporate
goals in relation to the CEQO's compensation, evaluates the CEQ's performance
in light of the company's goals and objectives and makes recommendations to
the Board with respect to executive and non-executive compensation.
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Jamaica Stock Exchange Statement of
Corporate Governance Principles & Practices

Listing and Standards Committee

The Listing and Standards Committee ensures the quality and integrity of a
listing on the JSE. It is responsible to process applications and make
recommendations regarding approval of companies wishing to list on the JSE
and review and make recommendations of standards to be observed for
companies to remain listed.

Other Committees

These are formed as the directors see fit and includes the Executive Committee

Board Meetings

There are formal scheduled meetings of the Board at which matters are
specifically reserved for discussions. Matters must be addressed within a
reasonable time in order to prevent an overrun of pending items.

Procedure at Board Meetings
In the interest of promoting and ensuring transparency all directors must:

Excuse himself/ herself from discussions in, and in making
decisions on any matter in which he/she has a personal or
business interest or companies on whose Board he/she sits or is
connected. Further, members shall be bound by similar
standards as outlined in Appendix 1- (Part K) of the JSE's Rules
which addresses 'Acting in Concert'.

General Meetings

General Meetings of shareholders are held each year. Communication with
shareholders on decisions concerning material, fundamental corporate changes
are made on a timely basis.

Performance

Evaluation of Board Members and Senior Executives

The Board recognizes the importance of each director working to fulfill the
mandate of the company. This evaluation is subject to the review of the
Corporate Governance Committee.

The Board recognizes the importance of evaluating the performance of each
director, senior executives and the Board as a whole.

Term Limits

Board Members are nominated by the Nominating Committee.

Committees

Chairman/Deputy Chairman

The Chairman and Deputy Chairman of the Board and Chairmen of Committees
have recommended term limits as follows:

(a) The Chairman can serve for five (5) consecutive terms;
(b) The Deputy Chairman can serve for three (3) consecutive terms;
(c) The Chairmen of Committees can serve for three (3) consecutive terms

Committee Members

Members can sit for a maximum of three consecutive years. These members
are not eligible to be re-elected in the year subsequent to the three-year
consecutive stint. Past Chairmen should automatically sit on the Executive
Committee for the year after demitting office as Chairman.

Age Limits

The JSE has no maximum age limit for members sitting on the Board.
However the minimum age limit should be 18 years.

Transparency

In order to promote transparency, Member /Dealers are asked to publish their
companies' annual accounting results. Provisions are made to codify and
publish procedures to address and/or eliminate conflict of interest involving
Board Members.

Accounting Standards

The Board is governed by the standards as communicated from the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of Jamaica.

Ethics

The Board intends to codify the JSE's current ethics and confidentiality
requirements for Directors and Management and to post this information on
the JSE's website. Any waiver of ethics for Directors or Executive Officers is
to be declared.
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Postage
PROXY FORM sostaney
LIV e

as my/our proxy, to vote for me/us on my/our behalf at the Annual General Meeting of the
said company to be held on the 24" day of June, 2010 and any adjournment thereof.

Signed this.......c.ooii day of...cooiiii 2010
Signature
NOTES: 1. This Form of Proxy must be received by the Secretary of the Company

not less than 48 hours before the time appointed for the Meeting.

2. If the appointer is a Corporation, this Form of Proxy must be executed under its
Common Seal or under the hand of an officer or attorney duly authorized in writing.

3. The proxy form will attract stamp duty of J$100 which may be paid by affixing stamps or
stamp duty impressed by the Stamp Office.







